
Page 1 of 5 
 

 

                      

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 07, 2021 
110 EAST MAIN STREET 

LOS GATOS, CA 

                          Marico Sayoc, Mayor  
Rob Rennie, Vice Mayor  

Mary Badame, Council Member  
Matthew Hudes, Council Member 

Marie Ristow, Council Member 

 

 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC PROCESS 

How to participate:  The Town of Los Gatos strongly encourages your active participation in the 
public process, which is the cornerstone of democracy. If you wish to speak to an item on the 
agenda, please follow the participation instructions on page 2 of this agenda. If you wish to speak 
to an item NOT on the agenda, you may do so during the “Verbal Communications” period, by 
following the participation instructions on page 2 of this agenda.  The time allocated to speakers 
may change to better facilitate the Town Council meeting. 
 
Effective Proceedings:  The purpose of the Town Council meeting is to conduct the business of 
the community in an effective and efficient manner. For the benefit of the community, the Town 
of Los Gatos asks that you follow the Town’s meeting guidelines while attending Town Council 
meetings and treat everyone with respect and dignity. This is done by following meeting 
guidelines set forth in State law and in the Town Code. Disruptive conduct is not tolerated, 
including but not limited to: addressing the Town Council without first being recognized; 
interrupting speakers, Town Council or Town staff; continuing to speak after the allotted time 
has expired; failing to relinquish the podium when directed to do so; and repetitiously addressing 
the same subject. 
 
Deadlines for Public Comment and Presentations are as follows: 

 Persons wishing to make an audio/visual presentation on any agenda item must submit the 
presentation electronically, either in person or via email, to the Clerk’s Office no later than 
3:00 p.m. on the day of the Council meeting. 

 Persons wishing to submit written comments to be included in the materials provided to 
Town Council must provide the comments as follows: 
o For inclusion in the regular packet: by 11:00 a.m. the Thursday before the Council 

meeting 
o For inclusion in any Addendum: by 11:00 a.m. the Monday before the Council meeting 
o For inclusion in any Desk Item: by 11:00 a.m. on the day of the Council Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Town Council Meetings Broadcast Live on KCAT, Channel 15 (on Comcast) on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays at 7:00 p.m. 

Rebroadcast of Town Council Meetings on the 2nd and 4th Mondays at 7:00 p.m. 
Live & Archived Council Meetings can be viewed by going to: 

www.LosGatosCA.gov/TownYouTube 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, 

PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK DEPARTMENT AT (408) 354-6834.  NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE TOWN 

TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING [28 CFR §35.102-35.104] 

Page 1



Page 2 of 5 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 07, 2021 

7:00 PM 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 MEETING  
 

This meeting is being conducted in-person and utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means 
consistent with State of California Executive Order N-29- 20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding 
the COVID- 19 pandemic. Members of the public can participate in the meeting by attending in 
person in the Council Chamber at 110 E. Main Street or by joining the Zoom webinar (log in 
information provided below).  Due to the provisions of the Santa Clara County Health Officer to 
take action to minimize the spread of COVID-19 social distancing and mask requirements will 
be observed for all attending in person. 

PARTICIPATION 
Public comments can be made live during the Town Council meeting via Zoom or in person 
from the Council Chamber.  If you are not interested in providing oral comments in real-time 
during the meeting, you can view the live stream of the meeting on television (Comcast 
Channel 15) and/or online at www.LosGatosCA.gov/TownYouTube. 
 
To provide oral comments in real-time during the meeting: 

 In person: Provide your name and the item number you would like to speak on with the 
Town Clerk or Deputy Clerk. 

 Zoom webinar: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device: click this link 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86947224913?pwd=STR1ejNEbzJEQ3ZiMTJIKzFEUGJvdz09  
Password: 689564.  You can also type in 869 4722 4913 in the “Join a Meeting” page on 
the Zoom website at https://zoom.us/join. 

 When the Chair announces the item for which you wish to speak, click the “raise 
hand” feature in Zoom.  If you are participating by phone on the Zoom app, press *9 
on your telephone keypad to raise your hand.  If you are participating by calling in, 
press #2 on your telephone keypad to raise your hand. 

 Join by telephone: Dial: 877-336-1839. Conference code: 969184 
 
When called to speak, please limit your comments to three (3) minutes, or such other time as 
the Mayor may decide, consistent with the time limit for speakers at a Council meeting. 
If you wish to speak to an item or items on the Consent Calendar, please state which item 
number(s) you are commenting on at the beginning of your time. 
 
If you are unable to participate in real-time, you may email to PublicComment@losgatosca.gov 
the subject line “Public Comment Item #__ ” (insert the item number relevant to your 
comment) or “Verbal Communications – Non Agenda Item.” Comments received by 11:00 a.m. 
the day of the meeting will be reviewed and distributed before the meeting.  All comments 
received will become part of the record.  

 

Page 2

http://www.losgatosca.gov/TownYouTube
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86947224913?pwd=STR1ejNEbzJEQ3ZiMTJIKzFEUGJvdz09
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:PublicComment@losgatosca.gov


Page 3 of 5 
 

 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 07, 2021 

7:00 PM 

MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COUNCIL / MANAGER MATTERS 

CONSENT ITEMS (Items appearing on the Consent Items are considered routine and may be 
approved by one motion.  Any member of the Council or public may request to have an item 
removed from the Consent Items for comment and action. A member of the public may request 
to pull an item from Consent by following the Participation Instructions contained on Page 2 of 
this agenda.  If an item is pulled, the Mayor has the sole discretion to determine when the item 
will be heard.  Unless there are separate discussions and/or actions requested by Council, staff, 
or a member of the public, it is requested that items under the Consent Items be acted on 
simultaneously.) 

1. Approve Minutes of the August 17, 2021 Regular Town Council Meeting. 
2. Annexation Application AN21-001. Project Location: 16030 Winterbrook Road. Property 

Owner/Applicant: Alireza Zarrabi. 
Adopt a resolution making determinations and approving the reorganization of an 
uninhabited area designated as Winterbrook No. 6, approximately 0.319 Acres on 
property pre-zoned R-1:8. APN 523-26-013. 

3. Authorize the Town Manager to Execute an Agreement with ARC Document Solutions, 
LLC. for the Installation and Reproduction of Painted Panels for the Forbes Mill Mural 
Project with an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $30,000 from the 
available General Fund Appropriated Reserve Fund. 

4. Authorize an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $46,000 from the 
Available Information Technology Fund to Cover the Cost in the Statement of Work from 
Accela, Inc. for SaaS Migration Services. 

5. Adoption of an Ordinance of the Town of Los Gatos Amending the Los Gatos Town Code 
to Include Gender-Neutral Pronouns by Eliminating any Gender Preference Language 
Within the Los Gatos Town Code and Amending Sections Regarding Grammatical 
Interpretation to Indicate that Whenever a Gender-Neutral Personal Pronoun is Used, it 
Shall be Deemed to Include the Feminine and Masculine Also. 

6. Approve an Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan to Align the Temporary 
Communication Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps with the TEA Communication 
Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps. 

 

Page 3



Page 4 of 5 
 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS (Members of the public are welcome to address the Town Council 
on any matter that is not listed on the agenda consistent with the Participation Instructions 
contained on Page 2 of this agenda.  To ensure all agenda items are heard and unless additional 
time is authorized by the Mayor, this portion of the agenda is limited to 30 minutes and no more 
than three (3) minutes per speaker.  In the event additional speakers were not able to be heard 
during the initial Verbal Communications portion of the agenda, an additional Verbal 
Communications will be opened prior to adjournment.) 

OTHER BUSINESS (Up to three minutes may be allotted to each speaker on any of the following 
items consistent with the Participation Instructions contained on Page 2 of this agenda.) 

7. Consider Recommendations from the Community Health and Senior Service Commission 
for the Allocation of $500,000 of American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA) Funding to Restore 
and Enhance Senior Service Provision Due to the Disproportionate Impacts on the Older 
Adult Community from COVID-19 and Provide any Additional Direction to Staff and 
Authorize an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $500,000 from Available 
ARPA Proceeds to Cover those Services. 

8. Creekside Sports Park - Approve Ongoing Seasonal Field Lighting and Provide Feedback 
on Capital Maintenance Funding Needs. 

9. Create a New Project in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Capital Improvement Program 
Budget for Civic Center Security Improvements and Authorize an Expenditure Budget 
Adjustment in the Amount of $110,000 from Available General Fund Appropriated 
Reserve (GFAR) and Authorize the Town Manager to Enter into an Agreement not to 
Exceed the Budgeted Amount. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Applicants/Appellants, their representative, and members of the public may 
address the Council on any public hearing item consistent with the Participation Instructions 
contained on Page 2 of this agenda. Applicants/Appellants and their representatives may be 
allotted up to a total of five minutes maximum for opening statements.  Members of the public 
may be allotted up to three minutes to comment on any public hearing 
item.  Applicants/Appellants and their representatives may be allotted up to a total of three 
minutes maximum for closing statements.  Items requested/recommended for continuance are 
subject to Council’s consent at the meeting.) 

10. Consideration and Adoption of an Interim Urgency Ordinance of the Town Council of the 
Town of Los Gatos Extending the Water Conservation Urgency Ordinance for Ten 
Months and Fifteen Days. 

11. Provide Direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for 
Candidates for Town Council.  

ADJOURNMENT (Council policy is to adjourn no later than midnight unless a majority of Council 
votes for an extension of time) 

Page 4



Page 5 of 5 
 

Writings related to an item on the Town Council meeting agenda distributed to members of the Council within 
72 hours of the meeting are available for public inspection at the front desk of the Los Gatos Town Library, 
located at 100 Villa Avenue, and are also available for review on the official Town of Los Gatos website.  Copies 
of desk items distributed to members of the Council at the meeting are available for review in the Town Council 
Chambers. 

 

Note: The Town of Los Gatos has adopted the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6; litigation 
challenging a decision of the Town Council must be brought within 90 days after the decision is announced 
unless a shorter time is required by State or Federal law. 

 

Page 5



 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6832 
 www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 1 

 
   

DRAFT 
Minutes of the Town Council Meeting  

August 17, 2021 
 
The Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a regular meeting in person and 
provided the public an opportunity to participate either in public or via Teleconference on 
Tuesday, August 17, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Mayor Marico Sayoc, Vice Mayor Rob Rennie, Council Member Mary Badame, Council 
Member Matthew Hudes, Council Member Maria Ristow.   
Absent: None 
 
COUNCIL/TOWN MANAGER REPORTS  
Council Matters 
- Vice Mayor Rennie stated he attended the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

(BAAQMD) Board meeting; Green Foothills Coyote Valley webinar; Silicon Valley Clean 
Energy Authority (SVCEA) Risk Oversight Committee, Board, Legislative and Regulatory 
Committee meetings; Breathe California Show as a guest; Town Finance Commission 
meeting; Sierra Club Interview; Reid-Hillview Airport Airborne Lead Study webinar; Silicon 
Valley Bike Coalition Summit; Silicon Valley Housing Policy Leadership Academy; Valley 
Transportation Authority (VTA) Policy Advisory Committee meeting; and the Association of 
Indo Americans 75th Independence Day celebration.  

- Council Member Hudes stated he attended the Town Finance Commission meeting; 
Intergovernmental Infrastructure briefing; and Thursday Night promenade events. 

- Council Member Badame stated she attended two Democracy Tent community meetings; 
Town Finance Commission meeting as an observer; Stand in Solidary with Survivors of 
Sexual Violence march and rally; and Thursday Night Promenade events.  

- Council Member Ristow stated she had nothing to report.  
- Mayor Sayoc stated she attended the Santa Clara Cities Association meeting and a 

Quarterly meeting with the Los Gatos Chamber of Commerce.   
 
Manager Matters 
- Announced the Housing Element Advisory Board recruitment is underway; applications are 

due on September 10 by 4:00 p.m. 
- Announced the Town counters will open for walk-in services beginning August 30.  
- Announced the Let’s Talk Housing Community Meeting will be held on Wednesday, Aug 18.  
 

 

Page 6



PAGE 2 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
CONSENT ITEMS (TO BE ACTED UPON BY A SINGLE MOTION)  
1. Approve Closed Session Minutes of the August 3, 2021 Town Council Meeting.  
2. Approve Minutes of the August 3, 2021 Town Council Meeting. 
3. Receive the Fourth Quarter Investment Report (April through June 2021) for Fiscal Year 

2020/21. 
4. Appoint Mayor Marico Sayoc as the Town’s Voting Delegate and Vice Mayor Rob Rennie as 

the Town’s Alternate for the League of California Cities Annual Conference Scheduled for 
September 20 - 24, 2021 in Sacramento. 

5. Annexation Application AN21-001. Project Location: 16030 Winterbrook Road. Property 
Owner/Applicant: Alireza Zarrabi. 
Adopt a resolution to set a date for consideration of the reorganization of an uninhabited 
area designated as Winterbrook No. 6, approximately 0.319 Acres on property pre-zoned R-
1:8. APN 523-26-013. RESOLUTION 2021-037 

6. Authorize the Town Manager to Execute an Agreement for Consultant Services with O’Brien 
Code Consulting, Inc. for Building Division Plan Check Consultant Services. 

7. Authorize the Town Manager to execute an Agreement for Consultant Services with 
Interwest Consulting Group for Supplemental Building Division Plan Check Consultant 
Services.  

8. Authorize the Town Manager to execute a Second Amendment for a time extension only for 
an Agreement for Consultant Services with Mintier Harnish for Preparation of the General 
Plan update and Environmental Impact Report. 

9. Authorize the Town Manager to Execute the First Amendment to the Consultant Services 
Agreement with Mott MacDonald Group, Inc. for the Los Gatos Creek Trail to Highway 9 
Trailhead Connector Project (CIP No. 832-4505) in an Amount Not to Exceed $90,000 for a 
Total Contract Amount of $576,747. 

 
Opened public comment.  
 
No one spoke.  
 
Closed public comment. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Council Member Badame to approve Consent Items 1-9.  Seconded by 

Council Member Ristow. 
 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
Susan Burnett-Novick 
- Commented in opposition of increasing housing density especially in established 

neighborhoods.  
 

Page 7



PAGE 3 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Verbal Communications - continued 
 
Lee Fagot 
- Requested the Finance Commission or a new committee be tasked with researching 

cannabis tax as a potential revenue source; commented in opposition of the Town Attorney 
researching cannabis tax as a potential source of revenue.  

 
Mr. C.  
- Commented in opposition of Critical Race Theory (CRT).  

 
Rob Moore 
- Commented in support of increasing housing opportunities. 

 
Eden 
- Commented in opposition of the rainbow crosswalks, CRT, and the listen, learn, change, 

grow campaign and requested Mayor Sayoc resign.  
 
Lynley Hogan 
- Commented in opposition of “LGBTQ” as an organization.  

 
Tony Alarcon 
- Commend in opposition of adding more housing due to fire safety hazard.  

 
Cecil 
- Commented in opposition of CRT opposers.  

 
Joe 
- Commented in support of the environment and requested Los Gatos Creek clean-up 

assistance.    
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
10. Approve Addendum to the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 

Memorandum of Understanding.  
 
Lisa Velasco, Human Resources Director, presented the staff report.  
 
Opened public comment.  
 
No one spoke.  
 
Closed public comment. 
 

Page 8



PAGE 4 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Other Business item #10 - continued 
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Council Member Badame to approve an addendum to the American 

Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees Memorandum of 
Understanding as contained in Attachment 1.  Seconded by Vice Mayor Rennie. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
11. Discuss and Provide Direction on the Following Actions to Continue the Town’s Support of 

Economic Recovery and Community Vitality in Response to the Ongoing COVID-19 
Pandemic, Including:  
a. Temporary Krail Parklets:  

1. Extend Sunset Date for Dining Establishments until January 31, 2022 and Approve a 
Budget Adjustment of $40,000 from American Rescue Plan (ARPA);  

2. Provide Direction on Temporary Tents and Other Weather Protection Structures, 
Including Enforcement;  

b. Semi-Permanent Parklets:  
1. Allocate Additional Funding of $680,000 from the Town’s ARPA Allocation to Meet 

the Response of Businesses to the Subsidized Parklet and Grant Application Process; 
and  

c. Debrief the Chamber of Commerce’s Thursday Night Promenade Events in which the 
Town Provided Financial Support. 

 
Monica Renn, Economic Vitality Manager, presented the staff report.  
 
Opened public comment.  
 
Amy Davis, NUMU 
- Commented in support of extending the promenade events.   

 
Catherine Somers, Chamber of Commerce Executive Director 
- Commented in support of the item and extending promenade style events for Summer 

2022. 
 
Closed public comment. 
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
 
 

Page 9



PAGE 5 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Other Business item #11 - continued 
 
MOTION: Motion by Vice Mayor Rennie to approve an extended krail parklet sunset date for 

dining establishments until January 31, 2022 and approve a budget adjustment of 
$40,000 from American Rescue Plan (ARPA). Seconded by Council Member Hudes. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Council Member Badame to continue to disallow vertical barriers, 

banner, or shades of any kind, and temporary tents and other weather protection 
covers except for umbrellas and movable sail-type shade covers and those already 
permitted within the temporary krail parklets through the duration of the temporary 
krail parklet program; enforce these requirements through typical Code Compliance 
practices; and allow vertical components between parklets no taller than krail. 
Seconded by Council Member Hudes. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed 4/1, Vice Mayor Rennie opposed. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Vice Mayor Rennie to allocate additional funding of $680,000 from the 

Town’s ARPA allocation to meet the response of businesses to the Subsidized Parklet 
and Grant application process and to bring the item back to Council in three (3) 
months for updates. Seconded by Council Member Ristow. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Town Council provided a debrief regarding the Thursday Night Promenade events.  
 
The meeting recessed at 8:57 p.m. and began again at 9:07 p.m. 
 
12. Review the Fiscal Year 2021/22 – 2025/26 Capital Improvement Program Budget and 

Determine Any Additional Investments Based on Additional Funding Allocated for Capital 
Purposes. 

 
Matt Morley, Parks and Public Works Director, presented the staff report.  
 
Opened public comment.  
 
Maureen Capon-Javey, Arts and Cultural Commission 
- Commented in support of allocating funding for the two Public Arts projects.  

 
Tom Spilsbury, Arts and Cultural Commission 
- Commented in support of allocating funding for the two Public Arts projects.  

Page 10



PAGE 6 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Other Business item #12 - continued 

 
Ellis Weeker, Arts and Cultural Commission 
- Commented in support of allocating funding for the two Public Arts projects.  

 
Amy Fausnacht, Arts and Cultural Commission 
- Commented in support of allocating funding for the two Public Arts projects.  

 
Kevin Arroyo 
- Commented in support of allocating funding for the Union Avenue Community Garden 

project.  
 
Lynley Hogan 
- Requested other art installations to be considered if funding were allocated to the Public 

Arts projects.  
 
Mr. C 
- Commented in opposition of the proposed Public Art projects.  

 
Closed public comment. 
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Vice Mayor Rennie to return to Council with designs, including pricing, 

for security enhancements at the Civic Center; allocate $35,000 for the Union 
Avenue Community Garden project, $32,000 for two public art projects and seek 
additional community input, $75,000 for the Lynne Avenue Pedestrian Path Design, 
$200,000 for Blossom Hill Road Traffic Calming, and $400,000 for Downtown Parking 
Signage; and  utilize $500,000 during the 2021 winter season for fire fuel reduction 
but retain $250,000 for FEMA match.  Seconded by Council Member Ristow. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
13. Authorize the Town Manager to Execute Agreements for Justice, Equity, Diversity, and 

Inclusion (JEDI) Consultant Services: 
a. American Leadership Forum Silicon Valley Insights (ALF) for External Community Efforts 

with an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $54,000 from the General 
Fund Capital/Special Projects Reserve and 

b. ReadySet for Internal Town Organizational Work with an Expenditure Budget 
Adjustment in the Amount of $50,000 from the General Fund Capital/Special Projects 
Reserve. 

 

Page 11



PAGE 7 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Other Business item #13 - continued 
 
Holly Zappala, Administrative Analyst, presented the staff report.  
 
Opened public comment.  
 
Lynley Hogan 
- Commented in opposition of the item.  

 
Mr. C 
-  Commented in opposition of the item.  
 
Rob Moore 
- Commented in support of the item.  

 
Amy Davis, NUMU Executive Director 
- Commented in support if the item.  

 
Kefi 
- Commented in opposition of the item. 

 
Closed public comment. 
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Council Member Badame to authorize the Town Manager to execute 

agreements for justice, equity, diversity, and inclusion (JEDI) consultant services with  
American Leadership Forum Silicon Valley Insights (ALF) for external community 
efforts with an expenditure budget adjustment in the amount of $54,000 from the 
General Fund Capital/Special Projects Reserve and ReadySet for internal town 
organizational work with an expenditure budget adjustment in the amount of 
$50,000 from the General Fund Capital/Special Projects Reserve.  Seconded by 
Council Member Hudes. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
14. Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending the Los Gatos Town Code to 

Include Gender-Neutral Pronouns by Eliminating any Gender Preference Language Within 
the Los Gatos Town Code and Amending Sections Regarding Grammatical Interpretation to 
Indicate that Whenever a Gender-Neutral Personal Pronoun is Used, it Shall be Deemed to 
Include the Feminine and Masculine Also. 

Page 12



PAGE 8 OF 8 
SUBJECT: DRAFT Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of August 17, 2021 
DATE:  August 17, 2021 
 
Public Hearing item #14 - continued 

 
Shelley Neis, Town Clerk, presented the staff report.  
 
Opened public comment.  
 
Suzanne 
- Commented in opposition of the item.  

 
Closed public comment. 
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Council Member Ristow to introduce an ordinance amending the Los 

Gatos Town Code to include gender-neutral Pronouns by Eliminating any Gender 
Preference Language Within the Los Gatos Town Code and amending sections 
regarding grammatical interpretation to indicate that whenever a gender-neutral 
personal pronoun is used, it shall be deemed to include the feminine and masculine 
also, by title only.  Seconded by Vice Mayor Rennie. 

 

VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Town Clerk read the title of the ordinance.  
 
VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
No one spoke.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 11:15 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Jenna De Long, Deputy Clerk 

Page 13



 

PREPARED BY: Diego Mora 
 Assistant Planner 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, Community Development 
Department Director, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/7/2021 

ITEM NO: 2  

 
   

 

DATE:   August 20, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Annexation Application AN21-001. Project Location: 16030 Winterbrook 
Road. Property Owner/Applicant: Alireza Zarrabi. 
Adopt a resolution making determinations and approving the reorganization 
of an uninhabited area designated as Winterbrook No. 6, approximately 
0.319 Acres on property pre-zoned R-1:8. APN 523-26-013. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) making determinations and approving the reorganization of 
an uninhabited area designated as Winterbrook No. 6, approximately 0.319 acres, located at 
16030 Winterbrook Road (APN 523-26-013). 
 

BACKGROUND: 

The Town has an agreement with Santa Clara County that requires annexation of any property 
located within the Town's Urban Service Area boundary that is either contiguous to a Town 
boundary or within 300 feet of a Town maintained roadway if a use is proposed to intensify.  
The subject property is contiguous to a Town boundary.  Annexation has been requested in 
conjunction with a Building Permit to remodel an existing single-family residence and subject to 
approval of annexation of the property.  The total annexation area (0.319 acres) does not 
include any County street right-of-way. 
 
Section 56757 of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 
gives cities in Santa Clara County the authority to annex territory without application to and 
hearing by the Santa Clara County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO).   
 
The Town is required to hold a protest proceeding even if the area proposed for annexation is  
 

Page 14



PAGE 2 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Winterbrook No. 6/AN21-001 
DATE:  August 20, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
uninhabited (less than twelve registered voters) and all property owners have consented to the 
annexation.   
 
This Annexation was introduced at the August 17, 2021 Town Council meeting and the protest 
proceedings are set for September 7, 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The Town has received a petition requesting annexation to the Town of Los Gatos from Alireza 
Zarrabi, owner of the property at 16030 Winterbrook Road.  The property is located on the east 
side of Winterbrook Road in an unincorporated County pocket (Attachment 2). 
 
The property is in the Town's Urban Service Area, is contiguous to a Town boundary, and is pre-
zoned R-1:8 (Single-Family Residential, 8,000 square foot minimum lot size).  Annexation would 
allow Town services to be extended to the property and reduce the size of an existing County 
pocket.   
 
Because this is a 100 percent consent, uninhabited annexation (less than twelve registered 
voters), a public hearing is not required.  Required notice of the annexation was provided to 
Santa Clara County Planning and the County Library Service Area.  
 
COORDINATION: 

The preparation of this report was coordinated with the Santa Clara County Library District, 
Santa Clara County Infrastructure Development Division, LAFCO, Santa Clara County Assessor, 
Santa Clara County Surveyor, and the Santa Clara County Planning Division. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Once the annexation is certified by the State Board of Equalization, the Town will receive 
approximately 9.3 percent of the property taxes. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
The project is exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines under 
Section 15061(b)(3): Review for Exemption, in that it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment.  A 
Notice of Exemption will not be filed. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution (includes Exhibits A and B) 

Page 15



PAGE 3 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Winterbrook No. 6/AN21-001 
DATE:  August 20, 2021 
 
Attachments (continued):  

2. Location Map 

Page 16



 

 

Draft Resolution: subject to 
modification by Town Council 

based on  
deliberations and direction 

RESOLUTION 2021-  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 
OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 

MAKING DETERMINATIONS AND APPROVING THE REORGANIZATION 
OF AN UNINHABITED TERRITORY AREA DESIGNATED AS 

WINTERBROOK NO. 6 
 

APN: 523-26-013 
APPROXIMATELY 0.319 ACRES  

ANNEXATION APPLICATION: AN21-001 
PROPERTY LOCATION: 16030 WINTERBROOK ROAD   
PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: ALIREZA ZARRABI 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos has received a request for 

annexation of territory designated Winterbrook No. 6 from Alireza Zarrabi; and 

WHEREAS, the property, approximately 0.319 acres and includes no County street right-

of-way located at 16030 Winterbrook Road, APN: 523-26-013, is contiguous to a Town 

boundary and within the Town’s Urban Service Area; and 

WHEREAS, the following special district would be affected by the proposal: Santa Clara 

County Lighting Service Area; and Santa Clara County Library Service Area; and 

WHEREAS, the annexation would provide for use of Town services; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council enacted Ordinance 1267 in 1975 pre-zoning the subject 

territory with an R-1:8 (single-family residential, 8,000 square foot minimum lot size) zoning 

designation; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Los Gatos, as Lead Agency for environmental review for the 

reorganization, has determined annexation of the subject property is exempt from the 

California Environmental Quality Act guidelines, pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3); and 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Page 17



 

 

WHEREAS, the County Surveyor of Santa Clara County has found the description and  

map (Exhibit A and B) to be in accordance with Government Code Section 56757, the 

boundaries to be definite and certain, and the proposal to be in compliance with LAFCO’s road 

annexation policies; and 

WHEREAS, as provided in Government Code Section 56757, the Town Council of the 

Town of Los Gatos shall be the conducting authority for a reorganization including an 

annexation to the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the territory is uninhabited and all owners of land included in the proposal 

have consented to this annexation; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56662(a) provides that if a petition for annexation 

is signed by all owners of land within the affected territory the Town Council may approve or 

disapprove the annexation without a public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, evidence was presented to the Town Council; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos as 

follows: 

1. That it is the conducting authority pursuant to Section 56757 of the Government 

Code for the annexation of property designated as Winterbrook No. 6, more 

particularly described in Exhibits A and B; 

2. That the following findings are made by the Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos: 

a. Said territory is uninhabited and comprises approximately 0.319 acres; 

b. The annexation is consistent with the orderly annexation of territory within the 

Town’s Urban Service Area and is consistent with the Town policy of annexing 

when required by the Town’s agreement with the County of Santa Clara; 

Page 18



 

 

c. The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

under Title 14 Code of Regulations, Chapter 3: Guidelines for the 

Implementation of CEQA Section 15061(b)(3): Review for Exemption; 

d. The Town Council enacted Ordinance 1267 in 1975 pre-zoning the subject 

territory with an R-1:8 (Single-Family Residential, 8,000 square foot minimum lot 

size) zoning designation; 

e. The territory is within the Town’s Urban Service Area as adopted by the Local 

Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County; 

f. The County Surveyor has determined the boundaries of the proposed 

annexation to be definite and certain, and in compliance with the Commission’s 

road annexation policies.  The County Surveyor has been reimbursed for the 

actual cost incurred by the County Surveyor in making this determination; 

g. The proposed annexation will not create an island, and will facilitate provision of 

efficient municipal services; 

h. The proposed annexation does not split lines of assessment or ownership; 

i. The proposed annexation is consistent with the Town’s General Plan; 

j. The territory to be annexed is contiguous to a Town boundary; and 

k. The Town has complied with all conditions imposed by the Commission for 

inclusion of the territory in the Town’s Urban Service Area. 

3. That all owners of land within the affected territory have provided written consent 

to the reorganization and no subject agency has submitted written opposition to a 

waiver of protest proceedings; 

4. Pursuant to Section 56662(a) the Town waives protest proceedings; 

5. That upon completion of these reorganization proceedings the territory described in 

Exhibit A will be annexed to the Town of Los Gatos and will be detached from the 

Santa Clara County Library Service Area and Santa Clara Library Service Area; and 

6. That upon completion of these reorganization proceedings the territory reorganized 

will be taxed on the regular County assessment roll, including taxes for existing 

bonded indebtedness. 

Page 19



 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Los 

Gatos, California, held on the 7th day of September 2021, by the following vote: 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

AYES:           

NAYS: 

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

        SIGNED: 
    
 

                               MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
                       LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 
 
       DATE: ___________________ 
ATTEST: 
 
 
TOWN CLERK OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 
 
DATE: ___________________ 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S:\COUNCIL REPORTS\2021\09-07-21\Winterbrook No. 6\Attachment 1 - Resolution [Adopt].docx 

Page 20



EXHIBIT A
Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 22



EXHIBIT B
Page 23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 24



Los
Gatos

SH
OR

T
RD

BLOSSOM HILL RD

OLEANDER AVE

FAIRMEAD LN

CO
ST

AN

CES CT

STEPHENIE LN

ES
CO

BA
R

AV
E

W
INT

ER
BR

OO
K RD

JA
SM

INE
 W

AY

HIL
LB

RO
OK

 D
R

OLD BLOSSOM HILL RDATWOOD CT

LO
NG

WOO
D

DR

LILAC LN

MA
RY

 W
AY

CH
ER

RY
ST

ON
E

DR

¯
0 100

Feet

SARATOGA
CAMPBELL

LOS
GATOS

SAN
JOSE

·|}þ17

·|}þ85

LOCATION MAP
Los Gatos - Winterbrook No. 6

0.319 acres +/-
Prepared for the Office of the County Surveyor

May 27, 2021
August Hanks, County Surveyor

County of Santa Clara
Department of Planning and Development
County Government Center, East Wing
70 West Hedding St., 7th Floor
San Jose, California 95110

Area of Annexation 

Incorporated Lands 

Unincorporated Lands

Los Gatos
Winterbrook No. 6

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 
 

Page 26



 

PREPARED BY: Arn Andrews 
 Assistant Town Manager 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 3  

 

   
 

DATE:   August 23, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize the Town Manager to Execute an Agreement with ARC Document 
Solutions, LLC. for the Installation and Reproduction of Painted Panels for the 
Forbes Mill Mural Project with an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the 
Amount of $30,000 from the available General Fund Appropriated Reserve 
Fund 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Authorize the Town Manager to execute an agreement with ARC Document Solutions, LLC. for 
the installation and reproduction of painted panels for the Forbes Mill Mural Project with an 
expenditure budget adjustment in the amount of $30,000 from the available General Fund 
Appropriated  Reserve Fund (Attachment 1). 
 

BACKGROUND: 

Since the 1990’s, generations of Los Gatos youth have painted panels for the Forbes Mill 
Footbridge.  Every summer, young artists learn about Los Gatos history, visit local landmarks, 
and create their own artwork that captures “Life in Los Gatos.”  In order to withstand the 
elements and graffiti, starting in 2016 the artworks began being digitally reproduced and 
installed as vinyl panels.   
 
In 2016, the Town sought proposals for the initial production and installation of vinyl panels 
and ARC Document Solutions, LLC (ARC) was deemed the lowest responsible supplier.  The 
initial agreement was for 25 panels at a cost of $5,706.15.  There were two subsequent 
amendments for 36 additional panels ($7,597.82) and 25 panels ($5,964.83) for total 
compensation to date of $19,268.80.  Attachment 2 contains the initial agreement and 
amendments.  

Page 27



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Agreement for Forbes Mill Footbridge Mural Project 
DATE:  August 23, 2021 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 

Due to business disruptions related to the pandemic, the installation of the annual mural 
project was suspended in 2019.  The installation of panels is again ready to commence, and the 
Town has 82 panels of artwork representing: 2019 (33), 2020 (8), and 2021 (41).   
 
ARC Document Solutions continues to be the preferred provider for the project and has 
developed subject matter expertise regarding the specifics of panel installation for the 
footbridge.  As such, ARC received soul source status for this updated agreement.   The 
production and installation of the 82 panels is estimated at a not to exceed amount of 
$17,130.65 (Attachment 3).   
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends entering into a new agreement with ARC Document Solutions, LLC for the 
initial production and installation of 82 vinyl panels for the Forbes Mill Footbridge Mural 
Project. 
 
COORDINATION: 

This staff report was coordinated with the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance 
Director.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact of executing an agreement with ARC Document Solutions, LLC.  for the Forbes 
Mill Footbridge Mural Project would result in an expenditure budget adjustment in the amount 
of $30,000 from the available  General Fund Appropriated Reserve Fund.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

Attachments: 
1. Draft Agreement 
2. Prior Agreement and Amendments 
3. Current Proposal 

 

Page 28



 
1 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

PURCHASE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated for identification this 7th day of September 2021 and is made by and 
between TOWN OF LOS GATOS, a California municipal corporation, (“Town”) and ARC Document 
Solutions, LLC (“Supplier”), whose principal address is 1981 N. Broadway, Suite 385, Walnut Creek, 
CA 94596.  This Agreement is made with reference to the following facts.   
           

I. RECITALS 
 
1.1 Town sought proposals in 2016 for the initial purchase and installation described in this 

Agreement, and Supplier was found to be the lowest responsible supplier for this purchase. 
 
1.2 Supplier represents that it is a qualified and competent supplier of the items to be purchased 

under this Agreement. 
 
1.3 The Town desires to engage Supplier to produce panels that will display artwork 

transferred from digital images onto 41”x44” adhesive back vinyl, with a UV protection 
and graffiti/vandal proof coating.  The Supplier shall then install the adhesive panels in the 
location to the satisfaction of the Town Manager' s Office no later than October 31, 2021. 

 
1.4 The Supplier represents and affirms that it is qualified and willing to perform the desired 

work pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

II. AGREEMENTS 
 
2.1 Supplies and Terms.  Supplier hereby agrees to deliver to Town at the Forbes Mill Footbridge 

as per the items and materials described in Exhibits A and B, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference.   The terms and conditions are as follows: 

 
(1)   Price.  Town shall pay Supplier the amounts defined in Exhibit C, which include sales 

tax and delivery charges.  Payment shall be net 30 days from delivery. 
 
(2)   Installation.  The installation of the items and materials shall be no later than October 

31, 2021.  Installation shall be made between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on weekdays 
that are not Town holidays or furlough days.  The Supplier is responsible for 
identifying and installation date and time convenient and agreeable to the Town 
manager’s Office. 

 
2.2   Time of the Essence.  Prompt delivery of the items and materials is essential to this 

Agreement. 
 

Page 29



 
2 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

2.3 Scope of Services.  Supplier shall provide services as described in that certain Scope of Work 
in Exhibits A and B  and that certain Proposal sent to the Town on August 6, 2021 which are 
hereby incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit C.  

 
2.4 Time of Performance.  Notwithstanding Section 2.1(2), this agreement will remain in effect 

until December 31, 2022.   
 
2.5 Compliance with Laws.  The Supplier shall comply with all applicable laws, codes, ordinances, 

and regulations of governing federal, state and local laws.  Supplier represents and warrants 
to Town that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatsoever nature 
which are legally required for Supplier to practice its profession.  Supplier shall maintain a 
Town of Los Gatos business license pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Code of the Town of Los 
Gatos. 

 
2.6 Sole Responsibility.  Supplier shall be responsible for employing or engaging all persons 

necessary to perform the services under this Agreement. 
 
2.7 Information/Report Handling.  All documents furnished to Supplier by the Town and all 

reports and supportive data prepared by the Supplier under this Agreement are the Town’s 
property and shall be delivered to the Town upon the completion of Supplier's services or 
at the Town's written request.  All reports, information, data, and exhibits prepared or 
assembled by Supplier in connection with the performance of its services pursuant to this 
Agreement are confidential until released by the Town to the public, and the Supplier shall 
not make any of the these documents or information available to any individual or 
organization not employed by the Supplier or the Town without the written consent of the 
Town before such release.  The Town acknowledges that the reports to be prepared by the 
Supplier pursuant to this Agreement are for the purpose of evaluating a defined project, and 
Town's use of the information contained in the reports prepared by the Supplier in 
connection with other projects shall be solely at Town's risk, unless Supplier expressly 
consents to such use in writing.  Town further agrees that it will not appropriate any 
methodology or technique of Supplier which is and has been confirmed in writing by 
Supplier to be a trade secret of Supplier.  

 
2.8 Compensation.  Compensation for the supplies and materials delivered and for supplier's 

professional services shall not exceed $17,130.65 inclusive of all costs.  Payment shall be 
based upon Town approval of each task. 

 
2.9 Billing.  Billing shall be by invoice within thirty (30) days of the rendering of the services and 

shall be accompanied by a detailed explanation of the work performed by whom at what 
rate and on what date.  Also, plans, specifications, documents or other pertinent materials 
shall be submitted for Town review, even if only in partial or draft form.  

      

Page 30



 
3 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Payment shall be net thirty (30) days.  All invoices and statements to the Town shall be 
addressed as follows:   

 
Invoices:      
Town of Los Gatos 

 
 

Attn:  Accounts Payable 
P.O. Box 655 
Los Gatos, CA  95031-0655 
 

2.10 Availability of Records.  Supplier shall maintain the records supporting this billing for not less 
than three years following completion of the work under this Agreement.  Supplier shall 
make these records available to authorized personnel of the Town at the Supplier's offices 
during business hours upon written request of the Town. 

 
2.11 Assignability and Subcontracting.  The services to be performed under this Agreement are 

unique and personal to the Supplier.  No portion of these services shall be assigned or 
subcontracted without the written consent of the Town. 

 
2.12 Independent Contractor.  It is understood that the Supplier, in the performance of the work 

and services agreed to be performed, shall act as and be an independent contractor and not 
an agent or employee of the Town.  As an independent contractor he/she shall not obtain 
any rights to retirement benefits or other benefits which accrue to Town employee(s).  With 
prior written consent, the Supplier may perform some obligations under this Agreement by 
subcontracting, but may not delegate ultimate responsibility for performance or assign or 
transfer interests under this Agreement. Supplier agrees to testify in any litigation brought 
regarding the subject of the work to be performed under this Agreement.  Supplier shall be 
compensated for its costs and expenses in preparing for, traveling to, and testifying in such 
matters at its then current hourly rates of compensation, unless such litigation is brought by 
Supplier or is based on allegations of Supplier's negligent performance or wrongdoing.  

 
2.13 Conflict of Interest.  Supplier understands that its professional responsibilities are solely to 

the Town.  The Supplier has and shall not obtain any holding or interest within the Town of 
Los Gatos.  Supplier has no business holdings or agreements with any individual member of 
the Staff or management of the Town or its representatives nor shall it enter into any such 
holdings or agreements.  In addition, Supplier warrants that it does not presently and shall 
not acquire any direct or indirect interest adverse to those of the Town in the subject of this 
Agreement, and it shall immediately disassociate itself from such an interest, should it 
discover it has done so and shall, at the Town's sole discretion, divest itself of such interest.  
Supplier shall not knowingly and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that it does not 
employ a person having such an interest in this performance of this Agreement.  If after 
employment of a person, Supplier discovers it has employed a person with a direct or 
indirect interest that would conflict with its performance of this Agreement, Supplier shall 

Page 31



 
4 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

promptly notify Town of this employment relationship, and shall, at the Town's sole 
discretion, sever any such employment relationship. 

 
2.14 Equal Employment Opportunity.  Supplier warrants that it is an equal opportunity employer 

and shall comply with applicable regulations governing equal employment opportunity.  
Neither Supplier nor its subcontractors do and neither shall discriminate against persons 
employed or seeking employment with them on the basis of age, sex, color, race, marital 
status, sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or mental disability, national origin, religion, or 
medical condition, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification pursuant to the 
California Fair Employment & Housing Act. 

 
III. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
3.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance: 
 

i. Supplier agrees to have and maintain, for the duration of the contract, 
General Liability insurance policies insuring him/her and his/her firm to an 
amount not less than:  one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 

 
ii. Supplier agrees to have and maintain for the duration of the contract, an 

Automobile Liability insurance policy ensuring him/her and his/her staff to an 
amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit 
per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

 
iii. Supplier shall provide to the Town all certificates of insurance, with original 

endorsements effecting coverage.  Supplier agrees that all certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Town before work 
commences. 

 
iv. Supplier agrees to have and maintain, for the duration of the contract, 

professional liability insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000 which is 
sufficient to insure Supplier for professional errors or omissions in the 
performance of the particular scope of work under this agreement. 

 
General Liability: 

 
i. The Town, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 

as insured as respects:  liability arising out of activities performed by or on 
behalf of the Supplier; products and completed operations of Supplier, 
premises owned or used by the Supplier.  This requirement does not apply to 
the professional liability insurance required for professional errors and 
omissions. 

Page 32



 
5 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
ii. The Supplier's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the 

Town, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurances maintained by the Town, its officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers shall be excess of the Supplier's insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

 
iii. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 

coverage provided to the Town, its officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers. 

 
iv. The Supplier's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 

a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 

 
3.2 All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required in this item shall be endorsed to state that 

coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the Town.  Current certification of such insurance shall be kept on file at all 
times during the term of this agreement with the Town Clerk Administrator. 

 
3.3 Workers’ Compensation.  In addition to these policies, Supplier shall have and maintain 

Workers' Compensation insurance as required by California law and shall provide evidence 
of such policy to the Town before beginning services under this Agreement. Further, 
Supplier shall ensure that all subcontractors employed by Supplier provide the required 
Workers' Compensation insurance for their respective employees. 

 
3.4 Indemnification.  The Supplier shall save, keep, hold harmless and indemnify and defend the 

Town its officers, agent, employees and volunteers from all damages, liabilities, penalties, 
costs, or expenses in law or equity that may at any time arise or be set up because of 
damages to property or personal injury received by reason of, or in the course of performing 
work which may be occasioned by a willful or negligent act or omissions of the Supplier, or 
any of the Supplier's officers, employees, or agents or any sub-contractor.  

 
IV.  GENERAL TERMS 

 
4.1 Waiver.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder 

shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder, nor 
does waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement constitute a continuing waiver of 
a subsequent breach of the same or any other provision of this Agreement.  

 
4.2   Severability.  If any term of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in effect. 

Page 33



 
6 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
4.3 Warranty.  Supplier shall remedy any defects due to faulty materials and/or workmanship 

and pay for any damages to other work and/or existing facilities resulting therefrom which 
shall appear within a period of one year from the date of recording of final acceptance. 

 
4.4 Governing Law.  This Agreement, regardless of where executed, shall be governed by and 

construed to the laws of the State of California. Venue for any action regarding this 
Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the County of Santa Clara.  

 
4.5 Termination of Agreement.  The Town and the Supplier shall have the right to terminate this 

agreement with or without cause by giving not less than fifteen days (15) written notice of 
termination.  In the event of termination, the Supplier shall deliver to the Town all supplies 
and services scheduled to be delivered to Town within that fifteen (15) day period.   

 
4.6 Amendment.  No modification, waiver, mutual termination, or amendment of this 

Agreement is effective unless made in writing and signed by the Town and the Supplier. 
 
4.7 Disputes.  In any dispute over any aspect of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, including costs of appeal. 
 
4.8 Notices.  Any notice required to be given shall be deemed to be duly and properly given if 

mailed postage prepaid, and addressed to: 
   

Town of Los Gatos 
Attn:  Town Clerk 
110 E. Main Street 
Los Gatos, CA  95030 

 

ARC Document Solutions, LLC 
Prizcyla Chan, Account Executive 
821 Martin Avenue 
Santa Clara, CA 95050 
 

 
OR personally delivered to Supplier to such address or such other address as Supplier 
designates in writing to Town. 

 
4.10 Order of Precedence.  In the event of any conflict, contradiction, or ambiguity between the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement in respect of the Products or Services and any 
attachments to this Agreement, then the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 
prevail over attachments or other writings. 

 
/// 
 

Page 34



 
7 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

4.11    Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the complete and 
exclusive statement of the Agreement between the Town and Supplier. No terms, conditions, 
understandings or agreements purporting to modify or vary this Agreement, unless hereafter made 
in writing and signed by the party to be bound, shall be binding on either party. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Supplier have executed this Agreement.  
 
Town of Los Gatos by: 
 
 
 

Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 
 
 
Recommended by: 
 
 

Arn Andrews, Assistant Town Manager 

 
ARC Document Solutions, LLC by: 
 
 
 

By: 
 
 
 
 

Title 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 

Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 

Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
8 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
EXHIBIT A  

 
Scope of Work – Art Panel Production/Installation 

 
 
Digital photos taken of the artwork will need to be transferred onto a semi-permanent vinyl decal 
that is for outdoor use with a UV protection and graffiti/vandal proof coating.  It is the Town’s 
preference for the panels to have up to a 5-year lifespan.  The panels will be 41” x 44” and applied 
directly to the bridge in an area to be designated by the Town Manager’s Office.  Only a portion of 
the bridge’s current artwork will be replaced within the scope of this project.  Therefore, the 
vendor shall be responsible to coordinate with the Town on identifying which panels are to be 
replaced at this time.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
9 OF 9 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

EXHIBIT  B 
 

Summary of Scope of Work  
 
 

 Production transfer of 82 digital photos of artwork 

 41” x 44” semi-permanent vinyl decal panels for outdoor use with UV protection and 
graffiti/vandal proof coating 

 5-year life span 

 Panel installation  
 

Page 37



S
O

LD
 T

O
:

S
H

IP
 T

O
:

JOB DUE:
CONTACT PHONE PURCHASE ORDER# SALES REP

JOB# JOB NAME BILLER LOC

OP CODE DESCRIPTION
NO. OF

ORIGINALS COPIES SIZE
TOTAL
UNITS UM

UNIT
PRICE AMOUNT

SUB TOTAL DISCOUNT SALES TAX TOTAL DEPOSIT BALANCE DUE

TERMS:

ORDER NO. 1942625
821 Martin Ave
Santa Clara, CA 95050
408-736-7912

WORK ORDER# P1942625
ATTN: Hold for installer

Cust# 26260 TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV
ATTN: Arn Andrews 110 E Main Street
TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV Los Gatos, CA 95030
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
P.O.BOX 655
LOS GATOS, CA 95031

08/30/21 at 12:00PM Delivery/Shipping

Arn Andrews/TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENT (408) 354-6836  Forbes Mill Footbridge Panels  Prizcyla Chan

Forbes Mill Footbridge Panels Forbes Mill Footbridge Panels (35) Wade Opsal 017

2215 PRESENTATION COLOR - SETUP 1 1 1x1 1 EA 58.50
   File set-up and review, preflight,
   eProof and print set-up

2206.02 PRESENTATION COLOR - ADHESIVE BACK VINYL 82 1 41x44 1066 SF 8261.50
   Children's artwork - insert into black
   frame - enlarged to create the 41" x
   44' panels - ABV (IJ180)

4036 SURFACE LAMINATION 3 MIL 82 1 41x44 1066 SF 4690.40
   Anti-graffiti lam

4065.01 INSTALLATION (Non Taxable) 1 1 1x1 1 EA 2565.00
   Installation of (35) panels

5204 SPECIAL PACKAGING 1 4 1x1 4 EA 80.00
   Special packaging

2215.02 DTS - PROOF 1 1 1x1 1 EA 200.00
   Reduced size Hardcopy proof of each
   image - Gang print

5201.Z1a DELIVERY ZONE 1 REMOTE 1 1 z1a 1 EA 35.00
   95033-LOS GATOS

5205 FUEL SURCHARGE 1 1 1 EA 7.00
    ---------------------------- ORDER NOTES ----------------------------
    _

*HOLD FOR INSTALLER*

   -- ADDITIONAL DELIVERIES --
   PHOTOGRAPHS To CHRISTINA BERNASCONI
        TOWN OF LOS GATOS 24797 LOMA PRIETA AVE LOS GATOS, CA 95033

   Please mail payments to our NEW remit
   address: ARC Document Solutions, LLC
   9740 Research Drive Irvine, CA
   92618-4327 Thank you

15897.40 1233.25 17130.65 17130.65
Invoices undisputed for 45 days are final.

Net 30 Days 1942625

Please Remit To:   ARC Document Solutions, LLC  9740 Research Drive Irvine, CA 92618
KA

EXHIBIT C

Page 38



© 2019 ARC Document Solutions, LLC 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

These Terms and Conditions and the Estimate to which they are attached (collectively, the 
“Agreement”) constitute the entire agreement between ARC Document Solutions, LLC (“ARC”), 
and the customer identified in the Estimate (“Customer”).   

1. SERVICES. Customer agrees for ARC to perform the services and/or provide the 
materials and goods described in the Estimate (“Services”), which is incorporated by reference. 
ARC will provide all management, supervision, labor, materials, tools, equipment, facilities, and 
elevation plans necessary to perform its obligations hereunder. Customer is responsible for 
providing all drawings, plans, specifications and/or other documentation reasonably required for 
ARC to perform the Services (collectively, “Documents”). Customer acknowledges that the 
installation costs set forth in the Estimate include a predetermined amount of travel required to 
perform the Services and that change orders, construction delays, limiting on-site conditions, or 
other forces outside of ARC’s control may result in unforeseen additional travel or costs for which 
Customer will be liable. ARC will promptly notify Customer of any change in the cost of the Services 
based on the availability of materials and ARC will not commence work until it has received 
Customer’s written consent regarding any such increased costs and a change order is issued. The 
Services do not include fees and costs for de-installation and/or removal of materials installed as 
part of the Services. 

2. CHANGE ORDERS. Customer is solely responsible for notifying ARC of any required 
or desired changes to the Services by submitting a written change order to ARC specifically 
referencing this Agreement and detailing the requested changes. ARC will promptly notify Customer 
of any resulting increase in the cost of the Services and ARC will not commence work under a 
change order until it has received Customer’s written consent regarding any such cost increase. 
ARC’s time for performing the Services will be extended as reasonably necessary to accommodate 
any change order and in no event will ARC be liable for any resulting time overruns.  

3. ELEVATION PLANS & PROOFS OF CONCEPT.  ARC will not be liable for any issues 
resulting from discrepancies between the Documents and the actual build environment. In the event 
that Customer instructs ARC to rely on Customer’s dimensions and measurements rather than 
allowing ARC to perform a site survey to field verify such dimensions, measurements and site 
conditions prior to production and fabrication, Customer will be solely liable for any inaccuracies in 
Customer-approved elevation plans and additional expenses incurred therefrom. Customer shall 
provide ARC with a proof of concept upon request during the initial development and concept phase, 
and, if applicable, an additional proof of concept following approval of the final architectural drawings 
and documents. 

4. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES. In addition to the responsibilities set forth above, 
Customer is solely responsible for: (a) the content of all Documents; (b) obtaining any licenses, 
permits and/or consents necessary for ARC to perform the Services; and (c) immediately notifying 
ARC of any material changes to the Documents which may affect the Services. ARC’s ability to 
perform the Services will not be contingent upon ARC entering into any subcontractor or other third-
party agreement. If any part of the Services are to be performed at a Customer-specified location, 
Customer is solely responsible for providing ARC with access to such location. Services which are 
part of a larger construction project will not be scheduled or performed until Customer provides ARC 
with the complete and most recent Documents or a hyperlink to access the Documents.   

5. LOW/NO-VOC PAINT DISCLAIMER.  Paints with no or low amounts of volatile organic 
compounds (“VOC”) are known to cause issues with adhesion when installing vinyl graphics using 
traditional methods. Accordingly, if Customer cannot meet the minimum condition required for 
adhering wall graphics to any surface prior to installation, ARC reserves the right to decline the 
installation and/or hire a qualified tradesman to bring the surface to ARC’s minimum standards. 
Should Customer refuse to allow ARC to prime or otherwise treat such a surface, Customer will be 
solely responsible for any additional costs for material, labor or otherwise which ARC may incur on 
account of adhesion issues. 

6. COMPLIANCE. Each party represents and warrants that, during the term of this 
Agreement, it will comply with all laws applicable to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

7. FEES & PAYMENT; TAXES.  Customer will pay all fees as specified in this Agreement 
in U.S. Dollars. Except as otherwise provided herein, fees are non-cancellable and non-refundable. 
Fees for the Services are due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice without deduction of any 
kind. Any late payments will be subject to a service charge equal to 2% per month of the amount 
due or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is less. All returned checks will be assessed 
a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50.00). The amounts payable to ARC are exclusive of any sales, use, excise, 
value added, import, business, service, goods and services, consumption, withholding or other 
applicable taxes, tariffs or duties (“Taxes”). Customer is solely responsible for payment of all Taxes 
except for any taxes based solely on ARC’s net income.  

8. TERM & TERMINATION.  The term of this Agreement will commence upon the date 
that Customer signs the Estimate and will continue until ARC informs Customer in writing that the 
Services are complete, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. Either party may terminate 
this Agreement for cause upon thirty (30) days’ written notice (ten (10) days in the event of non-
payment) to the other party of a material breach of this Agreement if such breach remains uncured 
at the expiration of such notice period. Except as otherwise provided herein, upon termination of 
this Agreement by either party, ARC will refund Customer any prepaid fees for unperformed 
Services and make all completed work available for Customer to pick up; Customer will not be 
entitled to incomplete work performed as part of the Services. Termination will not relieve Customer 
of the obligation to pay any fees accrued or payable to ARC prior to termination.  If (a) Customer’s 
account is thirty (30) days or more overdue or (b) Customer is in material breach of its obligations 
hereunder, in addition to any of its other rights or remedies, ARC reserves the right to suspend the 
Services, without liability to Customer or any third party, until such amounts are paid in full, including 
any late payment fee, or until such material breach is cured to ARC’s reasonable satisfaction. 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY. Both parties acknowledge that in the course of performance 
hereunder, they may have access to confidential or proprietary information of the other party 

(“Confidential Information”). Each party agrees to use Confidential Information only as necessary 
to fulfill their respective obligations hereunder and to hold such Confidential Information in 
confidence, except such disclosure as may be required by law. Each party agrees that it will treat 
all Confidential Information with at least the same degree of care as it accords to its own 
Confidential Information, but not less than reasonable care. Following termination of this 
Agreement, neither party will be required to maintain Confidential Information of the other party and 
may destroy such Confidential Information unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 

10. LIMITED WARRANTY. ARC represents and warrants that the Services will be 
performed in a professional and workmanlike manner and materially in accordance with the 
Documents. This limited warranty will survive for a period of one (1) year from installation or delivery 
by ARC and does not cover issues or failure resulting from abuse, misuse, alteration, acts of nature 
or disaster, unauthorized repair or installation, or use of the Services in deviation from the 
Documents or this Agreement. Subject to Section 5, ARC’s sole liability (and Customer’s exclusive 
remedy) for any breach of this warranty will be, in ARC’s sole discretion and at no charge to 
Customer, (a) to use commercially reasonable efforts to correct the reported non-conformity or, if 
ARC determines that is unviable, (b) to refund Customer an amount commensurate with the 
reported non-conformity. 

11. DISCLAIMER. THE ABOVE WARRANTY IS CUSTOMER’S EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY AND REPLACES ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS 
OF DESIGN, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY 
WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED ABOVE, 
CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS.” CUSTOMER 
WILLBE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THAT CUSTOMER’S PROPOSED USE 
OF THE SERVICE COMPLIES WITH APPLICABLE LAWS IN CUSTOMER’S JURISDICTION(S). 
If installation is not part of the Services, Customer assumes all risk of loss associated with 
installation upon delivery or acceptance of the Services. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION. ARC will indemnify and hold Customer, its officers, directors, 
agents and employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, damages, losses, 
expenses, claims or judgments made by third parties, including reasonable attorneys' fees 
(collectively “Claims”), arising out of bodily injury or death or damage to or loss of property caused 
by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of ARC. Customer will indemnify and hold ARC, its 
officers, directors, agents and employees harmless from and against any Claim arising out of (a) 
bodily injury or death or damage to or loss of property allegedly caused by acts or omissions of 
Customer, its employees, agents or third parties, (b) any claim that the ARC’s use of the Documents 
in providing the Services infringes or violates the copyright, trademark, patent, trade secret, or other 
rights of a third party, or (c) a breach of any representation, warranty, or obligation of Customer 
under this Agreement. 

13. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED 
AND WHETHER ARISING UNDER CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHER THEORY OF LIABILITY, 
EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. ARC’S 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT 
EXCEED THE AMOUNTS ACTUALLY PAID BY CUSTOMER HEREUNDER. 

14. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. Customer and ARC are and at all times will be 
and remain independent contractors as to each other. At no time will either party be deemed to be 
the agent or employee of the other party, and no joint venture, partnership, agency or other similar 
relationship will be created or implied by virtue of this Agreement. 

15. MODIFICATION. This Agreement may only be amended, modified or supplemented 
by an agreement in writing signed by each party hereto. 

16. SUBCONTRACTORS AND ASSIGNMENT. ARC may subcontract the provision of the 
Services, or any part thereof, including installation, to subcontractors selected by ARC. Customer 
will not assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights, or delegate or otherwise transfer any of its 
obligations or performance, under this Agreement. ARC may freely assign or otherwise transfer all 
or any of its rights, or delegate or otherwise transfer all or any of its obligations or performance, 
under this Agreement without Customer’s consent.  

17. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION. This Agreement will be governed by the 
laws of the State of California without giving effect to any conflict of law provision. Any legal claim, 
suit, action or proceeding arising out of this Agreement will be instituted exclusively in the courts of 
the State of California in the City and County of San Francisco.  

18. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS; WAIVER OF JURY. The prevailing party in any 
action to enforce or interpret this Agreement will be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs incurred in such action. To the extent permissible, the parties hereby waive their 
rights to a trial by jury and acknowledge that such waiver is part of the consideration supporting 
this Agreement, without which, the parties would not have entered into this Agreement. 

19. NOTICES. Notices to be given or submitted by either party to the other pursuant to this 
Agreement will be in writing and directed to the addresses in the Estimate or as otherwise provided 
to the other party in writing and will be deemed to have been given (a) when delivered by hand 
(with written confirmation of receipt), or (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally 
recognized overnight courier (receipt requested) or by certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid. Copies of all notices to ARC will be sent to: ARC Document Solutions, 
LLC, Attn: Legal Department, 12657 Alcosta Blvd., Suite 200, San Ramon, CA 94583. 

 

Page 39



 

Customer Name:________________________     Name and Title:____________________________

*All work done pursuant to this Estimate is subject to the attached Terms and Conditions. By signing 
this Estimate, you agree to pay for the work and services detailed in the above (subject to change 
based on availability and pricing of materials) and that you have read, understand and agree to the 
Terms and Conditions.

            Signature:________________________   Date:____________________________  

Page 40



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT is dated for identification this day of

October, 2017 and amends that certain agreement made by and between the Town of Los Gatos,

Town,")and the ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTTONS, LLC (" Consultant"). .

RECITALS

A" Town and Consultant entered intoa Purchase and Service Agreement on February29, zOfG

Agreement"), a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as

Attachment 1 to this Amendment.

B. Town desires to amend the agreement to extend the term and provide additional

compensation.

AM EN DM ENT

1. Section 2.l Supplies and Terms is amended to read as follows:

Supplier hereby agrees to deliver to Town at the Forbes Mill Footbridge as per the items

and materials described herein as well as in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and

incorporated by reference. The terms and conditions are as follows:

o (1) Price. Town shall pay Supplier the amounts defined in Exhibit B, which

include sales tax and delivery charges. Payment shall be net 30 days from

delivery.

2) lnstallation. The installation of the items and materials shall be no later

than June 30, 2018. lnstallation shall be made between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00

p.m. on weekdays that are not Town holidays or furlough days. The Supplier

is responsible for identirying an installation date and time convenient and

agreeable to the Town Manager' s Office. lnstallation of panels shall be

completed within 15 days from Supplier' s receipt of approval of e-proofed

artwork from the Town.

2. Section 2.3 Scooe of Services is amended to read as follows:

Supplier shall provide services as described in that certain Scope of Work - Exhibits A and

B and which are incorporated herein by reference and attached.

3. Section 2.4 Time of Pe rformance is amended to read as follows:

The services to be performed are as follows: The Supplier shall transfer digital images of

artwork onto 41" x 44" adhesive vinyl panels. The Supplier shall then install the

adhesive panels in the location to the satisfaction of the Town Manager' s Office no later

than Ju ne 30, 2018.

4. Section 2.8 Compensation is amended to read as follows:

m_ft.2V
r+{

Compensation for the supplies and malerials delivered and for the Supplier's professional

services shall not exceed 515, 920. 26,' inclusive of all costs. Payment shall be based upon

Town approval of each task.

Second Amendment ARC Document Solutions

ATTACHMENT 2
Page 41



5. All, othEr t€rms. and condltlons of tle Agrcement remaln ln tr ll totue and effecr

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consuhsnt have executed thts Amendment.

Town of Gatos Approved as to Cqnsent:

By:

La I Prcvetti, Manager

D. Wr'ovl
DeparEnenf,Approval:

At n Andreu/ s, AsslstantTown Manager

Approved as to Form:

Rob€ rtSch Attomey Shelley Nels, C, dert Admin

ABest

wLtvwf,
witeopqv twlw(L,

areQWore < c,rffiv-/

l7

4

Second AmendnrentARC Document Solutions

Page 42



fr<c

Cust# 26260

ATTN: Christina Gilmore

TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

P.O.BOX 655

LOS GATOS, CA 95031

JOB DUE:

This quote is valid for 30 days from the date listed above. Pricing is subject to change.

QUOrE# 1381857

QUOTE DATE O9I2OI17

WORK ORDER#

Cust# 26260

ATTN: HOLD FOR INSTALLER

TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

P.O.BOX 6s5

LOS GATOS, CA 95031

P1381857

Del

821 Martin Ave

Santa Glara, CA 95050

408-736-7912

dFoJoo
oF(!

t)

CONTACT

Christina Bemasconi/TOwN OF LOS ( 408) 354-6833 Forbes Mill Footbridge Panels

SALES REP

llene Goudie - ISR

Forbes Mill Footbridge Panels

JOB#

Forbes tr/ill Footbridge Panels ( 25)

JOB NAME

Wade Opsal

BILLER LOC

017

2206. 02

4036

4065.01

5204

2215. 02

2215 PRESENTATION COLOR. SETUP

File set-up and review, preflight,

eProof and print set- up

PRESENTATION COLOR. ADHESIVE BACK VINYL

Children' s aftwork - inseft into black

frame - enlarged to create the 41" x

44' panels - ABV ( lJ1 80)

SURFACE LAMINATION 3 MIL

Anti- graffiti lam

INSTALLATION ( Non Taxable)

lnstallation of ( 36) panels

SPECIAL PACKAGING

Special packaging

DTS - PROOF

Reduced size Hardcopy proof of each

image - Gang print

HOLD
FOR INSTALLER-

ORDER NOTES

25

25

2

1x1

41x44

4'1x44

1x1

1x1

1x1

2

325

325

EA

SF

SF

EA

EA

EA

2291. 25

1300.00

1725.00

40. 00

200. 00

58.50

This quote is based on our evaluation of the requirements to

TERMS: Net 30 Days

Please Remit To: ARC P.O. Box 192224 San Francisco, CA 941 ig-2224
JR

as described above.

1 381 857

SUB TOTAL

5614. 75

DISCOUNT SALES TAX

350. 08 5964. 83

TOTAL DEPOSIT BALANCE DUE

5964. 83

the

OP CODE DESCRIPTION coPtEs IsrzE UM AIiOUNT

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I

Page 43



EXHIFTT A

Scope of Wo* - Art Panel Froduction/lnstallatlon

DlSitai ptrobs have Een taken of the afif/Ark ard will neei to be hansfuned orto a
ssrnLpermanent vinyl decal that is for ouHoor we with a W proGctbn ard

graffii/v4ndal proof coatleg. , lt is tlle Town' s.preference for the parels'to have up to a 5-

lrear fiftspan. The panels wi[ be 41'x44' and applied dircdlyb ftg bridge inan area to

be designrated by the Town Managet's Offioe. Only a portb4 of tho btiilge' s cunent

artuork'will 'be. replaqed, wtthin the 6cop€ of this proiect. TtrErefore; the tendor Bhall be

responsibb tb coodahete wlth the Town on identi$ ing which panels ara to be replace.d

atlhis time.

Page 44



E'SIIBIT B

ScoF of tllor* Summary

r .Produdgn tiansferof 25 didtal pho,tsgof artutort

41\4{ semi- pennanent vinyl deca! parrels for ouEoor use with W pmtec{ ion

and gratrltWardal pr.oof coatirg

c 5 year life span

Pan0l' lnstalla0ofi ( please ce lcuHe., qoparate, fiom prod ucfion )

Page 45



AGR lL?.aO5

AJVTENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT is dated for identificstion this 66 day of
Scptembcr, 2016 and amends that certain sgrccncnt by and bctwecn the.Town of [. os Catos,

Tonm,") and the Arc Document Solutions, [ tC. l"Consuttant.') datod 29rb of Febnrary, 2016.

RECITALS

A. Town and Consultant entered into I Purchrsc and Scrvice Agreernent on February 29,

2016. (" Agrccme- nt"), a copy of which is attached herelo and incorporatcd by reference as

Attscbmcnt I to this A:ne,ndment.

B. Town desires to amend the Agreement lo providc additional compensation for 36

additional pancl installations.

AMEI{ DMENT

l. Section 2.8 Compcnsation is amended to read as follows:

Compensation for tbc srpplies asd materials delivered and for the Supplier' s professional

services shdl not erceed $ 13304. 97, inclusive of all costs. Paymcnt shall be bascd upon

Town approval ofcach rask.

2. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement rcrnain in full force and effcct.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Amcndment.

To*'n of [.os Gatos Approved as to Consent:

By:

Prevetti, Managcr Drlantha

Approved as to Form: Attcst:

d?wdwaat+'" a $ nlr*
Robert Schultz, To*'n Altorney Shelley Neis,

Clerk Administrator

AGR 16.0]4 ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS

lof

IHH

Page 46



the as above.

t r329r0

RC
821 tlartin Ave

Santa Clara, CA 95050

18.736.79t2

WORK ORDER#

Cust# 26260

ATTN: HOLD FOR INSTALLER

TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

P.O.BOX 655

LOS GATOS, CA 95031

ouorE# 1132910

QUOTE DATE 09/06/16

Pl 1 3291 0

CusH 26260

ATTN: Christina Gitmore

TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

P.O.BOX 655

LOS GATOS, CA 95031

DUE:

This quote is valid for 30 days from the date listed above. Pricing is to change.

This is based on our evaluation of the

TERilS: Net30 Days

Please Remit To: ARC P.O. Box 192224 San Francisco, CA 9411

NO

oF
sr
U'

6Fo)
oU'

C. Gilrnore/TOWN OF LOS GATOS ( 408) 3s4-6833 Foot Graphics - Round 3 Matt Maratsos

Foot Bridge Graphics - Round Foot Bridge Graphics - Round 3

JOB

Alan Scheer 017

2202. O4

4065.01

2202.04

2215

5204

VINYL WRAP

Adhesive backect vinyl ( lJ 180) with an

anti gntfiti laminotian.

INSTALIATION

lnstalletion of ebova mentioned

graphics on n o Los Gafos foot Nidge.

V'NYL WRAP

Had @py ptoof of each ol lho imag€s.

Pt,cf is bas8d per order placed.

PRESENTATION COLOR . SETUP

SPECIAL PACI( AGNG

Spociol packdging

S:\Riot ColorlGobr Dept\ O4- 21- 16\ Town of Los Gatos
HOLD

FOR INSTALLER-

ORDER NOTES

l

41x44

41\44

lxl

1

1

36

36

EA

EA

EA

EA

EA

4932 00

1944. 00

80.00

10 50

20 00

SUB TOTAL

6986. 50

DISCOUNT SALES TA- X

611.32

rOTAt

7597. 82

OEPOSIT BAI- ANCE OUE

7597. 82

1

Altouxr

36

36

I

11

J

BILLER

xo. oFOPCODE OESCRIPTION coPtEs slzE * l ux
Uil]T

PRICE

Page 47



c aY

PURCHASE AND SERVICE .{ GREEMENT

THIS ACREEMENT (" Agreement") is datod firr ideotrfication this 29th day of February, 2016 and

is madc by and between TOWN OF LOS GATOS, a California municipal corporatioq (" Town")

aad ARC DOCIIMENT SOLUIIONS, LLC, a Texas limited liabiliry compatry witb its principal

place of busiuess at l9tl N. Broadway, Suite 385, Walnut Creelc, California 94596 (" Supplier").

This Agreement is made wi& referencc to the following facts. This contract will rmnin rn effcct

from February 29,2016 to May 31,2017.

I. RECITALS

l.l Town sought quotations for the purchase described in this Agreement, and Supplier was

found to be the lowest resporuible supplier for tbis purchasc.

t.2 Supphcr represents that it is a qualilicd and competcnt srpplier of the items to be purchased

under this Agreement.

1.3 Thc Town desire to engage Supplicr to produce 25 panels that will display artwork

u'ansfened onto a 41"x44" adhesive back vinyl, IIV Graffiti laminated sigh. The work will

al.so include insrallation of the panels onto the Forbes Mill Footbridgc.

1.4 The Supplier rcpreseffs and affums tbat it is qualified and willing to perform the desired

work punsuant to this Agreement.

II. AGR.EEMENTS

2.1 Sugplies and Termt. Supplier hereby agrces to deliver Io Town 8l the Forbes

Mill Footbridge as pcr the items and materials described rn Exhibit A, which is attached

hcreto and incorponated by rcfereoce. Thc tcrms and coaditions are as follows:

l) Pricc. Town shall pay Supplier ths amounts defined in Exhibit B, which include

sales tax and delivery charges. Payment shallbe net 30 days from delivery.

2) lnsmllatron. Ihe rnstalladon of the itams and meterials shall be no later than May

Sl, 2AlT. lnsullation shall be made bctweeu 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m, oD wwkdays

that ar€ not TowD holidays or furloug! days. The Supplier is responsiblc to identi$'

an installation date and rime convenient and agreeable by & e Towr Mannger' s

Office. Installatron of pancls shall be compteted within 15 days from Supplicr' s

receipt of approval of c-proofcd artwork frorn the Town.

2.2 Time of thc Essence. Prompt dclivery of the rtems and materiats is esscntial to

this Agreement.

Scope of Services. Supplier shall provide services as descriM in that cenain Scope

of Work -- Exhibits A and B which are incorporated bcrcrn by rcference and attached.

2.3

Page 48



2.4

2.5 Comglia e with Laws. The Supplier phall comply with all applicablc laws,

codes, ordinances and regulations of goveminp federal, state aad local laws, Supplier

rryresent$ and warrnnts io Tsum that it haq all licenses, pernri8, qualifications and

approvals of whatsoever nature whieh are fegally rquired for Supplier b practice

its profession. Supplier shall mainuin a Town iof Los Gaos br.rsiness liccnse pltsra: lt lo

Chapter 14 of thc Code sf &e Towu of Los Gatqs.

l2..4 Solg Responsibilitv. Supplicr shaI bc resporuiblc for vrnploying or * ngagirg all

pcrsons ncc€ ssaly ro perform thc scrvics undir ttris Agrecment,

2;i lnformation/ Rq: orr Hsndling. All docunenh furnished to Supplier by the Town

and all r€ports and supportive data prepared by & e Supplier under this Agrsemenr are

the Town' s propaty and shall bc dclivsred to tlp Town upon thr complaion of

SupplieCs scrvicss or at lhe Toxn's vvritt€n foguesl. AII rcpons, infiorrnation, data,

and exhibits prtparcd or asseilxrblcd by Suppllu in connection with the performanc+ of

its servic? s pursu& nl to this Agreement are confidential until released by the Town to

thc public, and thc Supptier shall not make any of the these documents or information

avaikble to any rndivrdrnl or orgrmzation nol ernptoyed by thc Supplier or the Town

withcut the written consent of the Town before such rclease. The Tonn

acknowldges that the repCIrts to be propared by the Supplier pursuant tc this

Agrecrnent are for lhe purpose of waluating 4 defined project, rnd the Town' s use of

e information coataired in the reports prppared by the Supplier in connection

with o*rer prqects shall be solely at Tgwn's risL unless Sup'glier cxpressly

consenrs ro such use in { riting" Town frtrther agrecc that it will not apprepriale

any ma: hodolss/ or techniqucof Supplier which is and tras been confirmed in rvriting

by Supplicr to be a rade secret of Supplier.

3 Compcnsatioq. Coqpcasalion for & c supplics qnd materials dclivered ard for Sqpiier' s

prcfersional services chell rot sxed f,5,706. 1$, inclusive of all coes. Palmrert slrall be

ba*ed upon Town ap,proval of each ash.

2.9 Billi$ S. Silling shall be by invoice vithin thirry (30) days of the rendcring of thc

services ard shall be accornpomed by a detailsd explaration of & e work pcrfina* d bV

whsn rt what rats ard m what darc. Also, plans, speciflrxtiurs, documesls sr u&er

peflinent matedals shall be subrnitted for Tourp revi€w, ever if only in partial or dreff

tbrr*, PaymEnt shall be net thirty { 30} dap. All invoices and statements to the Town

shallbs ddressed as follows:

Invoices; Towa of LosGatos

Attn: AcccrmtsPayable

P,O. Box 655

Los Gatos, CA 95031-0655

000? 6tll. RTf; l 1 2

l

ITigeof Per. fo.lu.g,n$p. ? he sarvicss to be lperformed are as follows: The Supplier

shall tralrsfer digiral images of artrvo* onto 4 I fxiH" adhesive vinyl pancls. The Supplier

sball thco install & e adhesive p*nels is fu location to th€ satishceiou of the Town

Managcfs OfEcc no late than May 31, 2017. 
f

Page 49



10 Ayqilability of Records. Supplier shall mainuir & e records suppofing this billing

for not less than three ( 3) years follou' ing completion of the work under this Agreement.

Supplier shall make ihese records available to autlorized personnel of the Town al the

Supplicr' s offrces during business hours upon wrimen request of Ote Town.

2.ll Assipnability - an{ Subcontractine. The ser. ices to be pcrhrmed under lhis

Agrecrnent are unlque and personal to &e Supplier. Noportionofthese services

shallbe assigred or subcontracted without the written consent of the Town.

2.12 lndependent Contractor. lt rs understood that the Supplicr, in rhc performance ol' thc

rrork and services agreed to be per{ ormed, shall act as and be an independerx

corlr? cltrxrd not an agcnt or emplolrce of the Torm. As an indcpendent conhactor

he/she shall not obtain any rights to retirement benefits or other benefi: s which accruc tn

Town cmployee( s). With prior writlen consenl lhe Supplier may pcrforr: r som€

obligations under this Agreement by subconu' acting, but may not dclegate ultimate

respomibiiity for performance or assign or transfer interests under this Agre€ m€nl.

Supplier agrees ro testifu in any litigation brought rcgarding the subjcct of the work

to bc perlbrmcd under thrs Agrccment. Supplier shall be compensated for its costs and

exletlsrs rn prepariug for, traveling to, and testiling in such matters at its then cturent

houdy ra:cs of compensati,on, unless such litigation is bmught by Supplier or is based on

allegaticas of Supplier' s negligent performance or wrongdoing.

13 Conllict of lnterest. Supplier understands that its professional responsibilities are

solely 1o the ? own, The Supplier has and shall not obtain any holding or interest within

thc To*'n of Los Gatos, Supplier has no business holdings or agresments wrth any

individuai member of the Staff or management of the Town or its representatives nor

shal) it enter illo any such holdings or agreements. ln addition, Supplier warrants that

it does nol presentiy and shall not zcquire any direct or indirect interest adverse to

hose of the Town in the subject of this Agre€rnent, and it shall immediately

disassociate itself frcrm such an intcrest, should it discover i1 has dsne so and shall, at

the Town's soie discrelion, divest ilself of such interesr. Supplier shall not knowingly

and shall take reasrnablc steps ro ensure that it does not employ a person having

such an interest ir: this performance of rhis Agreement. lf after ernployment of a

pcrson, Supplier discovers it has ernploycd a person with a dinr-ct or indirect interest

that would conflict with its performance of this Agreernenl, Supplier shall promptly

notif Town of this ernployment relationship, and shall, at the lown' s solo discration,

sever any such employment relationship.

2.14 Eoua! Ergglofnent Onpornrnitv. Supplier warrants thal il is an equal oppomuriry

employcr and shall comply with applicable regulations goveming equal e.mplo) ryncnt

opponrurity" Nei0rer Supplirr nor its subcontractors do and neither shall discriminste

agains! persons cmployed or seeking employmenr with them on the basis of age, ssx,

color, racco manmi setus. sexual orientation, ancesry, physical or mcrrlal disability.

nalional origin, religion, or medical condition, unless based upo: r a bona fide

occupational qualifcaticn pursuant to the California Fair Emplcyment & Housing Act.

J1000761tI r.Rl t. l

Page 50



III. INSURANCTANT' TNDEMNITICATION

l.l futinimurn Scope aflnsurance:

11.

1,

General Liabiliry:

n.

Supplier agrees lo Lsve aod malntaln, for &c dwation of tbe contracl,

Cereral Liabiliry insurance policies in$dag him&er and his/hcr firm o an

amount not less thal: one million dollars ($ 1,m0,000) combincd single limit

per occurerce for bodily injury, personal injury aad prcpery damage.

Supplier agroes to have and maintais for & c duration of the conracq an

Automobile Liebility insurarrce policy easuring him&er and hislber suff to

an arnount nol less than one million dollars { 51,000, 000) combiaed single

limit per accideat for bodily iajury and property damage-

Supplier shall provide ro the Tovm all ccrtificates of iasurancc, witb onginal

endorsemeil$ elfecting covcregc. Supplier { grce$ that all certificat* a.d

endorssmenl$ are to be received and approvod by the Town befor wor*

c0mmences.

Supplier agrc€ s to have and maintail for the duration cf &e eontfitct,

profcssioaal liability insurance in amounts not less than $ I,000,000 wkich is

suJlicient to insurc Supplior for professional crrors or omissions in the

perfirnnancc of & c parricular scope of wort under thisAgreEment.

The To*r:, its officers, oflicials, employees and volunteers are to be covered

as additioml insurcd as resp€ cts: liabilily arising out of activitics performed

by or on behalf of &e Supplier; products and complcted operarioas of

Supplier, prcmises owned or used by the Supplier. This rquirement does

not apply tcr the profbrsional liability in$urance rcqurcd for prcfessional

errors and omissioas.

Thc Supplict' s bsurancc covsrags sbal! bc primary insunance as respeds & e

Torryn, its officerq o{ficials, lnplcyees and volunteers. Any inurranec or

sellinsruanccs maintaiaed by rle Tonrq its officers, officials, employees or

volunteers shall be exce$s oftba Suppliei' s fusurance aud shall uot contribute

wi& it.

Any failue o comply wit! rcponiag provisions of & e policies shall not

affect csveragc provided to the Toum, its officcrs, officiale, rmployrcs or

vohmteers.

The Suppliei' s iasuraaec sball apply scparalely to each insured tgainst whom

a clnim is made or suil is bmugbq except with respect to &* Iiarits of &e

insuret' s liability.

11.

tv

t{}00' 081 l.lfr: l

tY.

i.

t,

Page 51



3.2 All Coverages. Each insurance policy rcquired rn this item shall be endorsed lo state

thar covcragc shall not be suspcnded, voided or cancelled except afier thiny ( 30) days'

prior wrincu notice by certificd mail, renrm reccipt rcqucalcd, has bccn givcn to thc

Town. Current cenification of such irsurance shall be kcpt on file at all timcs during the

term of this Agrcement witi the Town Clerk Administrator-

I.I Workcrs' ComDessatioD In addirion to thesc policies, Supplier shall havc and

maintain Workers' CompensatioD insurance as required by California law and shall provide

evidence of such policy to & e Town bcfore beginning services undcr this Agreemenr.

Further, Supplier shall ensure that all subconuacton employed by Supplier pmvide the

requrred Wor* ers' Compensation insurance for their respective employees.

lndemrifrcation. The Supplicr sball save, lrcep, hold barmless ard irdemdfy and defcnd

the Towo its officers, agcnl. employe€ s ald volunrccts fiom all damages, liabjlities,

penalties. costs, or expenses ia law or equily dnt ruay al any tinre arise or be set up because

of darages to pmperty or personal injury rcccivcd by rcason of, or in the course of

performing work which may be occasioncd by a willful or negligcDt act or omisstons of the

Supplicr, or aay ofthc Supplier' s olncars, cmployecs, or agcnts or any subcontractor.

IV GENERAL TERN' S

4.1 Waiver. No failure on Oe pan of either party to exercise any right or remedy bereundet

shall operate as a waiver ofany other right or r€medy that party may bave hersunder, nor

do6s waiver ofa br€ach or default under this A8r€€ Eesr coDstitute a continuirt waiver ofa

subscqucnr breach of the same or any other provision of this Agreemsnt.

1.2

4.3

4.4

Severabilitv. If any term of lhis Agccrncnt rs held invahd by a coud of comPelent

jurisdiction, the rcmaiodcr of this Agrccmcat sball rcrnain in effecr.

Warrantv- Supphcr shall remcdy any defecs due to faulry matsnals and./or worlomanship

and pay for any damages to other work andlor existiog facilitics rcsulhng thcrefrom which

shall appear u,ithh a period ofone ycar tom thc date ofrecording of hna-l acceptance.

l-alry. This Agr€ emcnr, rcgardless of $'here execuled" shall be govemcd by

ald consEued ro rbe laws ofthe Starc of Cslifomia. Venue for aly actiou rcgardirg

this Agrccmcnt sball be in thc Superior Court ofthe County of Santa Clara.

Tcrmination of A8!'eeme . Thc TowD and the Supplicr shall havc rhc nght to

rcrminarc this Agreement with or without cause by giving nol less lhsn lifteen days ( 15)

wrineu nodoe of tcrmination. In tbe evcnr of terminauon, Ibc Supplier shall dcliver to

thc Town alt supplies and scwiccs schcdulod to be delivercd to Town within that fiftcen

l5) day period.

Amendmsst. No modificatron, waiver, mutual termiiation, or amcndme' nt of ttris

Agrccmcnt is effective unless madc i.o writing and signed by the Town and thc Supphcr.

4.5

4.6

5,00016Sll. RTf l

Page 52



4.'1

4.8

pispulca, h aly drsputc ovcr any aspcct of thts Agreenent, the prwailiag paiy shall be

emi ed to reasonable sttomey' s fc6, including cosrs of appeal.

Noticcs. Aay noticc rcquircd o be given shall be dccmcd to bc duly and propcrly given if
mailed posngc prepsi4 8nd addrEssed ! o:

Town ofLos Gatos

Attr: Town Clc*
I l0 E. Msin SE€cr

Los G8ios, CA 95030

Prrvctti, Town Maoager

ARC Documcnr Solutions, LLC

lvl8n M[r8lsos, Account Excculivc

t2l Mrnin Aveoue

Sants Clsr8, CA 95050

Copy to:

ARC Documcnt Solubons, LLC

l98l N. Broad* ay, Suite 385

Walnut Crgek, CA 94569

Atm; Lcgal Dspartmenl

OR personally dclivcrcd to Supplicr ! o such address or srrcb other addrcss as Slpplier

dcsignatcs in writiag to l'owl

4.9 old_ef gf Pr€_ce&rrcg. ln the evcnt of any conflict, contradiction, or ambiguity bstwecn the

terms and colditioos of this AgrrcEcDt ln rcspcct of the Products or Services and any

sttachmcnts to tbis Agreement, thcn thc t€rBs ald corditions of this Agrtcmcot sball

prcvarl ovcr sttachments or othcr writings.

4.10 Entir€ AqrcGmrot. This Agreement, rncluding all exhibits, constitutcs tbe complct€

and exclusive statcm€ot of the sgrecncnt bctweer the Town and Supplia. No

tcrms, conditions, undersaandirgs or asrEcrndtls purporting to modiry or very dris

AgrEcmcnt, unless hereafrer marle in writing and signod by thc puty b b! bound, shall

be brndiag on eithcr pany.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town End Supplier have execucd rhis Agreement,

Town o Gaos by: ARC Document utions, LLC by:

0

By; DilantbaWijpuri_ ra

I itle: _ CQO

Recammadc{!

u
by,

11'{Lr-
dnai"a(ln*e
Manager J

Assisls. trt ro tbe l own

Form:

Roben Sc

r, '61 I RTf

nAtlomrv

Page 53



EXHIE'T A

Scope of tYork - Arf Panel Production/ lnstallation

Digital photos have beerr taken of the artwork and will need to be transferred onto a

semi- permanent vinyl decal that is for outdoor use with a UV protection and

graffililvandal proof coating. lt is the Town' s preference for the panels to have up to a 5-

year lifespan. The panels will be 41"x44" and applied directly to the bridge in an area to

be designated by the Town Manage/ s Office. Only a portion of the bridge' s cunenl

artnoil( witl bs replaced within the scope of this project. Therefore, the vendor shall be

responsible to coor.dinale wilh the Town on identifying which panels arg lo be replaced

at thi$ tim€"

Page 54



EXHIBI? 3

Scope of Vllork $ ummary

Prnduction transfer of 25 dbital phobs of artwor*

41"x{,4" semhpermanent vinyl decal panels for outdoor use with UV protection

and graffti/ vardal prcof coating

6 yaar life span

Pansl installation ( please calculate separate fmm production)

Page 55



Ai?C ouorE# 1019508

OUOTE DATE 03/02116

WORX ORDER' P1019508

Cust# 26260

rOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

P.O.BOX 655

LOS GATOS. CA 95031

COTIACT

JOB DUE.

PURCHASf oaOEqt

Chflstma Gilmore/ TOWN OF LOS ( 408) 354- 6833 Foot bridge graphics

Foot bndge graphics

E21 Martin Ave

Santa Clara, CA 95050

108.736-7912

2202 A4 WRAP

Adhesve bdc*ed vtnyl * ith an anti

grofriri lamnalian

065.01 INSTALLATION

stallalion ol above tnoniloned

gtaphics otl lrle Los 6aros lool bndge

2202 04 VINYL WRAP

HaN coPY Ptool of each ot the eqht

tmages

2215 PRESENTATION COLOR. SETUP

s2o4
iseecrauPAcKAGINGISpecial peckagtng

c

o
o

o.

Cust# 26260

TOWN OF LOS GATOS CENTRAL SERV

ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYAELE

P.O.BOX 655

LOS GATOS. CA 95031

Delvery/ Shrpprng

srlis RaP

M€tl Maratsos

017

25 1 41x44

1 41x44

EA

EA

IA

EA

EA

3591.?5

r 55C. 00

2000011

1 r0 50

20,001x1

Foot bridge graphlcs Alan Scheer

This quote is vatid for 30 days from the date listed above, Pricing is subject to change.

This quote is based on our evaluation of the requiremenls necessary to

OISCOUN1 > AL:: TAITOTALrOTA!

5371. 75 334 40

OUE

5706.15

TERMS: Net 30

Please Remil To:

Days

ARC P.O. Box 192224 San Francisco, CA 941 19-2224

1019506

iol' l3iff. rl "
ones

IOTAL ]
ur.lrrs ]

U'{IT
PRICE Arroufir

Page 56



 

PREPARED BY:                  Joel Paulson  
 Community Development Director 
   
 
Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/7/2021 

ITEM NO: 4  

 
   

 

DATE:   August 30, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize an Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $46,000 from 
the Available Information Technology Fund to Cover the Cost in the 
Statement of Work from Accela, Inc. for SaaS Migration Services. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorize an expenditure budget adjustment in the amount of $46,000 from the available 
Information Technology Fund to cover the cost in the Statement of Work from Accela, Inc. 
(Attachment 1) for SaaS Migration Services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 15, 2021, the Town Council authorized the Town Manager to execute a five-year 
Maintenance Agreement with Accela, Inc. for Cloud Migration, Maintenance, and Support of 
the Accela Automation Permitting Software System.  The Agreement (Attachment 2) was 
executed by the Town Manager on June 25, 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is requesting a budget adjustment in the amount of $46,000 to cover the cost in the 
attached Statement of Work for SaaS Migration services.  The cost for SaaS Migration Services 
was erroneously not included in the previously approved cost for the five-year Agreement 
($597,995).  
 

CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council authorize a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$46,000 to cover the cost in the Statement of Work from Accela, Inc. for SaaS Migration 
Services. 

Page 57



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Accela Inc. 
DATE:        August 30, 2021 
 

 

COORDINATION: 
 
This report was coordinated with the Town Manager’s Office, Town Attorney’s office, 
Information Technology Department, and Finance Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of the budget adjustment is $46,000, taking the total cost of the five-year Agreement 
from $597,995 to $643,995.  These expenditures are budgeted in the Information Technology 
(IT) Internal Service fund as part of the IT Support Program.  There are sufficient funds available 
in the IT fund for the additional expenses. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

 

Attachments: 
1. Statement of Work 
2. Agreement for Consultant Services FY21-26 

Page 58



Statement of Work Page 1 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

Statement of Work 

Los Gatos California 
SaaS Migration Services 

6/8/2021 

Version 1.0 

Accela, Inc. 
2633 Camino Ramon 

Suite 120 
San Ramon, CA 94583 

Tel: 925-659-3200 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 59



Statement of Work Page 2 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

DOCUMENT CONTROL .................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

OVERVIEW .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

SCOPE OF SERVICES ...................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

WORK DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

OUT OF SCOPE ................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS................................................................................................................................................................ 6 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 
SAAS MIGRATION ASSUMPTIONS .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
PREMIUM CITIZEN EXPERIENCE ASSUMPTIONS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
PROJECT TIMELINE .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 
PROJECT COMPLETION ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD .................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYMENT TERMS ............................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
EXPENSES .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 
CONTRACT SUM.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

CHANGE ODERS ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
EXPIRATION ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
DISCLAIMERS ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

SIGNATURES .................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 60



Statement of Work Page 3 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

DOCUMENT CONTROL 

Date Author Version Change Reference 

4/20/2021 J. White 1.0 SOW Creation 

6/8/2021 J. White 1.1 Clarified OpenCities vs Accela reponsibilties 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 61



Statement of Work Page 4 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

INTRODUCTION 

OVERVIEW 
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) dated 6/8/2021 sets forth the scope and definition of the project-based 
professional services (collectively, the “Services”) to be provided by Accela, Inc., its affiliates and/or agents 
(“Accela”) to Los Gatos California (“Agency” or “Customer”). 

Agency has selected OpenCities, Inc., a Delaware limited liability company, to provide certain products 
and/or Services, as set forth in this SOW. Agency acknowledges and agrees that Accela is not liable or 
responsible for any products and/or Services provided by OpenCities. 

This SOW details the deliverables that will be performed by Accela Professional Services (Deliverable 1, 2.1, 
and 2.4) and OpenCities Professional Services (Deliverable 2.2, 2.4, and 2.5). 

This SOW is governed by the Accela Consulting Services Policy (attached) found at www.accela.com/terms 
for Accela deliverables and by the OpenCities Consulting Services Policy found at 
https://www.opencities.com/files/content/common/general-pages/terms-conditions-north- 
america/opencities-terms-of-service-north-america.pdf for OpenCities deliverables. 

This statement of work represents a Fixed Fee based engagement. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Deliverable 1: Accela will provide services to the Agency for migrating the Accela on-premise Land 
Management instance to the Accela Cloud based on the materials provided by the Agency in the SaaS 
Migration Questionnaire. 

• Import/upgrade of MS SQL DBs (up to 3 environments: Support, Test, Production)
• Assistance migrating 6 specific interfaces:

o GIS
o DigEplan
o Credit Card Payment Adapter (PayPal)
o EDMS (ADS)
o GIS data export
o Azure SSO (optional)

• Migration of up to 45 SSRS/RTF reports
• Up to 20 hour of issue resolution and testing assistance
• Go live planning and cutover assistance

Deliverable 2: Once migrated to Accela SaaS, Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities) will be 
implemented. 
Standard setup includes: 

• Design of the OpenCities web site with up to 100 pages
• Training on OpenCities and OpenForms

Products 
The following Accela products are in scope for this Project: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 62



Statement of Work Page 5 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

• Accela Automation
• Accela Citizen Access
• Accela GIS
• Accela Mobile
• Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities)

WORK DESCRIPTION 
Deliverable 1: Accela will perform a migration of the customer’s on-premise Accela environments using 
MS SQL (up to 3 environments: Support, Test, Production) to the Accela SaaS platform. 

Migration Steps: 
1. Customer provides an updated backup of the MS SQL databases for the environments to be

migrated
2. Perform the database migration (Accela, Jetspeed, AGIS, and ADS databases as required)

a. Copy database to Accela site
b. Execute preparation and remediation scripts; drop any custom objects
c. Import data from the MS SQL DB into Accela SaaS SQL instance

3. Execute validation scripts to confirm the schema
4. Provision tenant instance in Accela SaaS
5. Update environment specific data in the databases
6. Start Accela services and validate the system is functional i.e. login, search, create records, etc.
7. Execute automated test tool to ensure proper system functionality
8. Customer performs migration validation
9. Remediate any data issues that found from the migration
10. Provide the customer with a backup of the revised SQL DB
11. Migrate and Test integrations

o Repoint service endpoints to new URLs
o Adjust firewall rules and network topologies as necessary
o Update interface EMSE scripting dependences for Azure compatibility

12. Migrate and update SSRS reports (maximum of 200)
o Import reports into the Accela SaaS environment
o Update reports to remove dependencies on custom objects (stored procedures,

functions)
o Facilitate customer testing and remediate any issues found resulting from migration

13. Develop go live plan
14. Final go-live/roll back decision
15. Execute go live plan

Deliverable 2: After migration of a non-production environment, Accela will begin the implementation of 
the Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities). This SOW details the deliverables that will be performed by 
Accela Professional Services (Deliverables 2.1 and 2.3) and OpenCities Professional Services (Deliverables 
2.2, 2.4, and 2.5). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 63



Statement of Work Page 6 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

Deliverables for Accela 
and OpenCities Tasks 

Accela Deliverables 2.1: 
Project Kick Off 

• Project Kick Off
• Provide use of task management tool
• Discovery of statements and/or images capturing the intention of

the look/feel of new Website
• Designer feedback or recommendations

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.2: 
Design and Configuration 

• Collect asset such as logos and images
• Create and review analytics report
• Departmental Portal Page & Theme Light Design Review

Accela Deliverable 2.3: 
Design, Configuration, & 
Training 

• ACA assessment and Premium Citizen Experience configuration
• Accela Integration training and consultation

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.4: 
Training & Handover 

• Content Publisher training
• OpenCities Help Center 24 x 7
• OpenForms training
• Site Administrator training

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.5: Content Service 
Creation and Curation 

• Content creation and building
• Coordinate full launch of Departmental Portal with Agency Team to

assure transition.

OUT OF SCOPE 
Any Coding, conversion or additional services not specifically described in this document is the 
responsibility of Agency. 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
• Accela and OpenCities remain responsible for their own services, warranty, and terms and

conditions related to the SOW.
• Agency will provide the necessary tools, accounts, and permissions that will enable Accela to access

the Agency’s internal network for remote installation and testing. This access must be provided
through industry standard tools such as Virtual Private Network (VPN). Failure to provide this
access in a timely fashion will result in a project delay. Such a delay will result in a Change Order.

• Agency will ensure that Accela resources have access to a Dev or Test version of the 3rd party
systems for interface development. All interfaces will be developed against 1 (one), agreed upon
version of the 3rd party system.

SAAS MIGRATION ASSUMPTIONS 
• Migration of the GIS data export under this agreement is dependent on the purchase of the

Enhanced Reporting Database (ERD). Should Los Gatos opt not to include the ERD in their SaaS
license agreement, then the Los Gatos would assume responsibility for migrating the GIS data
export.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 64



Statement of Work Page 7 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

o Las Gatos will provide an on-premise SQL Server to host the GIS data export interface. The on- 
premise SQL server will have connectivity to ERD SQL DB for a “linked server” topology.

PREMIUM CITIZEN EXPERIENCE ASSUMPTIONS 
• Implementation and Training Services will be completed over a 12-week period.
• This will serve as a Digital Front Door for one department

For instance, assuming Community Development: https://www.losgatosca.gov/46/Community-
Development

• Additional design services will be needed if more than one department

PROJECT TIMELINE 
The project is estimated to take 20 weeks. The projected start date for the Project is forty-five (45) calendar 
days after mutual acceptance and signature of this SOW. 

PROJECT COMPLETION 
Upon completion of the work defined above, this contract will be closed. 

PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD 
It is understood that sometimes Agency priorities are revised requiring the Agency to place the Accela 
implementation on hold. The Agency must send a formal written request sent to Accela to put the project 
on hold. Delays of 2 weeks or more that have a tangible impact to Accela’s resource plan are subject to 
change order. 

If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold for more than 90 days, Accela reserves the right to 
terminate the contract and negotiate new terms. If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold past 
the termination period, Accela reserves the right to terminate the contract at the time of the delay. After 
that time, Accela can choose to cancel the rest of the Statement of Work. To finish the project will require 
a new Statement of Work at new pricing. 

PAYMENT TERMS
The cost of services is: 
SaaS Migration $25,000 
Premium Citizen Experience $21,000 
Total $46,000 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
• 50% due at contract signing $23,000.
• 50% invoiced at completion $23,000.
• Invoices are due net 30 of invoice date.

EXPENSES 
There is no provision for travel expenses or travel time in this SOW because Agency does not need any 
onsite resources. Travel to the Agency will not be conducted unless a Change Order, inclusive of travel 
expense terms and conditions, is signed prior to travel commencing to cover the cost of the travel. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 65



Statement of Work Page 8 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

CONTRACT SUM 
The total estimated amount payable under this SOW, as calculated from the above-mentioned fees, is 
$46,000. This estimated price is based on the information available at time of signing and the assumptions, 
dependencies and constraints, and roles and responsibilities of the Parties, as stated in this SOW. 

ADMINISTRATION 

CHANGE ODERS 
In order to make a change to the scope of Professional Services in this SOW, and subject to the Disclaimers 
below, Agency must submit a written request to Accela specifying the proposed changes in detail. Accela 
will submit to Agency an estimate of the charges and the anticipated changes in the delivery schedule that 
will result from the proposed change in the Professional Services Change Order. Accela will continue 
performing the Professional Services in accordance with the SOW until the parties agree in writing on the 
change in scope of work, scheduling, and fees therefore. Any Change Order will be agreed to by the parties 
in writing prior to implementation of the Change Order. If Accela’s effort changes due to changes in timing, 
roles, responsibilities, assumptions, scope, etc. or if additional support hours are required, a change order 
will be created that details these changes, and impact to project and cost (if any). Any change order will 
be signed by Accela and Agency prior to commencing any activities defined in the change order. Standard 
blended rate for Accela resources is $250 per hour. The Change Order Template is attached hereto as 
Appendix A. 

EXPIRATION 
The scope and terms of this SOW must be executed as part of the Professional Services Agreement within 
sixty (60) calendar days of the date of this SOW. If the SOW is not executed, the current scope and terms 
can be renegotiated. 

DISCLAIMERS 
Accela makes no warranties in respect of the Services described in this SOW except as set out in the 
Professional Services Agreement. Any configuration of or modification to the Product that can be 
consistently supported by Accela via APIs, does not require direct database changes and is capable of being 
tested and maintained by Accela will be considered a “Supported Modification”. Accela’s obligations and 
warranties in respect of its Services, Products, and maintenance and support, as set out the agreement 
between Accela and Agency, does not extend outside the Supported Modifications or to any Agency 
manipulation of implemented scripts, reports, interfaces and adaptors. 

In the event Agency requires significant changes to this SOW (including cumulative revisions across any 
one or more Change Orders) which Accela reasonably determines (a) is a material modification of the 
nature or scope of Services as initially contemplated by the Parties under this SOW and/or (b) is significantly 
outside the Supported Modifications, Accela may, upon no less than thirty (30) days’ notice to Agency, 
suspend or terminate this SOW and/or any Change Order issued hereunder. In the event of any such 
termination or suspension, the parties will work together in finalizing agreed-upon Deliverables. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 66



Statement of Work Page 9 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM 

Agency: CO #: 
Project Code: Date: 

Contract ID: 
Initiating Department: 

Initiated By: 

A. PROJECT CHANGE DESCRIPTION/TASK SUMMARY:
1. [Description of Change #1 – Issue details/scope impact, add as many as needed]

• Schedule impact:
• Resource impact:
• Cost impact:

2. Etc.

Total Project Schedule Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Resource Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Cost Impact: [Enter] 

B. BILLING TERMS:
Please describe the method by which Accela may bill the customer. Typically for CO’s this is T&M.

C. EXPIRATION:
If this is a CO for a bucket of T&M hours there needs to be an expiration date

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE 
The above Services will be performed in accordance with this Change Order/Work Authorization and the provisions 
of the Contract for the purchase, modification, and maintenance of the Accela systems. The approval of this Change 
Order will act as a Work Authorization for Accela and/or Agency to perform work in accordance with this Change 
Order, including any new payment terms identified in this Change Order. This Change Order takes precedent and 
supersedes all other documents and discussions regarding this subject matter. 

Accepted By: Accepted By: 
Accela, Inc. 

By: By: 
Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

NOT IN
USE AT THIS TIME

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 67



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Agreement. 

Town of Los Gatos by:    Consultant By: 

_________________________________ 
Laurel Prevetti Town Manager 

__________________________________ 
Aaron Haggarty, Chief Legal Officer  
Accela, Inc. 

Recommended by: 

_________________________________ 
Joel Paulson, Community Development  
Director 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 

__________________________________ 
Luke Norris, Sr Vice President, 
Government Relations & Growth
OpenCities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

6/21/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

Page 68



   M E M O R A N D U M
DATE: June 16, 2021 

TO: Rob Schultz, Town Attorney 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Sole Source Approval by Attorney:  Accela, Inc. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2006, the Town’s Community Development Department upgraded its permitting system from 
PERMITS-Plus to Accela Automation system. The Accela system tracks all building, planning, and 
engineering permits as well as code enforcement citations. The public has access to development 
data online and the system allows for online permitting. The department has also had a maintenance 
agreement with Accela, Inc. since it was first introduced. 

The Town’ Community Development Department has requested an upgrade from the Software 
version of Accela to a cloud hosted version. Migration, maintenance, and upgrades can only be 
completed through Accela. 

Please approve this sole source for Accela, Inc. in the amount of $597,994.51 for a five-year 
migration, maintenance, and support agreement.  

Recommended/Approved By:  

 
________________________________   ______________ 
Joel Paulson 
Community Development Department   Date: 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________________   _______________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney    Date: 

Joel Paulson (Jun 16, 2021 16:02 PDT)
Joel Paulson Jun 16, 2021

Jun 17, 2021

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

ATTACHMENT 2
Page 69



Page 1 of 3 

2633 Camino Ramon, Suite 500 
San Ramon, CA, 94583 

Proposed by: Brad Jacobs 
Contact Phone: 
Contact Email: bjacobs@accela.com 
Quote ID: Q-23396 
Valid Through: 6/30/2021   
Currency: USD 

Order Form 

Address Information 

Bill To: Ship To: 
Town of Los Gatos Town of Los Gatos 
110 E. Main Street 
Los Gatos, California 95030 
United States 

110 E. Main Street 
Los Gatos, California 95030 
United States 

Billing Name: Chris Gjerde 
Billing Phone: (408) 354-6814 
Billing Email: cgjerde@losgatosca.gov 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Multi User Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $2,641.00 35 $92,435.00 

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

OpenCities - OpenForms Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $92.00 100 $9,200.00 

OpenCities - Department Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $8,500.00 1 $8,500.00 

Accela Data Connector Year 1 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 12 $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 

Training Unit - Training 7/1/2021 60 $0.00 40 $0.00 

TOTAL: $112,635.00 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Multi User Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $2,720.23 35 $95,208.05 

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

OpenCities - OpenForms Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $94.76 100 $9,476.00 

OpenCities - Department Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $8,755.00 1 $8,755.00 

Accela Data Connector Year 2 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $2,575.00 1 $2,575.00 

TOTAL: $116,014.05 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Multi User Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $2,801.84 35 $98,064.29 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 70



Page 2 of 3 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

OpenCities - OpenForms Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $97.60 100 $9,760.28 

OpenCities - Department Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $9,017.65 1 $9,017.65 

Accela Data Connector Year 3 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $2,652.25 1 $2,652.25 

TOTAL: $119,494.47 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Multi User Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $2,885.89 35 $101,006.22 

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

OpenCities - OpenForms Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $100.53 100 $10,053.09 

OpenCities - Department Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $9,288.18 1 $9,288.18 

Accela Data Connector Year 4 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $2,731.82 1 $2,731.82 

TOTAL: $123,079.31 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 
(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Multi User Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $2,972.47 35 $104,036.41 

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $0.00 35 $0.00 

OpenCities - OpenForms Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $103.55 100 $10,354.68 

OpenCities - Department Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $9,566.82 1 $9,566.82 

Accela Data Connector Year 5 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $2,813.77 1 $2,813.77 

TOTAL: $126,771.68 

*Years 1 and 2 Subscription costs are due upon contract signature. Years 3, 4 and 5 will be invoiced annually at the time of
contract anniversary.

Pricing Summary 
Period Net Total 
Year 1 $ 112,635.00 
Year 2 $ 116,014.05 
Year 3 $ 119,494.47 
Year 4 $ 123,079.31 
Year 5 $ 126,771.68 

Total* $ 597,994.51 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 71



Page 3 of 3 

1. No additional or conflicting terms or conditions stated in Customer’s order documentation, including purchase orders,
will be incorporated into or form any part of this Order Form or the governing agreement, and all such terms or conditions
will be null.

2. Use of OpenCities products is subject to the applicable terms and conditions provided at https://www.opencities.com/
files/content/common/general-pages/terms-conditions-north-america/opencities-terms-of-service-north-america.pdf. The
necessary access URL and credentials will be provided to allow the Customer and its Authorized Users access to the
subscription service.

3. This Order Form will be governed by the applicable terms and conditions. If those terms and conditions are non- 
existent, have expired or have otherwise been terminated, the following terms at https://www.accela.com/terms/ will
govern as applicable, based on the Customer’s purchase.

4. All Software Licenses, Maintenance, and Subscription purchases are non-cancelable and non-refundable.

5.  If Customer has a prior agreement with Accela, and this purchase is co-terming with that prior agreement, if the start
date on this Order Form is before the actual delivery date of the purchase, Accela may pro-rate this purchase so that it
can co-term with the prior agreement.

6. If this Order Form is executed and/or returned to Accela by Customer after the Order Start Date above, Accela may
adjust the Order Start Date and Order End Date without increasing the total price based on the date Accela activates the
products and provided that the total term length does not change.

7. Accela will provide Training to Town of Los Gatos employees at a mutually agreed upon facility and date. Customer
shall be responsible for all other costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Training including, but not limited to,
travel, meals, incidentals, and lodging on behalf of its personnel. All Training shall be conducted in English and, to the
extent Customer’s personnel do have adequate English language reading and comprehension skills, Customer shall be
responsible for providing appropriate interpretation and translation services necessary to ensure its personnel can
participate in a meaningful and effective way in the Training provided by Accela. Customer employees may be required to
take a test(s) and document their attendance during the Training. If a test(s) is given, a certificate of completion will be
awarded to those individuals that complete and pass the required test(s). Ownership of any and all Training materials,
including, but not limited to, all copies and derivative works, shall remain with Accela.

Additional Terms: 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 72



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Agreement. 

Town of Los Gatos by:    Consultant By: 

_________________________________ 
Laurel Prevetti Town Manager 

__________________________________ 
Aaron Haggarty, Chief Legal Officer  
Accela, Inc. 

Recommended by: 

_________________________________ 
Joel Paulson, Community Development  
Director 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

6/21/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

Page 73



20201023 

ACCELA SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Accela Subscription Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the date of the 
applicable Order, as defined below, that incorporates these terms (the “Effective Date”) by and 
between Accela, Inc. and the entity identified in such Order (“Customer”). 

1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1  "Accela System" means the information technology infrastructure used by or on behalf of Accela in 
performing the Subscriptions Services, including all computers, software (including but not limited to 
Accela Software), hardware, databases, electronic systems (including database management systems), 
and networks, whether operated directly by Accela or its third party suppliers. 

1.2  "Aggregate Data" means data and information related to Customer's use of the Subscription 
Services, including anonymized analysis of all data processed in the Subscription Services, that is used by 
Accela in an aggregate and anonymized manner, including compiling statistical and performance 
information related to the provision and operation of the Services. 

1.3  "Authorized User" means one named employee, contractor or agent of Customer (each identified 
by a unique email address) for whom Customer has purchased a subscription to the Subscription 
Services and who is authorized by Customer to access and use the Services under the rights granted to 
Customer pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.4  “Consulting Services” means packaged or time and materials consulting, review, training or other 
services (but excluding Subscription and Support Services) delivered by Accela to Customer pursuant an 
Order. The current Consulting Services Policy is available at www.accela.com/terms/. 

1.5  “Customer Data” means the content, materials, and data that Customer, Authorized Users, and 
External Users enter into the Subscription Services. Customer Data does not include any component of 
the Subscription Services, material provided by or on behalf of Accela, or Aggregate Data. 

1.6  “Documentation” means the then-current technical and functional user documentation in any form 
made generally available by Accela for the Subscription Services. 

1.7  “External Users” means third party users of the Subscription Services that access the public-facing 
interfaces of the Subscription Services to submit queries and requests to facilitate communications 
between such third party and Customer. 

1.8  “Intellectual Property Rights” means any patent rights (including, without limitation, patent 
applications and disclosures), copyrights, trade secrets, know-how, and any other intellectual property 
rights, in all cases whether or not registered or registrable and recognized in any country or jurisdiction 
in the world. 

1.9  “Order” means an Accela order form or other mutually acceptable document fully executed 
between Customer and Accela that incorporates this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 74



20201023 

1.10  “Service Availability Policy” means the Service Availability and Security Policy located at 
www.accela.com/terms/. 

1.11  “Subscription Services” means the civic administration services, comprised of the Accela System, 
Software, and Support Services, to which Customer may license access to in accordance with the terms 
herein. 

1.12  “Software” means any licensed software (including client software for Authorized Users’ devices) 
and Documentation that Accela uses or makes available as part of the Subscription Services. 

1.13  “Support Services” means those technical and help services provided by Accela in accordance with 
the Software Support Services Policies (SaaS) located at www.accela.com/terms/. 

1.14  “Subscription Period” means the duration of Customer’s authorized use of the Subscription 
Services as designated in the Order. 

2. USAGE AND ACCESS RIGHTS.

2.1  Right to Access. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Accela hereby grants to 
Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license during the Subscription Period, to 
permit: (i) Authorized Users to access and use the internal and administrative interfaces of the 
Subscription Services in accordance with the Documentation to support Customer’s internal business 
purposes and (ii) its External Users the ability to access and use the publicly available interfaces to 
submit requests and information to Customer. Each instance of the Subscription Service shall be 
provisioned with the amount of storage set forth in the Order and additional storage may be purchased 
at the then-current rates. 

2.2  Support Services & Service Availability. During the Subscription Period, Accela shall provide to 
Customer the Support Services specified in the Order and shall make all commercially reasonable efforts 
to attain the service levels specified in the applicable policies. The remedies set forth in the Support 
Services and Service Availability Policy are the sole and exclusive remedies for any breach of the service 
levels. Customer grants Accela a royalty-free, worldwide, transferable, sub- licensable, irrevocable, 
perpetual license to use or incorporate into its software or services any suggestions or other feedback 
provided by Customer or Authorized Users relating to the operation or features of the Subscription 
Services. 

2.3  Purchasing Consulting Services. Customer may purchase Consulting Services from Accela by 
executing an Order for such services. All prices are exclusive of travel and expenses, which will be 
invoiced at actual cost, without markup, and will comply with the Consulting Services Policy located at 
www.accela.com/terms/ or as otherwise agreed in the applicable Order. If applicable, one Consulting 
Services day shall be equal to eight (8) hours. 

2.4  Restrictions on Use. Customer shall not, and shall not permit others to: (i) use or access the 
Subscription Services in any manner except as expressly permitted by the Agreement, including but not 
limited to, in a manner that circumvents contractual usage restrictions set forth in this Agreement; (ii) 
license, sub-license, sell, re-sell, rent, lease, transfer, distribute, time share or otherwise make any 
portion of the Subscription Services available for access by third parties except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein; (iii) use the Subscription Service in a way that: (a) violates or infringes upon the rights 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 75



 

20201023 

of a third party; or (b) stores or transmits libelous, tortious, or otherwise unlawful material or malicious 
code or viruses; (iv) create derivative works, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, copy, or 
otherwise attempt to derive source code or other trade secrets from or about any of the Subscription 
Services (except to and only to the extent such rights are proscribed by law); (v) interfere with or disrupt 
the security, integrity, operation, or performance of the Subscription Services; (vi) access, use, or 
provide access or use to the Subscription Services or Documentation for the purposes of competitive 
analysis or the development, provision, or use of a competing software, SaaS or product or any other 
purpose that is to Accela’s detriment or commercial disadvantage; (vii) provide access to the 
Subscription Services to competitors of Accela; (viii) access or use components of the Subscription 
Service not licensed by Customer; (ix) use or allow the use of the Subscription Services by anyone 
located in, under the control of, or that is a national or resident of a U.S. embargoed country or territory 
or by a prohibited end user under Export Control Laws (as defined in Section 12.3, Compliance with 
Laws); (x) remove, delete, alter or obscure any trademarks, Documentation, warranties, or disclaimers, 
or any copyright, trademark, patent or other intellectual property or proprietary rights notices from any 
Subscription Services; or (xi) access or use the Subscription Services in, or in association with, the design, 
construction, maintenance, or operation of any hazardous environments, systems or applications, any 
safety response systems or other safety-critical applications, or any other use or application in which the 
use or failure of the Subscription Services could lead to personal injury or severe physical or property 
damage. 

2.5  Ownership. Accela retains all Intellectual Property Rights, including all rights, title and license to the 
Subscription Service, Software, Accela System, Support Services, Consulting Services, and Aggregate 
Data, any related work product of the foregoing and all derivative works thereof by whomever 
produced; provided however, that to the extent such materials are delivered to Customer as part of the 
Subscription Services, Consulting Services or Support Services then Customer shall receive a limited 
license consistent with the terms of Section 2 to use such materials during the Subscription Period. 

2.6  Customer’s Responsibilities. Customer will: (i) be responsible for meeting Accela’s applicable 
minimum system requirements for use of the Subscription Services set forth in the Documentation; (ii) 
be responsible for Authorized Users’ compliance with this Agreement and for any other activity 
(whether or not authorized by Customer) occurring under Customer’s account; (iii) be solely responsible 
for the accuracy, quality, integrity and legality of Customer Data; (iv) use commercially reasonable 
efforts to prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Subscription Services and Customer Data under 
its account, and notify Accela promptly of any such unauthorized access or use, and; (v) use the 
Subscription Services only in accordance with the applicable Documentation, laws and government 
regulations. 

3.  PAYMENT TERMS. 

3.1  Purchases Directly from Accela. Except as otherwise set forth in an Order, Subscription fees shall be 
invoiced annually in advance and such fees shall be due and payable on the first day of the Subscription 
and on each anniversary thereafter for each renewal, if any. All other invoices shall be due and payable 
net thirty (30) from the date of the applicable invoice. All amounts payable to Accela under this 
Agreement shall be paid by Customer in full without any setoff, deduction, debit, or withholding for any 
reason. Any late payments shall be subject to an additional charge of the lesser of 1.5% per month or 
the maximum permitted by law. All Subscription Services fees are exclusive of any taxes, levies, duties, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 76



20201023 

withholding or similar governmental assessments of any nature (collectively, "Taxes"). If any such Taxes 
are owed or payable for such transactions, they shall be paid separately by Customer without set-off to 
the fees due Accela. 

3.2  Purchases from Authorized Resellers. In the event that Customer has purchased any products or 
services through a reseller, subject to these terms, any separate payment arrangements and terms shall 
be exclusively through such reseller and Accela is not a party to such transactions. Accela’s sole 
obligations are set forth herein and Customer acknowledges that its rights hereunder may be 
terminated for non-payment to such third party. 

4. CONFIDENTIALITY. As used herein, "Confidential Information" means all confidential information
disclosed by a one party to this Agreement to the other party of this Agreement whether orally or in
writing, that is designated as confidential or that reasonably should be understood to be confidential
given the nature of the information and the circumstances of disclosure. However, Confidential
Information will not include any information that: (i) is or becomes generally known to the public
without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party; (ii) was known to the receiving party prior
to its disclosure without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party; (iii) is received without
restriction from a third party without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party; or (iv) was
independently developed by the receiving party. Each party will use the same degree of care that it uses
to protect the confidentiality of its own confidential information of like kind (but in no event less than
reasonable care) not to disclose or use any Confidential Information except as permitted herein, and will
limit access to Confidential Information to those of its employees, contractors and agents who need
such access for purposes consistent with this Agreement and who are bound to protect such
Confidential Information consistent with this Agreement. The receiving party may disclose Confidential
Information if it is compelled by law to do so, provided the receiving party gives the disclosing party
prior notice of such compelled disclosure (to the extent legally permitted) and reasonable assistance, at
the disclosing party's request and cost, to contest, limit, or protect the disclosure.

5. CUSTOMER DATA.

5.1  Ownership. Customer reserves all its rights, title, and interest in and to the Customer Data. No rights 
are granted to Accela hereunder with respect to the Customer Data, except as otherwise set forth 
explicitly in Section 5. 

5.2  Usage. Customer shall be responsible for Customer Data as entered in to, applied or used in the 
Subscription Services. Customer acknowledges that Accela generally does not have access to and cannot 
retrieve lost Customer Data. Customer grants to Accela the non-exclusive right to process Customer 
Data (including personal data) for the sole purpose of and only to the extent necessary for Accela: (i) to 
provide the Subscription Services; (ii) to verify Customer’s compliance with the restrictions set forth in 
Section 2.4 (Restrictions on Use) if Accela has a reasonable belief of Customer’s non-compliance; and (iii) 
as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. Accela may utilize the information concerning Customer’s use 
of the Subscription Services (excluding any use of Customer’s Confidential Information) to improve 
Subscription Services, to provide Customer with reports on its use of the Subscription Services, and to 
compile aggregate statistics and usage patterns by customers using the Subscription Services. 

5.3  Use of Aggregate Data. Customer agrees that Accela may collect, use and disclose Aggregate Data 
derived from the use of the Subscription Services for industry analysis, benchmarking, analytics, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 77



20201023 

marketing and other business purposes. All Aggregate Data collected, used and disclosed will be in 
aggregate form only and will not identify Customer, its Authorized Users or any third parties utilizing the 
Subscription Services. 

6. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS.

6.1  Subscription Services Warranty. During the Subscription Period, Accela warrants that Subscription 
Services shall perform materially in accordance with the applicable Documentation. As Customer’s sole 
and exclusive remedy and Accela’s entire liability for any breach of the foregoing warranty, Accela will 
use commercially reasonable efforts to: (a) repair the Subscription Services in question; (b) replace the 
Subscription Services in question with those of substantially similar functionality; or (c), after making all 
commercially reasonable attempts to do the foregoing, terminate the applicable Subscription Services 
and refund all unused, prepaid fees paid by Customer for such non-compliant Subscription Services. 

6.2  Consulting Services Warranty. For ninety (90) days from the applicable delivery, Accela warrants 
that Consulting Services shall be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner. As Customer’s 
sole and exclusive remedy and Accela’s entire liability for any breach of the foregoing warranty, Accela 
will use commercially reasonable efforts to (a) re-perform the Consulting Services in a compliant 
manner; or, after making all commercially reasonable attempts to do the foregoing, (b) refund the fees 
paid for the non-compliant Consulting Services. 

6.3.  Disclaimers. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, ACCELA MAKES NO WARRANTY OF ANY 
KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, SECURITY, FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW. 

6.4.  Cannabis-Related Activities. If Customer purchases any Subscription Services for use with any 
cannabis-related activities, the following additional disclaimers shall apply: Accela is considered a 
software service provider to its customers and not a cannabis related business or agent thereof. In 
addition to the foregoing, Accela only retains Subscription Services fees of this Agreement from its 
Customer for general software services, a state or local government agency, and does not retain these 
fees from any type of External Users. It is the sole responsibility of the Customer to offer state law 
compliant services, which may be coordinated and facilitated through the use of the Subscription 
Services. Accela makes no representations, promises, or warranties with respect to the legality, 
suitability, or otherwise regarding any third party provider, including partners, and have no 
responsibility or liability with respect to services provided to Customer by such third parties. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION. Accela will defend (or at Accela’s option, settle) any third party claim, suit or
action brought against Customer to the extent that it is based upon a claim that the Subscription
Services, as furnished by Accela hereunder, infringes or misappropriates the Intellectual Property Rights
of any third party, and will pay any costs, damages and reasonable attorneys’ fees attributable to such
claim that are finally awarded against Customer, provided that Customer provides: (a) Accela notice of
such claim as soon practical and in no event later than would reasonably permit Accela to respond to
such claim, (b) reasonable cooperation to Accela, at Accela’s expense, in the defense and/or settlement
of such claim and (c) Accela the sole and exclusive control of the defense, litigation and settlement of
such claim. In the event that Accela reasonably believes, in its sole discretion, that such claim may

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 78



 

20201023 

prevail or that the usage of the Subscription Services may be joined, Accela may seek to: (a) modify the 
Subscription Services such that it will be non-infringing (provided such modification does not materially 
reduce the functionality or performance of Customer’s installed instance); (b) replace the Subscription 
Services with a service that is non-infringing and provides substantially similar functionality and 
performance; or, if the first two options are not commercially practicable, (c) terminate the remainder 
of the Subscription Period and refund any, pre-paid, unused fees received by Accela. Accela will have no 
liability under this Section 7 to the extent any claims arise from (i) any combination of the Subscription 
Services with products, services, methods of a third party; (ii) a  modification of the Subscription 
Services that were either implemented by anyone other than Accela or implemented by Accela in 
accordance with Customer specifications; (iii) any use of the Subscription Services in a manner that 
violates this Agreement or the instructions given to Customer by Accela; (iv) a version of the 
Subscription Services other than the current, fully patched version, provided such updated version 
would have avoided the infringement; or (v) Customer’s breach of this Agreement. THIS SECTION 7 
STATES THE ENTIRE OBLIGATION OF ACCELA AND ITSLICENSORSWITH RESPECT TO ANY ALLEGED OR 
ACTUAL INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS RELATED TO THIS 
AGREEMENT. 

8.  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY FOR 
DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY OR CUSTOMER’S BREACH OF SECTION 2, NEITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE 
LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR FROM THE 
USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER 
THEORY OF LIABILITY, SHALL EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID BY CUSTOMER HEREUNDER IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE INCIDENT. EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY ARISING 
OUT OF CUSTOMER’S BREACH OF SECTION 2 OR EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL 
INJURY, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY INVOLVED IN CREATING, 
PRODUCING OR DELIVERING THE SERVICE BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF DATA OR LOSS OF GOODWILL, SERVICE 
INTERRUPTION, COMPUTER DAMAGE OR SYSTEM FAILURE OR THE COST OF SUBSTITUTE PRODUCTS OR 
SERVICES, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR FROM THE USE OF OR 
INABILITY TO USE THE SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES, WHETHER BASED ON WARRANTY, CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), PRODUCT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY. THE FOREGOING 
EXCLUSIONS APPLY WHETHER OR NOT A PARTY HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 
DAMAGE, AND EVEN IF A LIMITED REMEDY SET FORTH HEREIN IS FOUND TO HAVE FAILED OF ITS 
ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 

9.  SECURITY.  Accela has implemented commercially viable and reasonable information security 
processes, policies and technology safeguards to protect the confidentiality and integrity of Customer 
Data, personal data protect against reasonably anticipated threats. Customer acknowledges that, 
notwithstanding security features of the Subscription Services, no product, hardware, software or 
service can provide a completely secure mechanism of electronic transmission or communication and 
that there are persons and entities, including enterprises, governments and quasi- governmental actors, 
as well as technologies, that may attempt to breach any electronic security measure. Subject only to its 
limited warranty obligations set forth in Section 6, Accela will have no liability for any such security 
breach. Customer further acknowledges that the Subscription Services is not guaranteed to operate 
without interruptions, failures, or errors. If Customer or Authorized Users use the Subscription Services 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 79



20201023 

in any application or environment where failure could cause personal injury, loss of life, or other 
substantial harm, Customer assumes any associated risks and will indemnify Accela and hold it harmless 
against those risks. 

10. THIRD PARTY SERVICES.  Customer may choose to obtain a product or service from a third party
that is not directly produced by Accela as a component of the Subscription Services (“Third Party
Services”) and this may include third party products resold by Accela. Accela assumes no responsibility
for, and specifically disclaims any liability, warranty or obligation with respect to, any Third Party Service
or the performance of the Subscription Services (including Accela’s service level commitment) when the
Subscription Services are used in combination with or integrated with Third Party Services.

11. TERM AND TERMINATION.

11.1  Agreement Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall continue 
in full force and effect until the expiration of any Subscription Periods set forth in an applicable Order 
governed by the Agreement. 

11.2  Subscription Periods & Renewals. Subscription Periods begin as specified in the applicable Order 
and, unless terminated earlier in accordance with this Agreement, continue for the term specified 
therein. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable Order, (a) all Subscription Services will 
automatically renew for additional Subscription Periods equal to the expiring Subscription Period, unless 
either party gives the other at least sixty (60) days’ notice of non-renewal before the end of the relevant 
Subscription Period and (b), Orders may only be cancelled or terminated early in accordance with 
Section 11.3. Subscription Services renewals may be subject to an annual increase, for which Accela shall 
provide Customer notice prior to the renewal of the Subscription Period. In the event of any non-
renewal or other termination, Customer’s right to use the Subscription Services will terminate at the end 
of the relevant Subscription Period. 

11.3  Termination or Suspension for Cause.  A party may terminate this Agreement and Subscription 
Services license granted hereunder for cause upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other party of a 
material breach if such breach remains uncured at the expiration of such thirty (30) day period. Either 
party may terminate immediately if the other party files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent. Accela 
may, at its sole option, suspend Customer’s or any Authorized User’s access to the Subscription Services, 
or any portion thereof, immediately if Accela: (i) suspects that any person other than Customer or an 
Authorized User is using or attempting to use Customer Data; (ii) suspects that Customer or an 
Authorized User is using the Subscription Services in a way that violates this Agreement and could 
expose Accela or any other entity to harm or legal liability; (iii) is or reasonably believes it is required to 
do so by law or court order or; (iv) Customer’s payment obligations are more than ninety (90) days past 
due, provided that Accela has provided at least thirty (30) days’ notice of such suspension for delinquent 
payment. Should Customer terminate this Agreement for cause, Accela will refund a pro-rata portion of 
unused, pre-paid fees. 

11.4  Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason: (i) within thirty 
(30) calendar days following the end of Customer’s final Subscription Period, upon Customer’s request
Accela provided Customer Data and associated documents in a database dump file; provided that
Customer pays (a) all costs of and associated with such copying, as calculated at Accela’s then-current
time-and-materials rates, and (b) any and all unpaid amounts due to Accela; (ii) licenses and use rights

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 80



20201023 

granted to Customer with respect to Subscription Services and intellectual property will immediately 
terminate; and (iii) Accela’s obligation to provide any further services to Customer under this Agreement 
will immediately terminate, except as mutually agreed between the parties. If the Subscription Services 
are nearing expiration date or are otherwise terminated, Accela will initiate its data retention processes, 
including the deletion of Customer Data from systems directly controlled by Accela. Accela’s current 
Data Storage Policy can be accessed www.accela.com/terms/. 

11.5  Survival. Sections 2.5 (Ownership and Proprietary Rights), 4 (Confidentiality), 6.3 (Disclaimer), 8 
(Limitation of Liability), 11.4 (Effect of Termination), 11.5 (Surviving Provisions), and 12 (General 
Provisions) will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

12. GENERAL.

12.1  Notice.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices, permissions and approvals 
hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given upon: (i) personal delivery; (ii) three 
days after sending registered, return receipt requested, post or; (iii) one day after sending by 
commercial overnight carrier. Notices will be sent to the address specified by the recipient in writing 
when entering into this Agreement or establishing Customer’s account for the Subscription Services. 

12.2  Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement and any action related thereto will be governed by 
the laws of the State of California without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. The exclusive 
jurisdiction and venue of any action related to the subject matter of this Agreement will be the state and 
federal courts located in the Northern District of California and each of the parties hereto waives any 
objection to jurisdiction and venue in such courts. 

12.3  Compliance with Laws.  Each party will comply with all applicable laws and regulations with respect 
to its activities under this Agreement including, but not limited to, export laws and regulations of the 
United States and other   applicable jurisdictions. Further, in connection with  the  services  performed  
under  this  Agreement  and  Customer’s use of the Subscription Services, the parties agree to comply 
with all applicable anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws, statutes and regulations. 

12.4  Assignment. Customer may not assign or transfer this Agreement,  whether  by  operation  of  law  
or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Accela, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
Any attempted assignment or transfer, without such consent, will be null and void. Subject to the 
foregoing, this Agreement will bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective successors 
and permitted assigns. 

12.5  Publicity.  Notwithstanding  anything to the contrary, each party will have the right to publicly 
announce the existence of the business relationship between parties without disclosing the specific 
terms of the Agreement. 

12.6  Miscellaneous.  No failure or delay by either party in exercising any right under this Agreement will 
constitute a waiver of that right. Other than as expressly stated herein, the remedies provided herein 
are in addition to, and not exclusive of, any other remedies of a party at law or in equity. If any provision 
of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, the provision will be 
modified by the court and interpreted so as best to accomplish the objectives of the original provision to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in effect. 
Accela will not be liable for any delay or failure to perform under this Agreement to the extent such 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 81



 

20201023 

delay or failure results from circumstances or causes beyond the reasonable control of Accela. This 
Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, fiduciary or similar 
relationship between the parties. This Agreement, including any attachments hereto as mutually agreed 
upon by the parties, constitute the entire agreement between the parties concerning its subject matter 
and it supersedes all prior communications, agreements, proposals or representations, written or oral, 
concerning its subject matter. No modification, amendment, or waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement will be effective unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each 
party against whom the modification, amendment or waiver is to be asserted. Notwithstanding any 
language to the contrary, no additional or conflicting terms or conditions stated in any of Customer’s 
purchase order documentation or otherwise will be incorporated into or form any part of this 
Agreement, and all such terms or conditions shall be null and void. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 82



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Agreement. 

Town of Los Gatos by:    Consultant By: 

_________________________________ 
Laurel Prevetti Town Manager 

__________________________________ 
Aaron Haggarty, Chief Legal Officer  
Accela, Inc. 

Recommended by: 

_________________________________ 
Joel Paulson, Community Development  
Director 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

6/21/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

Page 83



OPENCITIES SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. DEFINITIONS. The following capitalized terms will have the following meanings whenever
used in this Agreement.

1.1. “Acceptable Use Policy” (“AUP”) means, as of any date, the version of OpenCities’ 
acceptable use policy posted at http://help.OpenCities.com as of such date. 

1.2. “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks in the State 
of California are open for business. 

1.3. “Core Module” means the individual modules that are included within the Services. From 
time to time, new Core Modules will be introduced to the Services via Version Updates which 
are included in the Fees paid by Customer.  

1.4. “Customer Data” means any and all data and information, including text, graphics, 
photographs, audio-visual elements, music, illustrations, video or other content, domain 
names, email, chat room content, bulletin board postings, or any other items or materials of 
Customer, any user or any other third party provided or permitted by Customer to be made 
available by or to reside within the Services or Customer’s Website. 

1.5. “Customer’s Website” means the website(s) created by or on behalf of Customer through use 
of the Services for Customer’s internal business purposes. 

1.6. “Customizations” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.2(f). 

1.7. “Documentation” means OpenCities' standard user documentation and any other operating, 
training and reference manuals related to the Services, all of which are contained in the 
OpenCities Help Center. 

1.8.  “Integrations” means optional enhancements to the Services involving third party products 
or services, which are offered separately by OpenCities and are available for purchase by 
Customer via the OpenCities Help Center. 

1.9. “Intellectual Property Rights” means all intellectual or industrial property, including without 
limitation any copyright, trade or service mark, patent, moral right, trade secret, logo, know 
how, rights in relation to inventions, drawings, discoveries, improvements, technical data, 
formulae, computer programs, know-how, logos, designs, circuit layouts, domain names, 
business names, software, whether or not now existing, and whether or not registered or 
unregistered rights, and rights in respect of Confidential Information. 

1.10. “Malicious Code” means code, files scripts, agents or programs intended to do harm, 
including, for example, viruses, worms, time bombs and Trojan horses. 

1.11. “Order” means an OpenCities, or an OpenCities’ authorized reseller, order form or other 
mutually acceptable document that expressly incorporates this Agreement and is duly 
executed by Customer and, as applicable, OpenCities or an OpenCities authorized reseller. 

1.12. “OpenCities Help Center” means the Documentation and the specifications for the Services 
(the “Specifications”) currently posted at http://help.OpenCities.com. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 84



2 
 

1.13.  “Privacy Policy” means, as of any date, OpenCities’ privacy policy posted at 
http://help.OpenCities.com as of such date. 

1.14.  “Scheduled Maintenance Window” means the date and time slot identified by OpenCities in 
a written notice given to Customer via the OpenCities Help Center no later than 5 Business 
Days prior to the proposed Scheduled Maintenance Window to enable maintenance work and 
Version Updates to be performed. The Scheduled Maintenance Window will be outside of 
Customer’s normal business hours and periods of peak demand, whenever reasonably 
possible.    

1.15.  “Services” means the components of OpenCities’ proprietary content management system 
set forth in the Order, including, as applicable, data traffic management, website publishing 
and web hosting services, and any Version Updates and Core Modules released by 
OpenCities, and all related Specifications and Documentation.  

1.16.  “SLA” or “Service Level Agreement” means, as of any date, OpenCities’ service level 
agreement, the current version of which is set forth in Schedule A. 

1.17.  “Support Services” means the support and maintenance services provided by OpenCities in 
accordance with Article 3. 

1.18. “Term” is defined in Section 12.1 below. 

1.19. “Version Updates” means updated versions of the Services (indicated by a higher numerical 
version number) developed by OpenCities with enhancements or additions to the 
functionality, and/or performance improvements and bug fixes. 

2.  SCOPE AND USAGE OF SERVICES.  

2.1. Use of Services.  During the Term and upon payment of the applicable Fees set out in the 
applicable Order, OpenCities shall make the Services available to Customer in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement solely for Customer’s internal business purposes. Customer may 
permit an unlimited number of its employees and its contractors to use the Services provided their 
use is solely for Customer’s internal business purposes and at all times in compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement.  Customer agrees to be responsible for any breach of this Agreement by 
its contractors. 

2.2. Provision of Services. Upon payment of the applicable Fees and subject to the terms of the 
applicable Order and the other terms and conditions hereof, OpenCities will use commercially 
reasonable efforts to provide the Services to Customer during the Term and to ensure the Services 
are available in accordance with the then applicable Service Level Agreement. 

2.3. Professional Services.  Upon payment of the applicable Fees and subject to the terms of 
the applicable Order and the other terms and conditions hereof, OpenCities may provide certain 
professional services to Customer, including developer training and custom development services 
("Professional Services"). Any Professional Services to be supplied by OpenCities will be 
provided pursuant to a separate statement of work executed by Customer and OpenCities. Except 
as otherwise provided in an Order, all such Professional Services will be charged on a time and 
materials basis at OpenCities then-current rates for the applicable Professional Services.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 85



3 

OpenCities agrees that any custom software developed by OpenCities (“Custom Software”) will 
be compatible with the then-current version of the Services in accordance with the terms set forth 
in the applicable statement of work. Customer acknowledges that the support and maintenance 
services set out in Article 3 will not be provided for any Custom Software and that Custom 
Software is not covered by the Service Level Agreement. If Customer desires to obtain support for 
any Custom Software, any support offered by OpenCities will be charged on a time and materials 
basis at OpenCities’ then-current rates for such support. Any Custom Software developed by 
OpenCities shall be the property of OpenCities.  Effective upon delivery of any such Custom 
Software to Customer, OpenCities grants Customer a nonexclusive, non-transferable, fully paid 
license to copy, modify, create derivative works of and use such Custom Software solely as part 
of Customer’s Website during the Term.  All modifications and derivative works of the Services 
by whomever produced shall be the property of OpenCities. 

2.4. Use of Third-Party Service Providers.  Customer acknowledges that OpenCities has, and 
in the future may, retain one or more third party service providers to supply certain aspects of the 
Services, including certain of the facilities, equipment, products, services and connectivity 
necessary to offer the Services. Customer acknowledges that OpenCities currently obtains web 
hosting services from a third party, and that OpenCities has no responsibility or liability for any 
third-party services.  

2.5. Documentation: Customer may reproduce and use the Documentation solely as necessary 
to support its use of the Services during the Term. 

2.6.  Users of Customer’s Website. Customer may authorize an unlimited number of users to 
access and use Customer’s Website. Customer agrees that it is not authorized to, and agrees not 
to, make any representations or warranties regarding the Services or OpenCities to any user or 
third party, and further agrees not to otherwise create or purport to create any obligations or 
liabilities on the part of OpenCities. Customer agrees to indemnify OpenCities for its and any 
user’s acts and omissions related to Customer’s Website and/or the Services. OpenCities has no 
obligation to provide support or any other services, or any SLA or other remedies, to such users. 

3. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES.

3.1. Maintenance and Support; SLA.  Subject to the other provisions of the Order, this Article 
3 and Customer’s payment of all applicable Fees, during the Term: 

(a) OpenCities will provide the remedies listed in the SLA for any defect, error, or failure
of the Services or in the Documentation in accordance with the SLA. Such remedies are
Customer’s sole remedy for any failure of or defect in the Services or the Documentation,
and Customer recognizes and agrees that if the SLA does not list a remedy for a given
failure, it has no remedy.  Any credits issued pursuant to the SLA for failure to meet the
uptime guarantee specified in the SLA will apply to outstanding or future invoices only
and are forfeited upon termination of this Agreement. OpenCities is not required to issue
refunds or to make payments against such credits under any circumstances, including
without limitation after termination of this Agreement.

(b) OpenCities may revise the SLA or the features and functions of the Services at any time,
provided no such revision materially reduces the features or functionality provided to

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 86



4 
 

Customer as set forth herein.  
 

(c) OpenCities will provide Customer with Version Updates. Customer acknowledges that 
Version Updates are mandatory and necessary for the proper function and security of the 
Services.  Customer agrees to the implementation of all Version Updates by OpenCities.  
Implementation will occur during a Scheduled Maintenance Window.  Any SaaS 
downtime or functionality issues arising during a Scheduled Maintenance Window will 
not be subject to the Service Level Agreement. 

 
(d) OpenCities grants Customer personnel unlimited access to the OpenCities Help Center 

to review the Documentation and Specifications. Customer acknowledges and agrees 
that it does not have an unlimited right to request maintenance and support services 
through the OpenCities Help Center; requests for maintenance and support must be made 
in compliance with paragraph (e) hereof. 

 
(e) OpenCities will make available to Customer an online and telephone help desk service, 

which will allow 2 designated support representatives of Customer who have received 
training in the Services to request maintenance and support services in accordance with 
the Service Level Agreement. Requests from other personnel will not be accepted. The 
contact details for the online and telephone help desk support services are set out in 
Schedule A. 

 
(f)  Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (d) and (e) above, where Customer’s 

Website is experiencing a Severity 1 problem, any Customer personnel may contact 
OpenCities via the telephone help desk to report the Severity 1 problem.    

 
3.2. Scheduled and Emergency Maintenance.  OpenCities agrees to use commercially reasonable 

efforts to conduct all SaaS maintenance within a Scheduled Maintenance Window. However, 
Customer acknowledges that an unplanned event may occur that will require the need for 
OpenCities to perform maintenance on the Services on an emergency basis outside of a 
Scheduled Maintenance Window. OpenCities will use reasonable efforts to give Customer 
advance notice of emergency maintenance, but it is possible that advance notification of 
emergency maintenance will not occur. Any SaaS downtime or functionality issues during 
the Scheduled Maintenance Window or during emergency maintenance will not be subject 
to the Service Level Agreement.   

3.3 Conditions.  OpenCities provision of the maintenance and support services set forth in this 
Article 3 is subject to the following conditions: (a) Customer must document and promptly report 
all errors or malfunctions of the Services to OpenCities or its assigned agents and representatives; 
(b) Customer must carry out procedures to rectify errors or malfunctions within a reasonable period 
after receiving instructions from OpenCities on such procedures; and (c) Customer must provide 
OpenCities with reasonable access to Customer's personnel, its assigned agents and representatives 
as required by OpenCities to meet its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
3.4 Exclusions.  OpenCities is under no obligation to provide the maintenance and support 
services specified in this Article 3 if they are requested as a result of or related to: (a) operation of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 87



5 
 

the Services with other media and hardware, or services or interfaces not authorized or maintained 
in accordance with this Agreement or the Documentation; (b) use of the Services that is not in 
accordance with the Documentation; (c) any modification, alteration or addition or attempted 
modification, alteration or addition to the Services (unless such modifications were developed by 
OpenCities or authorised by OpenCities in writing); (d) failure of any data service, internet service, 
hosting service or any other third-party service, or failure of a telecommunications connection, 
hardware, software, web services, or third party content, software, or equipment; or (e) any non-
reproducible error or defect reported by Customer. 
 
3.5  Abuse of Maintenance Services.  In the event Customer abuses the maintenance and support 
services offered by OpenCities (e.g. by declaring a problem Severity Level 1 when it is only 
Severity Level 2, 3 or 4, unless such distinction could not reasonably have been determined, or by 
reporting problems which are not Severity 1 during non-business hours) an "Abuse Incident" will 
be noted, and OpenCities will inform Customer of such. 
 
4.  FEES AND PAYMENT TERMS.  

4.1 Subscription Fees.  Except as otherwise provided in the Order, Customer will pay 
OpenCities the annual subscription and other fees set forth in the Order(the “Fees”) during the 
Initial Term and the applicable Fees for each Renewal Term, which Fees are based on the resident 
population of Customer. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, all Fees are 
non-cancelable and non-refundable.   Except as otherwise provided in the Order, the Fees for the 
first year of the Initial Term are payable within 30 days of execution of this Agreement, and the 
Fees for each successive year during the Initial Term and each Renewal Term shall be payable net 
30 days from the date of OpenCities’ invoice. 

  
4.2 Fee Adjustments.  Upon expiration of the Initial Term, Fees may be adjusted for each 
Renewal Term to take into account any increases in the Consumer Price Index for all Items as 
published by the US Bureau of Labor Statistics. OpenCities shall notify Customer of any Fees 
adjustments made pursuant to this Section 4.2 at least seventy (70) days prior to the 
commencement of the applicable Renewal Term. 
 
4.3 Overdue Charges.   Except as otherwise provided in the Order, if any invoiced amount is 
not received by OpenCities by the due date, then without limiting OpenCities’ rights or remedies, 
(a) those charges may accrue late interest at the rate of 1.5% of the outstanding balance per month, 
or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is lower, and/or (b) OpenCities may condition 
future subscription renewals on payment terms shorter than those specified herein.  Customer will 
be liable for all costs of collection of any undisputed, overdue amounts including, without 
limitation, all court costs, legal fees and other costs incurred by OpenCities. 
 
4.4 Taxes.   The Fees charged by OpenCities do not include any taxes, levies, duties or similar 
governmental assessments of any nature, including, value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, 
assessable by any jurisdiction whatsoever (collectively, “Taxes”). Customer is responsible for 
paying all Taxes associated Customer’s purchase of the Services.  If OpenCities has the legal 
obligation to pay or collect any Taxes for which Customer is responsible under this Section 4(e), 
then Customer agrees that OpenCities will invoice Customer that amount unless Customer 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 88



6 
 

provides OpenCities with a valid tax exemption certificate authorized by the appropriate taxing 
authority. For clarity, OpenCities is responsible for taxes assessable against it based on its income, 
property and employees. 

 
4.5 Purchases from Authorized Resellers.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that 
Customer has purchased Services through an authorized OpenCities reseller pursuant to an Order 
that incorporates these terms, the payment arrangements and related terms set forth in the Order 
shall control, such terms shall be exclusively by and between such reseller and Customer, and 
OpenCities’ sole obligation will be to provide the Services set forth in the Order to Customer on 
the other terms and conditions, and subject to the limitations, set forth in this Agreement. 
 
4.6 Future Functionality.  Customer agrees that its purchase is not contingent on the delivery 
of any future functionality or features, or dependent on any oral or written public comments made 
by OpenCities, or any authorized reseller or other third party regarding future functionality or 
features. 
 
5.  CUSTOMER DATA & SECURITY.  

5.1. Customer Rights to Data. Customer retains all right, title and interest (including any 
Intellectual Property Rights) in and to all data and content supplied by or on behalf of Customer 
in connection with the Services and Customer’s Website, including data uploaded by users thereof 
(collectively, the “Customer Data”).  Customer hereby grants OpenCities a limited, non-exclusive, 
royalty-free, non-transferable license to host, reproduce, transmit, cache, store, exhibit, publish, 
display, distribute, perform, and otherwise use the Customer Data solely as necessary to provide 
the Services for Customer.  
 
5.2. Responsibility for Customer Data.   Customer is solely responsible for Customer Data, 
including the accuracy, quality, appropriateness and legality of all Customer Data and the means 
by which the Customer Data is acquired, and OpenCities shall have no responsibility or liability 
therefor.  Customer represents and warrants to OpenCities that Customer owns or has the right to 
use Customer Data, and has the rights necessary to grant OpenCities the licence set forth in Section 
5.1, all Customer Data will be "server ready" and otherwise remain fully compatible with 
OpenCities’ SaaS (including all software and operating systems); and Customer has obtained all 
necessary rights, releases and consents to allow the Customer Data to be collected, used and 
disclosed in the manner contemplated by this Agreement and to grant OpenCities the rights herein. 
 
5.3. OpenCities’ Use of Customer Data. Unless it receives Customer’s prior written consent, 
OpenCities: (a) will not access, process, or otherwise use Customer Data other than as necessary 
to facilitate the Services; and (b) will not intentionally grant any third party access to Customer 
Data, except subcontractors that are subject to a reasonable nondisclosure agreement. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, OpenCities may disclose Customer Data, including, without 
limitation, user profile information (i.e. name, e-mail address, etc.), IP addressing and traffic 
information, and usage history, as required by applicable law or by proper legal or governmental 
authority. OpenCities will give Customer prompt notice of any such legal or governmental demand 
and reasonably cooperate with Customer in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to 
contest such required disclosure, at Customer’s expense. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 89



7 
 

 
5.4. Protection of Customer Data.  OpenCities will use commercially reasonable, industry 
standard administrative, physical and technical safeguards for the protection of the security, 
confidentiality and integrity of the Customer Data, including implementation of measures designed 
to prevent unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure and loss of the Customer Data.  
OpenCities will archive Customer Data on a regular basis during the Term by performing 6 daily 
and 8 weekly backups for the purposes of disaster recovery. In the event of equipment failure or 
data corruption, OpenCities will restore from the most recent uncorrupted archive. In the event of 
corruption of all of OpenCities’ archives, or in the event that an old archive is used to restore data, 
Customer will have the responsibility of uploading new Customer Data to Customer’s Website. 
OpenCities will not be liable for incomplete, out-of-date, corrupt or otherwise deficient Customer 
Data recovered from OpenCities’ backups.  
 
5.5. No Obligation to Monitor; Right to Remove.  OpenCities may, but has no obligation to, 
monitor, review or edit Customer Data. In all cases, OpenCities reserves the right to remove, delete 
or disable access to any Customer Data that OpenCities determines, in the exercise of its sole 
discretion, violates this Agreement (including the Acceptable Use Policy) or is illegal, damaging, 
problematic, objectionable or otherwise inappropriate. OpenCities may take such action without 
prior notification of Customer. 
5.6. Privacy Policy. The Privacy Policy applies only to the Services and does not apply to any 
third-party website or service linked to the Services or recommended or referred to through the 
Services or by OpenCities staff. 
 
5.7. Risk of Exposure. Customer recognizes and agrees that hosting data online involves risks 
of unauthorized disclosure or exposure and that Customer, by accessing and using the Services, 
assumes such risks. OpenCities offers no representation, warranty, or guarantee that Customer 
Data will not be exposed or disclosed through errors or the actions of third parties. 
 
5.8. Aggregate Data. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article 5, OpenCities may use, 
reproduce, sell, publicize, or otherwise exploit Aggregate Data in any way, in its sole discretion. 
(“Aggregate Data” refers to Customer Data with the following removed: personally identifiable 
information and the names and addresses of Customer and any of its users.) 
 
6.  CUSTOMER’S OBLIGATIONS & RESTRICTIONS. 

6.1 Acceptable Use. Customer will comply with OpenCities’ AUP as in effect from time to 
time.   Customer will not: (a) sell, resell, license, sublicense, distribute, make available, rent or 
lease the Services or use the Services for service bureau or time-sharing purposes or in any other 
way allow third parties to exploit or access the Services, except users accessing Customer’s 
Website as specifically authorized by this Agreement; (b) use the Services to store or transmit 
infringing, libelous, or otherwise unlawful or tortious material, or to store or transmit material in 
violation of third-party privacy rights; (c) use the Services to store or transmit Malicious Code; (d) 
share non-public SaaS features or content with any third party; (e) frame or mirror any part of the 
Services other than framing on Customer’s own intranets or otherwise for Customer’s internal 
business purposes; (f) reverse engineer any portion of the Services, or (g) access the Services in 
order to build a competitive product or service, to build a product using similar ideas, features, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 90



8 

functions or graphics of the Services, or to copy any ideas, parts, features, functions or graphics of 
the Services.  In the event that it suspects any breach of the requirements of this Section 6.1, 
including without limitation by Customer’s users, OpenCities may suspend or terminate 
Customer’s access to the Services without advance notice, in addition to such other remedies as 
OpenCities may have. Neither this Agreement nor the AUP requires that OpenCities take any 
action against Customer or any user or other third party for violating the AUP, this Section 6.1, or 
this Agreement, but OpenCities is free to take any such action it sees fit.  Any breach of the AUP 
or any of the provisions of this Article 6 will entitle OpenCities to elect to terminate this Agreement 
immediately upon written notice to Customer. 

6.2 Unauthorized Access; Security. Customer will take reasonable steps to prevent 
unauthorized access to the Services and the network, including without limitation by protecting its 
passwords and other log-in information. Customer will notify OpenCities immediately of any 
known or suspected unauthorized access to or use of the Services or breach of its security and will 
use best efforts to stop said breach. Customer shall not: 

(a) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance of the Services or attempt to gain
unauthorized access to the Services, or OpenCities’ or its suppliers’ related systems and
networks;

(b) commit, cause or allow any breach (or do anything which might put us in breach) of any
applicable law, regulation, government direction or industry standard or code;

(c) attempt to or actually access the Services by any means other than through the portals or
interfaces provided by OpenCities;

(d) attempt to or actually override any security component included in or underlying the
Services; or

(e) attempt or engage in any action that directly or indirectly interferes with the proper
working of or place an unreasonable load on OpenCities' infrastructure.

6.3 Customer Data.   Customer agrees that (a) the Customer Data and its use will not violate, 
misappropriate or infringe any Intellectual Property Rights or any other personal, privacy or moral 
right arising under the laws of any jurisdiction, nor will same constitute a libel or defamation of 
any person or entity; and (b) the Customer Data will not contain any harmful components, 
including, but not limited to, viruses, trap doors, hidden sequences, hot keys, or time bombs. 

6.4 Compliance with Laws. In its use of the Services, Customer will comply with all applicable 
laws, including without limitation export control, decency, privacy and intellectual property laws, 
laws governing the protection of personally identifiable information and other laws applicable to 
the protection of Customer Data. 

6.5 Responsibility for Users; Access to Services. Customer is responsible and liable for: (a) its 
own and its users use of the Services, including without limitation for any unauthorized user 
conduct and any user conduct that would violate the AUP or the requirements of this Agreement 
applicable to Customer; and (b) any use of the Services through Customer’s account, whether 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 91



9 
 

authorized or unauthorized.  Customer agrees to indemnify OpenCities against any loss or damage 
that OpenCities suffers as a result of any unauthorized access to OpenCities’ SaaS or network or 
those of OpenCities’ suppliers. 

6.6 Required Third Party Services.   

(a) Customer will establish and maintain, at its own expense, all telecommunications 
equipment and access lines necessary to gain access to the Services. 
 

(b)  In order for OpenCities to provide some of the Services under this Agreement, 
Customer may at times, be required to give OpenCities access to or provide login 
information and password information for accounts or services Customer may have 
with third party providers. When Customer provides OpenCities with this information 
or provides OpenCities with access to these third-party accounts, Customer warrants 
that it has all the necessary contractual and legal rights to give OpenCities such access, 
login information and passwords. 

 
(c)  Customer acknowledges that OpenCities will not have any responsibility or liability 

with regard to any third party services used by the Customer on or through the Services, 
as part of Customer’s Website or otherwise, such as payment and e-commerce services, 
and any use of such third party services will be at Customer’s own risk. Customer 
further acknowledges that the technical ability to link to such third-party services (such 
as the possibility of a 'PayPal' button), is provided only as part of the Services but will 
not be deemed to create any liability or responsibility on behalf of OpenCities. 

 
(d)  Where any third-party software or services integration to the Services is found to cause 

performance, stability or security issues, OpenCities reserves the right to disable or 
remove such software or services in order to restore the Services to acceptable levels. 

 
6.7 Customer Representative. Customer will appoint a designated representative who will be 
authorized to act as the primary point of contact for Customer in dealing with OpenCities with 
respect to each party's obligations under this Agreement and on a timely basis. 
 
7.  OPENCITIES IP & FEEDBACK.  

7.1 IP Rights in the Services. OpenCities retains all Intellectual Property Rights and all other 
right title and interest in the Services, the Documentation, the Support Services, the Professional 
Services, the Custom Software and the Aggregate Data, including without limitation all software 
used to provide the Services, all graphics, user interfaces, logos, and trademarks reproduced 
through the Services, and all work product and derivative works thereof by whomever produced. 
This Agreement does not grant Customer any intellectual property license or rights in or to the 
Services or any of its components or any Documentation. Customer recognizes that the Services 
and its components and the Documentation are protected by copyright and other laws. 

7.2 Feedback. OpenCities has not agreed to and does not agree to treat as confidential any 
Feedback (as defined below) that Customer or other users provide, and nothing in this Agreement 
or in the parties’ dealings arising out of or related to this Agreement will restrict OpenCities’s right 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 92



10 

to use, profit from, disclose, publish, keep secret, or otherwise exploit Feedback, without 
compensating or crediting Customer or the user in question. Customer hereby grants OpenCities a 
perpetual, irrevocable right and license to exploit Feedback in any and every way. (“Feedback” 
refers to any suggestion or idea for improving or otherwise modifying any of OpenCities’s 
products or services.) 

8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

8.1 “Confidential Information” refers to the following items: (a) any document either party 
marks “Confidential”; (b) any information either party orally designates as “Confidential” at the 
time of disclosure, provided the disclosing party confirms such designation in writing within ten 
(10) Business Days; (c) any OpenCities software and all Documentation and other information in
the OpenCities Help Center, whether or not marked or designated confidential; and (d) any other
nonpublic, sensitive information the receiving party should reasonably consider a trade secret or
otherwise confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information does not include
information that: (i) is in the receiving party’s possession at the time of disclosure; (ii) is
independently developed by the receiving party without use of or reference to Confidential
Information; (iii) becomes known publicly, before or after disclosure, other than as a result of the
receiving party’s improper action or inaction; or (iv) is approved for release in writing by the
disclosing party.

8.2 Nondisclosure. Neither OpenCities nor Customer will use Confidential Information for any 
purpose other than in performance of this Agreement (the “Purpose”). Each of OpenCities and 
Customer agrees that it: (a) will not disclose Confidential Information to any of its employees or 
contractors unless such persons need access in order to facilitate the Purpose and, in the case of a 
contractor, such contractor executes a nondisclosure agreement with the appropriate party with 
terms no less restrictive than those of this Article 8; and (b) will not disclose Confidential 
Information to any other third party without the disclosing party’s prior written consent. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, each party will protect Confidential Information with the 
same degree of care it uses to protect its own confidential information of similar nature and 
importance, but with no less than reasonable care. Each party agrees that it will promptly notify 
the other party of any misuse or misappropriation of the other party’s Confidential Information 
that comes to its attention. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party may disclose Confidential 
Information as required by applicable law or by proper legal or governmental authority, provided 
such party gives the other party prompt notice of any such legal or governmental demand and 
reasonably cooperates with the other party in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to 
contest such required disclosure, at the other party’s expense. 

8.3 Injunction. The parties agree that breach of this Article 8 would cause the disclosing party 
irreparable injury, for which monetary damages would not provide adequate compensation, and 
that in addition to any other remedy, and that the disclosing party will be entitled to injunctive 
relief against such breach or threatened breach, without proving actual damage or posting a bond 
or other security. 

8.4 Termination & Return. With respect to each item of Confidential Information, the 
obligations of Section 8.1 above will terminate five (5) years after the date of disclosure; provided 
that such obligations related to Confidential Information of a party constituting trade secrets will 
continue so long as such information remains subject to trade secret protection pursuant to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 93



11 

applicable law. Upon termination of this Agreement, each party will return all copies of the other 
party’s Confidential Information to the other party or certify, in writing, the destruction thereof. 

8.5 Retention of Rights. This Agreement does not transfer ownership of Confidential 
Information or grant a license thereto. Each party will retain all right, title, and interest in and to 
all of its Confidential Information. 

9. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER.

9.1 Warranty Disclaimers. THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND AS 
AVAILABLE, WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, 
WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 
NONINFRINGEMENT AND QUIET ENJOYMENT, AND ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY 
ARISING FROM STATUTE, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, OR 
USAGE OF TRADE, AND OPENCITIES DISCLAIMS SUCH WARRANTIES TO THE 
MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. WITHOUT LIMITING THE 
GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING: (a) OPENCITIES DOES NOT REPRESENT OR 
WARRANT THAT THE SYSTEM WILL PERFORM WITHOUT INTERRUPTION OR 
ERROR OR IN A TIMELY FASHION; AND (b) OPENCITIES DOES NOT REPRESENT OR 
WARRANT THAT THE SYSTEM IS SECURE FROM HACKING OR OTHER 
UNAUTHORIZED INTRUSION OR THAT CUSTOMER DATA WILL REMAIN PRIVATE 
OR SECURE.  OPENCITIES DISCLAIMS ALL LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 
OBLIGATIONS FOR ANY HARM OR DAMAGES CAUSED BY ANY THIRD-PARTY 
HOSTING PROVIDERS. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION.

10.1 Indemnification of Customer. Subject to the other provisions of this Section 10.1, 
OpenCities will defend Customer and Customer’s Associates (as defined below in Section 10.3) 
against any third party claim, suit, or proceeding alleging that the Services or the permitted use 
thereof infringes any U.S. trademark, patent, copyright, or trade secret right of a third party 
(collectively, “Customer Indemnified Claims”) and will indemnify Customer and Customer’s 
Associates from any damages, attorney’s fees and costs finally awarded against Customer and 
Customer’s Associates for any Customer Indemnified Claim, or, as applicable, for amounts paid 
by Customer and Customer’s Associates in a settlement approved by OpenCities in writing of a 
Customer Indemnified Claim.    

(a) If in OpenCities reasonable judgment any Customer Indemnified Claim, or threat of
any such Claim, materially interferes with Customer’s use of the Services, OpenCities
will, after consultation with Customer, at OpenCities’ option and in its sole discretion,
either (i) substitute functionally equivalent non-infringing Services or  Documentation;
(ii) modify the Services to make them non-infringing, (iii) obtain for Customer at
OpenCities’ expense the right to continue using the infringing Services; or, (iv) if
OpenCities determines that it cannot achieve any of the foregoing on a reasonable
commercial basis, it may, by written notice, require Customer to cease using the
Services, in which case OpenCities, or, as applicable, its authorized reseller, shall
refund Customer a pro-rata portion of the Fees paid for the Services for such period of

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 94



12 
 

time for which Customer was unable to use the Services.  
 

(b) OpenCities’ obligations set forth in this Section 10.1 do not apply to the extent that a 
Customer Indemnified Claim arises out of: (a) Customer’s breach of this Agreement; 
(b) revisions or modifications to the Services or any components thereof made by a 
party other than OpenCities if such infringement would not have occurred but for such 
revisions or modifications; (c) Customer’s failure to incorporate or use any Version 
Updates, or any other updates or upgrades that would have avoided the alleged 
infringement; (d) inclusion of the Customer Data; (e)  the use of the Services other than 
for its intended purposes or contrary to OpenCities’ Specifications; or (f) the 
combination, operation or use of the Services with equipment, programs, hardware or 
software not provided by OpenCities if in OpenCities reasonable judgment such 
infringement is caused thereby.   

 
(c) The provisions of this Section 10.1 state OpenCities entire liability and Customer’s sole 

and exclusive remedy in the event of any Customer Indemnified Claim. 
 
10.2 Indemnification of OpenCities. Customer will indemnify and defend OpenCities and 
OpenCities’ Associates (as defined below in Section 10.3) against any and all claims, liabilities, 
losses, damages, costs and expenses (including attorneys fees and costs) (a) arising out of or related 
to Customer's or its users’ alleged or actual use or misuse of, or failure to use the Services, 
including without limitation: (b) claims by Customer’s users or by Customer’s employees or 
agents; (c) claims related to unauthorized disclosure or exposure of personally identifiable 
information or other private Confidential Information, including Customer Data; (d) claims related 
to infringement or violation of a copyright, trademark, trade secret, or privacy or confidentiality 
right by any Customer Data; and (e) claims that use of the Services harasses, defames, or defrauds 
a third party or violates the CAN-Spam Act of 2003 or any other law or restriction on electronic 
advertising (collectively, “OpenCities Indemnified Claims,”. 
 
10.3 Litigation & Additional Terms. The obligations of the indemnifying party (“Indemnitor”) 
pursuant to Section 10.1or 0 above will be excused to the extent that the indemnified parties (the 
“Indemnified Parties”) or any Indemnified Party’s Associates fails to provide prompt written 
notice to the Indemnitor of the applicable claim or to reasonably cooperate with the Indemnitor if 
such failure or lack or cooperation materially prejudices the defense. Indemnitor will control the 
defense of any Indemnified Claim, including appeals, negotiations, and any settlement or 
compromise thereof; provided that the Indemnified Party will have the right, not to be exercised 
unreasonably, to reject any settlement or compromise that requires that it admit wrongdoing or 
liability or subjects it to any ongoing affirmative obligations. (A party’s “Associates” are its 
officers, directors, shareholders, parents, subsidiaries, agents, successors, and assigns.) 

11.   LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

11.1 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  THE TOTAL LIABILITY OF OPENCITIES AND ITS 
AFFILIATES FOR ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT 
WILL NOT EXCEED THE ACTUAL FEES RECEIVED BY OPENCITIES DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY FROM CUSTOMER DURING THE TWELVE-MONTH PERIOD LEADING 
UP TO THE APPLICABLE CLAIM. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 95



13 
 

11.2 Exclusion of Consequential Damages. IN NO EVENT WILL OPENCITIES OR ITS 
AFFILIATES BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, INCLUDING ANY DAMAGES FOR 
LOSS OF REVENUES OR GOODWILL, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OR 
INACCURACY OF DATA, COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, 
SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY, OR LOST PROFITS, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. 

11.3 Clarifications & Disclaimers. THE LIABILITIES LIMITED BY THIS ARTICLE 11 
APPLY (a) REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, 
STRICT PRODUCT LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, (b) EVEN IF OPENCITIES IS ADVISED 
IN ADVANCE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF THE DAMAGES IN QUESTION AND EVEN IF 
SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE; AND (c) EVEN IF CUSTOMER’S REMEDIES 
FAIL OF THEIR ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE 
LIABILITIES LIMITED BY THIS ARTICLE 11 SHALL NOT INCLUDE LIABILITY (i) 
UNDER THE INDEMNITY PROVIDED IN SECTION 10.1, (ii) FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL 
INJURY RESULTING FROM NEGLIGENCE, (iii) FOR DAMAGE TO TANGIBLE 
PERSONAL PROPERTY, OR (iv) FOR FRAUD OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT.  If applicable 
law limits the application of the provisions of this Article 11, OpenCities’ liability will be limited 
to the maximum extent permissible. For the avoidance of doubt, OpenCities’ liability limits and 
other rights set forth in this Article 11 apply likewise to OpenCities’ affiliates, licensors, suppliers, 
advertisers, agents, sponsors, directors, officers, employees, consultants, and other representatives. 

12.   TERM & TERMINATION. 

12.1 Term. The initial term of this Agreement (the “Initial Term”) will commence on the 
Effective Date and continue for the period set forth in the Order. Thereafter, the Agreement will 
automatically renew for successive one-year periods (each such period, a “Renewal Term”), unless 
either party notifies the other party in writing of its decision not to renew the Agreement at least 
60 or more days before the applicable renewal date.  The Initial Term and all Renewal Terms are 
herein referred to as the “Term”. 

12.2 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement for the other’s material 
breach by written notice, effective in 30 days unless the other party first cures such breach, or 
immediately upon written notice if the other party becomes subject to any insolvency, bankruptcy 
or similar proceeding, whether voluntary or involuntary. Without limiting OpenCities’ other rights 
and remedies, OpenCities may suspend or terminate any user’s access to the Services at any time, 
without advance notice, if OpenCities reasonably concludes such user has conducted him, her or 
itself in a way that is not consistent with the requirements of the AUP or the other requirements of 
this Agreement or in a way that subjects OpenCities to potential liability. 

12.3 Effects of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, Customer will cease all use 
of the Services and delete, destroy, or return all copies of the Documentation in its possession or 
control, and Customer will have the right to access the Services for 30 days following termination 
of this Agreement to download Customer Data.   If requested by Customer in writing, at the 
Customer's expense on a time-and-materials basis, OpenCities will provide Customer an export of 
the Customer Data in an industry standard format.  Upon the expiration of the thirty-day period 
following termination of this Agreement, all Customer Data in the Services will no longer be 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 96



14 
 

available, and OpenCities shall have the right to delete and/or destroy all such Customer Data 
(including all data supplied by third parties), unless otherwise agreed by the parties in writing. 
 
12.4 The following provisions will survive termination or expiration of this Agreement: (a) any 
obligation of Customer to pay Fees incurred before termination; (b) Article 1, Sections 2.3 and 
6.5, and Articles 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12; and (c) any other provision of this Agreement that must 
survive to fulfill its essential purpose. 
 
13. MISCELLANEOUS. 

13.1 Independent Contractors. The parties are independent contractors and will so represent 
themselves in all regards. Neither party is the agent of the other, and neither may make 
commitments on the other’s behalf. The parties agree that no OpenCities employee or contractor 
is or will be considered an employee of Customer. 

13.2 Notices. OpenCities may send notices pursuant to this Agreement to Customer’s email 
address provided by Customer, and such notices will be deemed received 24 hours after they are 
sent. Customer may send notices pursuant to this Agreement to the person identified in the Order 
at the email address provided for such person, and such notices will be deemed received 72 hours 
after they are sent. 

13.3 Force Majeure. No delay, failure, or default, other than a failure to pay fees when due, will 
constitute a breach of this Agreement to the extent caused by acts of war, terrorism, hurricanes, 
earthquakes, other acts of God or of nature, strikes or other labor disputes, riots or other acts of 
civil disorder, embargoes, or other causes beyond the performing party’s reasonable control. 

13.4 Assignment & Successors. Customer may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights or 
obligations hereunder without OpenCities’ express written consent. Except to the extent forbidden 
in this Section 13.4, this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ 
respective successors and assigns. 

13.5 Severability. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the parties hereby waive any 
provision of law that would render any clause of this Agreement invalid or otherwise 
unenforceable in any respect. In the event that a provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid 
or otherwise unenforceable, such provision will be interpreted to fulfill its intended purpose to the 
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will 
continue in full force and effect. 

13.6 No Waiver. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under this 
Agreement by lapse of time or by any statement or representation other than by an authorized 
representative in an explicit written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute 
a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement. 

13.7 Choice of Law; Venue. This Agreement will be governed by laws of the State of California. 
The parties consent to the personal and exclusive jurisdiction of the federal and state courts of San 
Francisco, California. This Section 13.7 governs all claims arising out of or related to this 
Agreement, including without limitation tort claims.  The United Nations Convention for the 
International Sale of Goods does not apply to this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 97



15 
 

13.8 Dispute Resolution. If at any time a dispute arises out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the parties will have their respective designated representatives meet in good faith 
with a view to resolving the dispute within a period of 15 Business Days from the issue of a written 
notice of dispute by one party to the other party.  Should the parties not be able to resolve the 
dispute within the 15 Business Days, then both parties will refer the matter to their own appropriate 
level of senior executive management respectively for resolution. If the relevant senior executive 
management are unable to resolve the dispute within a further 10 Business Days, then the parties 
agree that the dispute must then be referred to mediation. The parties will agree on a suitable person 
to act as mediator having industry knowledge and expertise to facilitate resolution. Failing 
agreement on such appointment, either party may apply to JAMS to appoint a mediator. The 
dispute for mediation must be heard within 20 Business Days of a mediator being appointed. 
Nothing in this clause is intended to preclude a party from seeking equitable or injunctive relief.   
Neither party shall have the right to initiate litigation until 30 Business Days after the second 
mediation conference held by the parties, unless the other party has materially breached its 
obligation to mediate.   

13.9 Construction. The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement result from negotiations 
between them. This Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either party by reason 
of authorship. 

13.10 Technology Export. Customer will not: (a) permit any third party to access or use the 
Services in violation of any U.S. or foreign law or regulation; or (b) export any software provided 
by OpenCities or otherwise remove it from the United States or Canada except in compliance with 
all applicable laws and regulations. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Customer will 
not permit any third party to access or use the Services in, or export such software to, a country 
subject to an applicable embargo. 

13.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement of the parties and 
supersedes all prior or contemporaneous writings, negotiations, and discussions with respect to its 
subject matter. Neither party has relied upon any such prior or contemporaneous communications. 

13.12 Modifications.  OpenCities may modify the terms of this Agreement, the Privacy Policy, 
AUP and SLA at any  time and from time to time by posting a revised version on OpenCities’ 
website. The modified terms will become effective upon posting. By continuing to use the Services 
after the effective date of any modification to the terms of this Agreement, Customer agrees to be 
bound by the modified terms. It is Customer’s responsibility to check OpenCities’ website 
regularly for such modifications. OpenCities last modified the terms of this Agreement and the 
applicable Policies and SLA on the dates listed at the tops of the applicable documents on 
OpenCities’ website. 

13.13 Marketing.    Customer agrees to permit OpenCities to make reasonable reference to the 
Customer's status as a user of the Services, including captioned quotations in product literature or 
advertisements, websites, articles, press releases, marketing literature, presentations and the like, 
and occasional use as a reference for potential new users. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 98



16 

SCHEDULE A – SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, OpenCities provides a guarantee of 99.9% 
uptime availability, calculated monthly. In a typical 30 day/730 hour month, this equates to no 
more than 1 hour of downtime per month (not inclusive of Scheduled and emergency 
Maintenance).  

For confirmed downtime during any month during the Term, Open Cities will credit Customer 
1% of Customer’s pro-rata monthly Base Subscription Fee for every hour of Customer’s public 
facing website downtime over and above the 99.9% uptime guarantee, up to a maximum of 
100% of the pro rata monthly Base Subscription Fee for that month. 

Issue Severity Level and 
Measure/Guide  

Resolution Process and Contact 
Information  

Resolution Target 

Priority 1 – Downtime 
(Your public facing 
website or critical intranet 
is experiencing 
Downtime)  

 Reportable 24 x 7 via  Telephone –
(877-466-7756 – Extension 3)

 Acknowledgement and assignment of
the problem for resolution within an
hour.

Within 4 hours. 

Priority 2 – Urgent 
(Important publishing 
functionality fails to work 
as intended, and there is no 
work-around available - 
you cannot publish content 
to the site).  

 Reportable 24 x 7 via Online
helpdesk, or

 Telephone during business hours
(7x6 PT). (877-466-7756 –
Extension 2)

 Acknowledgement and assignment of
the problem for resolution within one
business day.

Provide a workaround to 
the problem or release a 
Version Update to fix the 
problem by close of next 
business day.  

Priority 3 – High 
(Important publishing 
functionality fails to work 
as intended, but 
workarounds are 
available)  

 Reportable 24 x 7 via Online
helpdesk.

 Acknowledgement and assignment of
the problem for resolution within one
business day.

Scheduled or next 
Version Update.  

Priority 4 – Normal 
(Functionality is not 
working as intended) 

 Reportable 24 x 7 via Online
helpdesk.

 Acknowledgement and assignment of
the problem for resolution within 3
business days

Within specified Version 
Update.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 99



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Agreement. 

Town of Los Gatos by:    Consultant By: 

_________________________________ 
Laurel Prevetti Town Manager 

__________________________________ 
Luke Norris, Sr Vice President,
Government Relations & Growth
OpenCities

Recommended by: 

_________________________________ 
Joel Paulson, Community Development  
Director 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

6/21/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

Page 100



Statement of Work Page 1 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

Statement of Work 

Los Gatos California 
SaaS Migration Services 

6/8/2021 

Version 1.0 

Accela, Inc. 
2633 Camino Ramon 

Suite 120 
San Ramon, CA 94583 

Tel: 925-659-3200 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 101



Statement of Work Page 2 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

DOCUMENT CONTROL .................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

OVERVIEW .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

SCOPE OF SERVICES ...................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

WORK DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

OUT OF SCOPE ................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS................................................................................................................................................................ 6 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 6 
SAAS MIGRATION ASSUMPTIONS .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
PREMIUM CITIZEN EXPERIENCE ASSUMPTIONS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
PROJECT TIMELINE .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 
PROJECT COMPLETION ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD .................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYMENT TERMS ............................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
EXPENSES .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 
CONTRACT SUM.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

CHANGE ODERS ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
EXPIRATION ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
DISCLAIMERS ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

SIGNATURES .................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 102



Statement of Work Page 3 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

DOCUMENT CONTROL 

Date Author Version Change Reference 

4/20/2021 J. White 1.0 SOW Creation 

6/8/2021 J. White 1.1 Clarified OpenCities vs Accela reponsibilties 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 103



Statement of Work Page 4 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

INTRODUCTION 

OVERVIEW 
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) dated 6/8/2021 sets forth the scope and definition of the project-based 
professional services (collectively, the “Services”) to be provided by Accela, Inc., its affiliates and/or agents 
(“Accela”) to Los Gatos California (“Agency” or “Customer”). 

Agency has selected OpenCities, Inc., a Delaware limited liability company, to provide certain products 
and/or Services, as set forth in this SOW. Agency acknowledges and agrees that Accela is not liable or 
responsible for any products and/or Services provided by OpenCities. 

This SOW details the deliverables that will be performed by Accela Professional Services (Deliverable 1, 2.1, 
and 2.4) and OpenCities Professional Services (Deliverable 2.2, 2.4, and 2.5). 

This SOW is governed by the Accela Consulting Services Policy (attached) found at www.accela.com/terms 
for Accela deliverables and by the OpenCities Consulting Services Policy found at 
https://www.opencities.com/files/content/common/general-pages/terms-conditions-north- 
america/opencities-terms-of-service-north-america.pdf for OpenCities deliverables. 

This statement of work represents a Fixed Fee based engagement. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Deliverable 1: Accela will provide services to the Agency for migrating the Accela on-premise Land 
Management instance to the Accela Cloud based on the materials provided by the Agency in the SaaS 
Migration Questionnaire. 

• Import/upgrade of MS SQL DBs (up to 3 environments: Support, Test, Production)
• Assistance migrating 6 specific interfaces:

o GIS
o DigEplan
o Credit Card Payment Adapter (PayPal)
o EDMS (ADS)
o GIS data export
o Azure SSO (optional)

• Migration of up to 45 SSRS/RTF reports
• Up to 20 hour of issue resolution and testing assistance
• Go live planning and cutover assistance

Deliverable 2: Once migrated to Accela SaaS, Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities) will be 
implemented. 
Standard setup includes: 

• Design of the OpenCities web site with up to 100 pages
• Training on OpenCities and OpenForms

Products 
The following Accela products are in scope for this Project: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 104



Statement of Work Page 5 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

• Accela Automation
• Accela Citizen Access
• Accela GIS
• Accela Mobile
• Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities)

WORK DESCRIPTION 
Deliverable 1: Accela will perform a migration of the customer’s on-premise Accela environments using 
MS SQL (up to 3 environments: Support, Test, Production) to the Accela SaaS platform. 

Migration Steps: 
1. Customer provides an updated backup of the MS SQL databases for the environments to be

migrated
2. Perform the database migration (Accela, Jetspeed, AGIS, and ADS databases as required)

a. Copy database to Accela site
b. Execute preparation and remediation scripts; drop any custom objects
c. Import data from the MS SQL DB into Accela SaaS SQL instance

3. Execute validation scripts to confirm the schema
4. Provision tenant instance in Accela SaaS
5. Update environment specific data in the databases
6. Start Accela services and validate the system is functional i.e. login, search, create records, etc.
7. Execute automated test tool to ensure proper system functionality
8. Customer performs migration validation
9. Remediate any data issues that found from the migration
10. Provide the customer with a backup of the revised SQL DB
11. Migrate and Test integrations

o Repoint service endpoints to new URLs
o Adjust firewall rules and network topologies as necessary
o Update interface EMSE scripting dependences for Azure compatibility

12. Migrate and update SSRS reports (maximum of 200)
o Import reports into the Accela SaaS environment
o Update reports to remove dependencies on custom objects (stored procedures,

functions)
o Facilitate customer testing and remediate any issues found resulting from migration

13. Develop go live plan
14. Final go-live/roll back decision
15. Execute go live plan

Deliverable 2: After migration of a non-production environment, Accela will begin the implementation of 
the Premium Citizen Experience (OpenCities). This SOW details the deliverables that will be performed by 
Accela Professional Services (Deliverables 2.1 and 2.3) and OpenCities Professional Services (Deliverables 
2.2, 2.4, and 2.5). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 105



Statement of Work Page 6 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

Deliverables for Accela 
and OpenCities Tasks 

Accela Deliverables 2.1: 
Project Kick Off 

• Project Kick Off
• Provide use of task management tool
• Discovery of statements and/or images capturing the intention of

the look/feel of new Website
• Designer feedback or recommendations

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.2: 
Design and Configuration 

• Collect asset such as logos and images
• Create and review analytics report
• Departmental Portal Page & Theme Light Design Review

Accela Deliverable 2.3: 
Design, Configuration, & 
Training 

• ACA assessment and Premium Citizen Experience configuration
• Accela Integration training and consultation

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.4: 
Training & Handover 

• Content Publisher training
• OpenCities Help Center 24 x 7
• OpenForms training
• Site Administrator training

OpenCities Deliverable 
2.5: Content Service 
Creation and Curation 

• Content creation and building
• Coordinate full launch of Departmental Portal with Agency Team to

assure transition.

OUT OF SCOPE 
Any Coding, conversion or additional services not specifically described in this document is the 
responsibility of Agency. 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
• Accela and OpenCities remain responsible for their own services, warranty, and terms and

conditions related to the SOW.
• Agency will provide the necessary tools, accounts, and permissions that will enable Accela to access

the Agency’s internal network for remote installation and testing. This access must be provided
through industry standard tools such as Virtual Private Network (VPN). Failure to provide this
access in a timely fashion will result in a project delay. Such a delay will result in a Change Order.

• Agency will ensure that Accela resources have access to a Dev or Test version of the 3rd party
systems for interface development. All interfaces will be developed against 1 (one), agreed upon
version of the 3rd party system.

SAAS MIGRATION ASSUMPTIONS 
• Migration of the GIS data export under this agreement is dependent on the purchase of the

Enhanced Reporting Database (ERD). Should Los Gatos opt not to include the ERD in their SaaS
license agreement, then the Los Gatos would assume responsibility for migrating the GIS data
export.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 106



Statement of Work Page 7 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

o Las Gatos will provide an on-premise SQL Server to host the GIS data export interface. The on- 
premise SQL server will have connectivity to ERD SQL DB for a “linked server” topology.

PREMIUM CITIZEN EXPERIENCE ASSUMPTIONS 
• Implementation and Training Services will be completed over a 12-week period.
• This will serve as a Digital Front Door for one department

For instance, assuming Community Development: https://www.losgatosca.gov/46/Community-
Development

• Additional design services will be needed if more than one department

PROJECT TIMELINE 
The project is estimated to take 20 weeks. The projected start date for the Project is forty-five (45) calendar 
days after mutual acceptance and signature of this SOW. 

PROJECT COMPLETION 
Upon completion of the work defined above, this contract will be closed. 

PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD 
It is understood that sometimes Agency priorities are revised requiring the Agency to place the Accela 
implementation on hold. The Agency must send a formal written request sent to Accela to put the project 
on hold. Delays of 2 weeks or more that have a tangible impact to Accela’s resource plan are subject to 
change order. 

If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold for more than 90 days, Accela reserves the right to 
terminate the contract and negotiate new terms. If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold past 
the termination period, Accela reserves the right to terminate the contract at the time of the delay. After 
that time, Accela can choose to cancel the rest of the Statement of Work. To finish the project will require 
a new Statement of Work at new pricing. 

PAYMENT TERMS
The cost of services is: 
SaaS Migration $25,000 
Premium Citizen Experience $21,000 
Total $46,000 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
• 50% due at contract signing $23,000.
• 50% invoiced at completion $23,000.
• Invoices are due net 30 of invoice date.

EXPENSES 
There is no provision for travel expenses or travel time in this SOW because Agency does not need any 
onsite resources. Travel to the Agency will not be conducted unless a Change Order, inclusive of travel 
expense terms and conditions, is signed prior to travel commencing to cover the cost of the travel. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 107



Statement of Work Page 8 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

CONTRACT SUM 
The total estimated amount payable under this SOW, as calculated from the above-mentioned fees, is 
$46,000. This estimated price is based on the information available at time of signing and the assumptions, 
dependencies and constraints, and roles and responsibilities of the Parties, as stated in this SOW. 

ADMINISTRATION 

CHANGE ODERS 
In order to make a change to the scope of Professional Services in this SOW, and subject to the Disclaimers 
below, Agency must submit a written request to Accela specifying the proposed changes in detail. Accela 
will submit to Agency an estimate of the charges and the anticipated changes in the delivery schedule that 
will result from the proposed change in the Professional Services Change Order. Accela will continue 
performing the Professional Services in accordance with the SOW until the parties agree in writing on the 
change in scope of work, scheduling, and fees therefore. Any Change Order will be agreed to by the parties 
in writing prior to implementation of the Change Order. If Accela’s effort changes due to changes in timing, 
roles, responsibilities, assumptions, scope, etc. or if additional support hours are required, a change order 
will be created that details these changes, and impact to project and cost (if any). Any change order will 
be signed by Accela and Agency prior to commencing any activities defined in the change order. Standard 
blended rate for Accela resources is $250 per hour. The Change Order Template is attached hereto as 
Appendix A. 

EXPIRATION 
The scope and terms of this SOW must be executed as part of the Professional Services Agreement within 
sixty (60) calendar days of the date of this SOW. If the SOW is not executed, the current scope and terms 
can be renegotiated. 

DISCLAIMERS 
Accela makes no warranties in respect of the Services described in this SOW except as set out in the 
Professional Services Agreement. Any configuration of or modification to the Product that can be 
consistently supported by Accela via APIs, does not require direct database changes and is capable of being 
tested and maintained by Accela will be considered a “Supported Modification”. Accela’s obligations and 
warranties in respect of its Services, Products, and maintenance and support, as set out the agreement 
between Accela and Agency, does not extend outside the Supported Modifications or to any Agency 
manipulation of implemented scripts, reports, interfaces and adaptors. 

In the event Agency requires significant changes to this SOW (including cumulative revisions across any 
one or more Change Orders) which Accela reasonably determines (a) is a material modification of the 
nature or scope of Services as initially contemplated by the Parties under this SOW and/or (b) is significantly 
outside the Supported Modifications, Accela may, upon no less than thirty (30) days’ notice to Agency, 
suspend or terminate this SOW and/or any Change Order issued hereunder. In the event of any such 
termination or suspension, the parties will work together in finalizing agreed-upon Deliverables. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 108



Statement of Work Page 9 of 9 
Proprietary and Confidential 

APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM 

Agency: CO #: 
Project Code: Date: 

Contract ID: 
Initiating Department: 

Initiated By: 

A. PROJECT CHANGE DESCRIPTION/TASK SUMMARY:
1. [Description of Change #1 – Issue details/scope impact, add as many as needed]

• Schedule impact:
• Resource impact:
• Cost impact:

2. Etc.

Total Project Schedule Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Resource Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Cost Impact: [Enter] 

B. BILLING TERMS:
Please describe the method by which Accela may bill the customer. Typically for CO’s this is T&M.

C. EXPIRATION:
If this is a CO for a bucket of T&M hours there needs to be an expiration date

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE 
The above Services will be performed in accordance with this Change Order/Work Authorization and the provisions 
of the Contract for the purchase, modification, and maintenance of the Accela systems. The approval of this Change 
Order will act as a Work Authorization for Accela and/or Agency to perform work in accordance with this Change 
Order, including any new payment terms identified in this Change Order. This Change Order takes precedent and 
supersedes all other documents and discussions regarding this subject matter. 

Accepted By: Accepted By: 
Accela, Inc. 

By: By: 
Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

NOT IN
USE AT THIS TIME

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

Page 109



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Consultant have executed this Agreement. 

Town of Los Gatos by:    Consultant By: 

_________________________________ 
Laurel Prevetti Town Manager 

__________________________________ 
Aaron Haggarty, Chief Legal Officer  
Accela, Inc. 

Recommended by: 

_________________________________ 
Joel Paulson, Community Development  
Director 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelley Neis, MMC, CPMC, Town Clerk 

__________________________________ 
Luke Norris, Sr Vice President, 
Government Relations & Growth
OpenCities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B392F70-DCFD-4B21-B7EE-CBB2F6BB4650

6/21/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

6/25/2021

Page 110



 

PREPARED BY: Shelley Neis 
 Town Clerk 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, and Town Attorney 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 08/17/2021 

ITEM NO: 5  

 
   

 

DATE:   August 17, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Adoption of an Ordinance of the Town of Los Gatos Amending the Los Gatos 
Town Code to Include Gender-Neutral Pronouns by Eliminating any Gender 
Preference Language Within the Los Gatos Town Code and Amending 
Sections Regarding Grammatical Interpretation to Indicate that Whenever a 
Gender-Neutral Personal Pronoun is Used, it Shall be Deemed to Include the 
Feminine and Masculine Also 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt an Ordinance that was introduced at the Town Council meeting of August 17, 2021 
amending the Los Gatos Town Code to include gender-neutral pronouns by eliminating any 
gender preference language within the Los Gatos Town Code and amending sections regarding 
grammatical interpretation to indicate that whenever a gender-neutral personal pronoun is 
used, it shall be deemed to include the feminine and masculine also.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At its August 17, 2021 meeting, the Town Council voted 5-0 to approve amending the Los Gatos 
Town Code to include gender-neutral pronouns by eliminating any gender preference language 
within the Los Gatos Town Code and amending sections regarding grammatical interpretation 
to indicate that whenever a gender-neutral personal pronoun is used, it shall be deemed to 
include the feminine and masculine also. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council adopt an Ordinance amending the Los Gatos Town Code to 
include gender-neutral pronouns by eliminating any gender preference language within the Los 
Gatos Town Code and amending sections regarding grammatical interpretation to indicate that  
 

Page 111



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Adopt an Ordinance to the Town Code to Include Gender-Neutral Pronouns by 

Eliminating any Gender Preference Language 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
CONCLUSION (continued): 
 
whenever a gender-neutral personal pronoun is used, it shall be deemed to include the 
feminine and masculine also. 
 
COORDINATION: 

This report was coordinated with the Town Attorney’s Office and the Town Manager’s Office.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

Phase I for Municode to conduct a complete review of the Town Code to identify all Code 
language in need of gender-neutral revision is $5,100, to be paid in FY 2020/21.  Phase II to 
codify the Town Code to incorporate the revisions is $3,400, to be paid in FY 2021/22.  Funds 
have been budgeted. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 
 

Attachments: 
1. Draft Ordinance 

Page 112



1 of 2  
 Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

DRAFT ORDINANCE 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA, 

AMENDING THE LOS GATOS TOWN CODE TO MODIFY ANY AND ALL MASCULINE 
AND/OR FEMININE LANGUAGE TO GENDER NEUTRAL PRONOUNS 

 
WHEREAS, the Los Gatos Town Code contains mostly masculine pronouns; and 
 
WHEREAS, all genders are created equal; and 
 
WHEREAS, amending the Los Gatos Town Code to include gender-neutral pronouns by 

eliminating any gender preference language within the Angleton Code will promote equality. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PEOPLE OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS AND THE TOWN COUNCIL 

DO HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION I 
 

INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos finds that all 
Recitals are true and correct and incorporate them herein by this reference. 

 
SECTION II 

 
The pronouns throughout the Los Gatos Town Code are amended to promote gender-

neutral pronouns. 
 

SECTION III 
 

Subject to final approval by the Town Attorney, the Municipal Code Corporation has 
authority to degenderize the Los Gatos Town Code and update pronouns when appropriate, 
which authority includes the updating of future ordinances, by making changes such as the 
following: 

 

 Gendered subject (he, she, etc.), object (him, her, etc.) and possessive (his, hers, etc.) 
pronouns shall be replaced by a gender-neutral description of the pronoun referent’s title 
of office, employment, or descriptor.  For example, where a code section refers to a 
“director” all subsequent gendered pronouns shall be replaced by “the Director” in 
subjective case, “that Director” in the objective case, and “the Director’s” in the 
possessive case. 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Page 113



2 of 2  
 Ordinance   Council Meeting Date 

 
SECTION IV 

 
This Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of 

Los Gatos on the 17th day of  August 2021, and adopted by the following vote as an ordinance of 
the Town of Los Gatos at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Los Gatos on 
the _____ day of _____________ 2021. This ordinance takes effect 30 days after it is adopted.  
In lieu of publication of the full text of the ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its passage a 
summary of the ordinance may be published at least five (5) days prior to and fifteen (15) days 
after adoption by the Town Council and a certified copy shall be posted in the office of the 
Town Clerk, pursuant to GC 36933(c)(1). 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

AYES:   

NAYS:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

       SIGNED: 
 
 
 

      MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
       LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 
 
       DATE: __________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
TOWN CLERK OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 

DATE: __________________ 

Page 114



 

PREPARED BY: Lisa Velasco 
 Human Resources Director 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 6 

 
   

 

DATE:   September 1, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan to Align the 
Temporary Communication Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps with the 
TEA Communication Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve an amendment to the Temporary classification plan (Attachment 1) to align the 
Temporary Communication Dispatcher classification salary steps with the TEA Communication 
Dispatcher classification salary steps. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Town of Los Gatos Personnel Rules and Regulations (Section 4.4) require that amendments 
and revisions to the classification plan are effective upon approval by Town Council.  The 
Town’s classification plan is represented in each of the six separate employee group salary 
schedules.  The California Public Employees’ Retirement System that administers the Town’s 
employee pension plan and health plan benefits, also require that salary schedule changes be 
formally adopted by an agency’s governing body.  In most cases, changes are typically 
presented to Council for approval as part of the formal budget adoption or through the labor 
negotiations process. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The Town currently has eight (8) budgeted full time equivalent (FTE) Communication Dispatcher 
positions represented by the Town Employees’ Association (TEA) bargaining unit.  Two (2) 
positions are vacant and two (2) positions are filled by new employees that are in the process of 
completing a rigorous training program before they can operate independently as 
Communication Dispatchers.  A third position became vacant as of September 1, 2021.  The 
combined vacancies and trainee positions result in the Town’s 24-hour operating emergency  

Page 115



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Approve an Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan 
DATE:  September 1, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

dispatch center being staffed by three (3) FTE fully trained employees.   
 
Even with overtime options, this staffing model is not sustainable and places the Town’s FTE 
employees at risk for burn-out, illness, and safety issues due to lack of rest.  The Police 
Department is quickly pursuing alternatives to keep the function continuously staffed and one 
solution is to supplement the Town’s FTE’s by actively recruiting full-time Communication 
Dispatcher’s from other agencies to work part-time for the Town of Los Gatos to fill in the 
staffing gaps.  This type of employee is typically referred to as a per diem employee because 
they are already fully trained in the dispatch function and as a common practice receive the 
same rate of pay as the Town’s FTE Communication Dispatcher classification.  In recent years, 
the Town’s pay rates for per diem Communication Dispatcher, identified on the Temporary 
Classification salary table, have fallen below the TEA Communication Dispatcher classifications 
by approximately 7% which presents a recruitment challenge. 
 
To address the current inequity and to prevent the same situation from occurring in the future, 
staff is recommending that instead of identifying a specific pay range on the Temporary 
Classifications Salary schedule, that the range is identified by the verbiage “equal to the hourly 
rate for TEA Communication Dispatcher”. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Due to the current FTE Communication Dispatcher vacancies in the Police Department, staff is 
recommending that the Communication Dispatcher Temporary Salary Schedule be amended.  
Instead of indicating specific hourly rates, the verbiage “equal to the hourly rate for TEA 
Communication Dispatcher” would be added.  The amendment would ensure that the 
temporary hourly pay rates are consistently in line with the FTE pay rates which should aid in 
the recruitment of per diem Communication Dispatchers to support minimum staffing needs. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The annual fiscal impact will be absorbed in the Police Department’s FY 2021/22 operating 
budget as a result of the existing vacancies. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

Attachment: 
1. Temporary Classifications Salary Schedule 
 

Page 116



Town of Los Gatos Temporary Classifications
Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020/21

Effective July 1, 2020
Adopted by Town Council September 7, 2021

Class 
Code

Classification Title Rate Type Range STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6

9305 Account Clerk Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-04 $24.28 $25.49 $26.76 $28.10 $29.51 $30.99
9310 Account Technician Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-10 $29.18 $30.64 $32.17 $33.78 $35.47 $37.24
9300 Accountant Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-17 $35.24 $37.00 $38.85 $40.79 $42.83 $44.97
9010 Admin Analyst Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-17 $35.24 $37.00 $38.85 $40.79 $42.83 $44.97
9100 Admin Specialist Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-10 $29.18 $30.64 $32.17 $33.78 $35.47 $37.24
9580 Administrative Assistant Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-05 $26.53 $27.86 $29.25 $30.71 $32.25 $33.86
9105 Administrative Secretary Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-09 $27.87 $29.26 $30.72 $32.26 $33.87 $35.56
9656 Assistant Engineer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-23 $39.93 $41.93 $44.03 $46.23 $48.54 $50.97
9655 Associate Civil Engineer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-24 $45.98 $48.28 $50.69 $53.22 $55.88 $58.67
9400 Associate Planner Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-22 $39.77 $41.76 $43.85 $46.04 $48.34 $50.76
9410 Building Inspector Temp/Hrly Hourly TE2-23 $39.93 $41.93 $44.03 $46.23 $48.54 $50.97
9112 Clerical Aide Temp/Hourly* Hourly TE2-01 $14.00 $14.70 $15.44 $16.21 $17.02 $17.87
9430 Code Compliance Officer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-16 $34.33 $36.05 $37.85 $39.74 $41.73 $43.82
9530 Communication Dispatcher Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-19
9545 Crime Analyst Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-18 $35.67 $37.45 $39.32 $41.29 $43.35 $45.52
9540 CSO Intern Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-03 $21.80 $22.89 $24.03 $25.23 $26.49 $27.81
9532 CSO Temp/Hrly Hourly TE2-12 $31.25 $32.81 $34.45 $36.17 $37.98 $39.88
9190 Deputy Clerk Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-04 $24.28 $25.49 $26.76 $28.10 $29.51 $30.99
9660 Engineering Technician Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-13 $32.05 $33.65 $35.33 $37.10 $38.96 $40.91
9621 Equipment Mechanic Temp Hourly AF2-01 $32.39 $34.01 $35.71 $37.50 $39.38 $41.35
9720 Facility Attendant Temp/Hourly* Hourly TE2-01 $14.00 $14.70 $15.44 $16.21 $17.02 $17.87
9109 Human Resources Specialist Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-09 $27.87 $29.26 $30.72 $32.26 $33.87 $35.56
9041 Intern I Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-02 $17.07 $17.92 $18.82 $19.76 $20.75 $21.79
9040 Intern II Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-03 $21.80 $22.89 $24.03 $25.23 $26.49 $27.81
9200 IT Technician Temp/Hrly Hourly TE2-14 $32.11 $33.72 $35.41 $37.18 $39.04 $40.99
9605 Lead Parks & Maint Worker Hourly AF2-06 $33.92 $35.62 $37.40 $39.27 $41.23 $43.29
9015 Legal Assistant Temp/Hrly Hourly TE2-17 $35.24 $37.00 $38.85 $40.79 $42.83 $44.97
9810 Librarian Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-15 $33.99 $35.69 $37.47 $39.34 $41.31 $43.38
9820 Library Assistant Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-06 $25.91 $27.21 $28.57 $30.00 $31.50 $33.08

Equal to the hourly rate for TEA Communications Dispatcher

Temp Dispatch 09.21 Page 1 of 2 Approved 9/7/21

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 117



Town of Los Gatos Temporary Classifications
Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020/21

Effective July 1, 2020
Adopted by Town Council September 7, 2021

Class 
Code

Classification Title Rate Type Range STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6

9840 Library Clerk Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-04 $24.28 $25.49 $26.76 $28.10 $29.51 $30.99
9850 Library Page Temp/Hourly* Hourly TE2-01 $14.00 $14.70 $15.44 $16.21 $17.02 $17.87
9830 Library Teen Services Specialist Hourly TE2-03 $21.80 $22.89 $24.03 $25.23 $26.49 $27.81
9600 Maintenance Assistant Hourly AF2-02 $16.30 $17.12 $17.98 $18.88 $19.82 $20.81
9900 Network Administrator Hourly TE2-21 $38.03 $39.93 $41.93 $44.03 $46.23 $48.54
9180 Office Assistant Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-04 $24.28 $25.49 $26.76 $28.10 $29.51 $30.99
9645 Park Service Officer Aide Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-03 $21.80 $22.89 $24.03 $25.23 $26.49 $27.81
9640 Park Service Officer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-12 $31.25 $32.81 $34.45 $36.17 $37.98 $39.88
9560 Parking Control Officer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-04 $24.28 $25.49 $26.76 $28.10 $29.51 $30.99
9620 Parks & Main Worker Temp Hourly AF2-04 $27.28 $28.64 $30.07 $31.57 $33.15 $34.81
9630 Parks & Main Worker Trainee Temp Hourly AF2-03 $22.30 $23.42 $24.59 $25.82 $27.11 $28.47
9440 Permit Technician Hourly TE2-11 $30.07 $31.57 $33.15 $34.81 $36.55 $38.38
9590 Police Officer Reserve (Top Step of Officer) Hourly TE2-25 $62.57
9520 Police Officer Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-25 $62.57
9550 Police Records Specialist Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-08 $27.18 $28.54 $29.97 $31.47 $33.04 $34.69
9650 Public Works Inspector Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-20 $37.74 $39.63 $41.61 $43.69 $45.87 $48.16
9670 Senior Electrician Temp/Hourly Hourly TE2-23 $39.93 $41.93 $44.03 $46.23 $48.54 $50.97
9831 Senior Library Page Hourly TE2-02 $17.07 $17.92 $18.82 $19.76 $20.75 $21.79
9725 Special Event Attendant Hourly TE2-07 $16.30 $17.12 $17.98 $18.88 $19.82 $20.81
9610 Ticket Booth Attendant* Hourly AF2-05 $14.00 $14.70 $15.44 $16.21 $17.02 $17.87

Reflects General Increase of 1%

*Approved rate change January 19, 2021, effective January 1, 2021

Temp Dispatch 09.21 Page 2 of 2 Approved 9/7/21
Page 118



 

PREPARED BY: Lisa Velasco 
 Human Resources Director 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 6 

DESK ITEM 

 

 

   

 

DATE:   September 7, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan to Align the 
Temporary Communication Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps with the 
TEA Communication Dispatcher Classification Salary Steps 

 

REMARKS: 

As additional information, below please find the current and proposed hourly rates for the 
Temporary Communication Dispatcher classification: 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 

Current $36.98 $38.83 $40.77 $42.81 $44.95 $47.20 

Proposed $39.05 $41.00 $43.05 $45.20 $47.46 $50.41 

 
Also, attachment 2 contains public comment received after 11:01 a.m. on September 2, 2021 
and before 11:00 a.m. on September 7, 2021. 
 

Attachment Previously Received with the Staff Report: 
1. Temporary Classifications Salary Schedule 
 
Attachments Included with this Desk Item: 
2.  Public Comment received between 11:01 a.m. on September 2, 2021 and before 11:00 a.m. 

on September 7, 2021. 
 

Page 119



From: Denali Lumma  
Sent: Saturday, September 4, 2021 3:52 PM 
To: Town Manager; Marico Sayoc 
Subject: Los Gatos Police Department Crisis 
 
Hello Town Manager Prevetti and Mayor Sayoc, 
 
I've become aware of a staffing crisis with the Los Gatos Police Department. Apparently the Los Gatos 
Dispatchers are reaching a dangerously low staffing level and the Chief of Police has just resigned. 
 
Would you please help me understand what is going on, what has led us to this point and what the 
strategy will be moving forward to ensure law and order in the town of Los Gatos? 
 
Thank you, 
-Denali Lumma 

  

ATTACHMENT 2Page 120



From: Joseph Hassoun <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 7, 2021 3:58 AM 
To: Town Manager 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 
 
Re: Ensure Our Safety! 
 
Dear Laurel Prevetti, 
 
Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 
 
As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 
 
How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 
 
Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 
 
Now Chief Decena resigned! 
 
Please address this issue immediately! 
 
WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 
 
Sincerely, 
Joseph Hassoun 

 
 

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or 
association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact info@oneclickpolitics.com 

 

  

Page 121



From: Jamie Ellis <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 12:18 AM 
To: Town Manager 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 
 
Re: Public Safety Crisis 
 
Dear Laurel Prevetti, 
Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 
As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 
 
How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 
 
Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 
 
Now Chief Decena resigned! 
 
Please address this issue immediately! 
 
WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 
 
Sincerely, 
Jamie Ellis 

 
Santa Clara, CA 95050 Constituent 

 
Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or 
association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact info@oneclickpolitics.com 

  

Page 122



From: Melissa Rojek <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 2:58 AM 
To: Town Manager 
Subject:  
 
Re:  
 
Dear Laurel Prevetti, 
 
Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 
 
As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 
 
How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 
 
Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 
 
Now Chief Decena resigned! 
 
Please address this issue immediately! 
 
WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 
 
Sincerely, 
Melissa Rojek 

 
 

 provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or 
association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact info@oneclickpolitics.com 

  

Page 123



From: Kerri Dunlay <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 12:00 PM 
To: Town Manager 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 
 
Re: Ensure Our Safety! 
 
Dear Laurel Prevetti, 
 
Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 
 
As a resident of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the "Public Safety Crisis," 
specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 
 
The most important function as a an elected body is to ensure public services (fire & police safety) are 
maintained at the highest levels. These days it appears your priorities have turned to social engineering 
the towns people belief systems telling them what to think vs our fundamental public services. Might I 
remind you, you serve at the pleasure of the people. Allowing public services that provide safety to be 
put at risk is a dereliction of duty. 
 
How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 
 
Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful town. 
 
Now Chief Decena resigned. 
 
Please address this issue immediately! 
 
WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! A lot better. And if you don’t start 
providing it you’ll be gone too. 
 
Sincerely, 
Kerri Dunlay 
 
Sincerely, 
Kerri Dunlay 

Constituent 
 
Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com 
 
  

Page 124



From: James Wetra <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 1:25 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the "Public Safety Crisis," 
specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

James Wetra  

Sincerely,  
James Wetra 

 
 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 125



From: Annika Koltermann <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 3:08 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! Your Police Department Needs Your Help. 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! Your Police Department Needs Your Help. 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

Our police department is falling apart at the seams. For months now they have been operating at 
critically understaffed levels. The burden placed on dispatchers, who are the first contact between the 
public and officers, is insurmountable. The remaining three (3) dispatchers are having to work continual 
overtime because of this staffing crisis, where a normal shift is 12 hours a day, and that means 
sometimes 7-10+ days of straight work without a day off. It is unreasonable and unacceptable, but 
unfortunately it is the only option to keeping your police department running. Your police officers, who 
are dedicated to protecting this community and keeping you and your families safe, cannot do their jobs 
without dispatchers. It is physically impossible. They are the foundation that keeps your police 
department running. Without a coordinated effort to hire more dispatchers, to increase the salary so 
actually qualified individuals want to apply, your police department will be unable to operate before the 
year is out.  

The only option then would be to contract with the Sheriff's department to protect Los Gatos, and you 
would be losing a wealth of knowledge from the individuals who protect our town. Our officers know 
these streets, they know the residents and have connections to the community, and are better able to 
protect Los Gatos because of it.  

Furthermore, your police officers are critically short staffed as well. This is not a problem that can be 
solved by only hiring one or two more people. It is getting to the point where the number of officers 
able to work a shift is unsafe, simply because there are so few of them. These men and women are 
doing their absolute best, but they are struggling and still need support. I cannot emphasize enough how 
the police department is hemorrhaging.  

If budgeting concerns are your objection to supporting our police department, consider how much the 
overtime salaries are costing Los Gatos. Almost every officer is consistently working overtime shifts out 
of necessity because of the staffing crisis. One of our officers had to work over two weeks straight in 
recent months. This is mentally, emotionally, and physically exhausting. Yet this is nothing compared to 
the amount of overtime the dispatchers are having to work to cover week days, week nights, weekend 
days, and weekend nights, all of which are 12 hour shifts. This puts an extreme mental, physical, and 
emotional strain on these dedicated men and women, and is not something that can be maintained long 
term or even short term.  

Page 126



It would actually be more cost effective to hire more dispatchers and police officers, then have to pay 
these overworked men and women for so much overtime.  

PLEASE ACT BEFORE IT IS TOO LATE AND OUR DISPATCHERS AND POLICE OFFICERS REFUSE TO 
TOLERATE THESE ABYSMAL WORKING CONDITIONS. The safety of Los Gatos depends on it.  

There's an easy fix: increase the dispatcher salaries so more qualified individuals apply to the position 
and then hire more dispatchers! That's the first step to saving our police department.  

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! Please don't let us down.  

Sincerely,  
Annika Koltermann 

 
Santa Clara, CA 95051 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

 

  

Page 127



From: Ruth Kolesar <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 2:13 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Ruth Kolesar 

 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 128



From: Glenn Fortin <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 8:44 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Glenn Fortin 

Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 129



From: Maureen Heberling <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 12:48 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Maureen Heberling 

 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 130



From: Vladimir Zininberg <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 2:54 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Vladimir Zininberg 

 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com 
 
  

Page 131



From: Amy Scruggs <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 10:30 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Amy Scruggs 

 
Campbell, CA 95008 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 132



From: Cecilia Bergh <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 3:42 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Cecilia Bergh 

Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 133



From: Stephen Brodsky <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 4:24 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Stephen Brodsky 

Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 134



From: Deanna Dresti <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 6:33 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Deanna Dresti 

 
 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 135



From: Erin Reed <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 6, 2021 8:03 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Erin Reed 

 
San Jose, CA 95118 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 136



From: Carrie Walton <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 12:01 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! Crime is on the rise! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! Crime is on the rise! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Carrie Walton 

 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 137



From: Danielle Spangenberg <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 7:52 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Danielle Spangenberg 

 
Gilroy, CA 95020 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 138



From: Kathleen Wysuph <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 7:17 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Kathleen Wysuph 

 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 139



From: Jim Zanardi <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 5:21 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Jim Zanardi 

 
Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com 

  

Page 140



From: Veronica Nourse <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 8:09 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Veronica Nourse 

 
 Cupertino, CA 95014 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 141



From: Ali Motamedi <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 8:11 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Ali Motamedi 

Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

 

  

Page 142



Page 143



From: Kathryn Byers <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 11:13 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Kathryn Byers 

 
Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

 

  

Page 144



From: Berlina Moeharjo <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 8:11 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Berlina Moeharjo 

 
Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 145



From: Meghan mcphail <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 7:42 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Meghan mcphail 

 
San Jose, CA 95124 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 146



From: Norman Arnold <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 2:19 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Norman Arnold 

 
ampbell, CA 95008 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com 
 
  

Page 147



From: Leslie Loretto <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 8:36 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Leslie Loretto 

 
Cupertino, CA 95014 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 148



From: Danielle Moye <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 7:43 AM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Danielle Moye 

 
San diego, CA 92128 Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 149



From: Dean Bell <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 4:20 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

 

Re: Address the Los Gatos "Public Safety Crisis" 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a 25 year resident of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the "Public Safety Crisis," 
specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety? 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low. 

Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Sincerely,  
Dean Bell 

 
Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 150



From: Jen Irwin <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Sunday, September 5, 2021 9:45 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Jen Irwin 

 
Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 151



From: Patricia Jean Ruch <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Saturday, September 4, 2021 10:19 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Ensure Our Safety! 

 

Re: Ensure Our Safety! 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better! 

Thank you for your attention to this crisis. Protecting public safety has always been the first priority of 
government1 

Patricia J. Ruch 

Sincerely,  
Patricia Jean Ruch 

 
 

Constituent  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 152



From: Bibi Sharma <myvoice@oneclickpolitics.com>  
Sent: Saturday, September 4, 2021 11:06 PM 
To: Town Manager <Manager@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Public Safety Crisis 

 

Re: Public Safety Crisis 

Dear Laurel Prevetti, 

Honorable Mayor Sayoc and Town Council Members, 

As a resident, business owner and/or visitor of Los Gatos, I strongly urge you to immediately address the 
"Public Safety Crisis," specifically the Dispatcher shortage. 

How can the City of Los Gatos allow such short staffing levels for such an important role in our public 
safety. 

Dispatcher levels are dangerously low.  
Dispatchers are leaving our beautiful city. 

Now Chief Decena resigned! 

Please address this issue immediately! 

WE, the residents and business owners of Los Gatos deserve better!  

Sincerely,  
Bibi Sharma 

 
  

Prepared by OneClickPolitics (tm) at www.oneclickpolitics.com. OneClickPolitics provides online communications tools for supporters of a cause, issue, 
organization or association to contact their elected officials. For more information regarding our policies and services, please contact 
info@oneclickpolitics.com  

  

Page 153



To the Honorable Town Council, 
 
I have spoken many times over the years of our need to keep the LGMSPD as our 
police department.  Los Gatos needs to have a local and knowledgeable police 
department; it is critical for our businesses and residents.   
 
Allowing the community to get to know our officers, and allowing the officers to get to 
know the community and the needs for each different neighborhood and business 
district makes it easier for both officers and the public.   
 
Our dispatchers are an integral part of our local police department.  I am writing to you 
to support the increase in the hourly pay for per diem dispatchers. Additionally, I 
strongly encourage an increase in salary for the existing dispatchers and a robust hiring 
plan to get the staffing levels back to a level that is safe for the town and fair for our 
dispatch personnel.   
 
I understand the dispatch center is currently 'manned' by 3 people. These 3 people are 
working the dispatch 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. We are budgeted 
for 8 full time dispatchers.  To believe we can continue with 3 dispatch personnel is 
absurd.  We need to be very proactive on a hiring drive and offer a salary that is on par 
with the area to attract the best dispatchers for Los Gatos.  
 
There has been a great deal of cost savings in the budget given the town has been 
operating a dispatch center with less than half the number of personnel.  We’d like the 
town to redeploy those existing funds to properly compensate dispatchers, so we are 
competitive with surrounding areas.  
 
The dispatch center provides a valuable lifeline to our police for the community.  They 
should be properly staffed and well compensated. 
 
Thank you, 
Sue Farwell 
 

Page 154



 

PREPARED BY: Arn Andrews 
 Assistant Town Manager/CHSSC Liaison 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 7 

 

 

DATE:   August 27, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Consider Recommendations from the Community Health and Senior Service 
Commission for the Allocation of $500,000 of American Recovery Plan Act 
(ARPA) Funding to Restore and Enhance Senior Service Provision Due to the 
Disproportionate Impacts on the Older Adult Community from COVID-19 and 
Provide any Additional Direction to Staff and Authorize an Expenditure 
Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $500,000 from Available ARPA Proceeds 
to Cover those Services. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Consider recommendations from the Community Health and Senior Service Commission for the 
allocation of $500,000 of American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA) funding to restore and enhance 
senior service provision due to the disproportionate impacts on the older adult community 
from COVID-19 and provide any additional direction to staff and authorize an expenditure 
budget adjustment in the amount of $500,000 from available ARPA proceeds to cover those 
services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 15, 2021, the Town Council received the Community Health and Senior Service 
Commissions (CHSSC) assessment report on senior service provision in Los Gatos (Attachment 
1).  At the conclusion of the Council discussion, the following direction was provided to staff 
and the CHSSC. 
 

 Council created a Committee to establish longer range goals for senior services in Town.  
The Committee would include the CHSSC, Councilmembers, service club representation,  

 

 

Page 155



PAGE 2 OF 5 
SUBJECT: CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendations 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 

Chamber representation, service providers, and senior community leaders.  Staff was to 
return to Council with a recommended list of composition of the Committee.  Council 
adopted the composition of the Committee at its August 3, 2021 meeting. 

 The Council allocated $500,000 in ARPA funding to address identified short-term senior 
service provision needs in next 12 months. 

 The CHSSC was to develop recommendations for Council on how to allocate the 
$500,000 to create a more restore and enhance provision of senior services over the 
next 12 months.    

 
Given Council’s direction, staff and the CHSSC solicited senior service provision proposals and 
reviewed those proposals for alignment with the CHSSC assessment and Council considerations.  
The Commission received proposals from Los Gatos Saratoga Recreation (LGS Rec), Saratoga 
Area Senior Coordinating Council (SASCC), and KCAT.  The Commission met on June 22, July 7, 
and July 27 to review submissions, ask questions of respondents, and request additional 
materials.  On August 31, 2021, the CHSSC held their final meeting to discuss the service 
provider final submissions and determine ARPA allocation recommendations for Council.   
 
DISCUSSION: 

Following are summaries of the service provider proposals.  Attachment 2 contains the 
complete submissions from LGS Rec, SASCC, and KCAT.   
 
LGS Rec 
 
The LGS Rec proposal is for the full $500,000 allocation divided between $383,700 toward pre-
pandemic service restoration and $116,300 toward service expansion.  Elements of  the LGS Rec 
proposal include: 
 
LGS Rec would return hours to furloughed staff  to focus on senior services.  In addition, the LGS 
Rec financial model includes leveraging ARPA funding with a match from non-Town sources for 
operational expenses up to 0.5 FTE for each classified staff compensation and benefits.  The 
proposal acknowledges that senior services is a front-facing enterprise which relies on staffing 
to interface with the community to facilitate programming.  The proposal also envisions the 
formation of an ARPA Grant Oversight Committee to act as a governing body and provide 
oversight of all elements covered by the grant award.   
 
Programmatic commitments include the resumption of hardcopy publication and mail 
distribution of The Print, enhanced volunteer recruitment and strategic partner collaboration, 
expanded 55+ program accessibility at multiple facilities,  resumption and increased event 
production, and increased membership goals.  
 

Page 156



PAGE 3 OF 5 
SUBJECT: CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendations 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

SASCC 
 
SASCC provided five proposals that could be engaged on an a la carte basis except for the 
Community Assessment Survey for Older Adults (CASOA) and Coordination services.  SASCC 
stated that the Senior Services Coordination efforts are intended to be informed by the CASOA 
results.  The proposal budgets range from $21,500 to $63,500.   
 
The Outlook ($30,000) - An age-friendly community newspaper reaching every home in Los 
Gatos monthly. The Outlook can be used in a variety of ways to reach Los Gatos residents with 
important information, public notices, and community news. 
 
Community Assessment Survey for Older Adults ($21,500) – CASOA serves as a strategic 
planning and evaluation tool. Data from the survey are used to develop informed service plans 
and to determine how resources may be allocated to achieve desired short-term goals, as well 
as to assist in forecasting long-term needs and solutions. 
 
Senior Services Coordination (63,500) - Creating a new roadmap for the Town's Age Friendly 
efforts, using the Community Assessment for Older Adults data as a guide. 
 
Los Gatos Age-Friendly Health Fair ($30,000) - A free and fun community-wide event designed 
to encourage healthy living and an active, engaged lifestyle across all ages. Free health 
screenings, vaccinations, resources, and information for the whole community. 
 
Los Gatos Senior Resource Drive-Through Events ($10,000) - Popup resource fairs designed to 
provide support, information, community resources and a free meal to older adults while they 
remain in the comfort of their vehicles. 
 
KCAT 
 
The KCAT proposal seeks $200,000 in funding to develop a community of 55+ volunteers who 
would help create and run local public access TV and internet radio.  The program entitled “The 
Producers” would utilize KCAT staff to teach and train community members how to produce, 
film, edit, and broadcast video, TV shows, and radio.  The program is designed to help ease 
senior isolation through increased senior engagement.  
 
KCAT envisions a stream of individuals and groups of seniors coming in-studio to develop and 
produce entire seasons of shows on an on-going, rolling basis, with one group following and 
coordinating with the other as they navigate the production process together.  In-studio 
production would include everything from talent searching, scriptwriting, set design, curating  
 
 

Page 157



PAGE 4 OF 5 
SUBJECT: CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendations 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

shows, and ultimately developing programming which may include advertising and potential 
revenue streams.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The following table provides a summary of individual Commissioner allocation 
recommendations which all total $500,000.  Commissioner Bloom needed to recuse himself 
due to a relationship with one of the providers and the Youth Commissioner has not yet been 
appointed for this fiscal year.   
 

SERVICE PROVIDER 
PROPOSALS 

 
Proposed 

Budget 

 
Konrad 

 
Rossmann 

 
Norcia 

 
Rahmil 

LGS Rec – Pre-pandemic 
Service Restoration  

$383,700 383,700 380,000 365,000 365,000 

LGS Rec – Service Expansion $116,300 0 0 50,000 50,000 

SASCC – Outlook Community 
Newspaper 

$30,000 30,000 0 10,000 10,000 

SASCC – Community 
Assessment Survey 

$21,500 0 0 0 0 

SASCC – Senior Services 
Coordination 

$63,500 16,300 0 0 0 

SASCC – Age Friendly Health 
Fair 

$30,000 10,000 15,000 10,000 10,000 

SASCC – Senior Resource Drive 
Through Events 

$10,000 10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 

KCAT – “The Producers” 55+ 
Volunteer Program 

$200,000 50,000 100,000 60,000 60,000 

                                                            
TOTAL 

$855,000   

 
As the table illustrates, there were some areas of consensus; however, at differing dollar 
allocations and other areas of no consensus.  In general, there was broad agreement to fund 
the majority of the LGS Rec service restoration proposal.   

Page 158



PAGE 5 OF 5 
SUBJECT: CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendations 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
CONCLUSION (continued): 
 
There was also broad agreement to fund the SASCC Health Fair and Senior Drive Through 
proposals and the KCAT “Producers” proposal, however, at differing dollar allocations.  There 
was a majority consensus to fund the SASCC Outlook proposal but again at differing dollar 
allocations.  Majority consensus was not achieved for the LGS Rec Service Expansion, SASCC 
Community Survey, and SASCC Service Coordination proposals.  
 
Staff generally concurs with the Commission’s assessment with the exception of the 
Community Assessment Survey proposal.  While the Commission has a good understanding of 
older adult issues facing the community through their role on the Commission, the Council may 
wish to consider bringing this item forward to the new Senior Service Committee.   Given that 
the Committee is tasked with developing a roadmap for long-term service provision in Town, a 
statistically valid survey from a broader older adult sample size could yield valuable information 
during the initial phase of the Committees work. 
 
COORDINATION: 
 
This staff report was coordinated with the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance 
Director. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is sufficient funding  from the ARPA proceeds to cover the proposed services..  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

Attachments: 
1. CHSSC Senior Needs Assessment 
2. Service Provider Proposals 

 

Page 159



PREPARED BY: Arn Andrews 
Assistant Town Manager/CHSSC Liaison 

Reviewed by: Town Manager and Town Attorney 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS  

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 06/15/2021 

ITEM NO: 20 

DATE: June 9, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Receive the Community Health and Senior Services Report on Senior Service 
Provision and Assessment Recommendations 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive the Community Health and Senior Services (CHSSC) Report on Senior Service Provision 
and Assessment Recommendations. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2001 the Town launched a pilot senior services program with a dedicated Senior Center 
within the Neighborhood Center, a Senior Coordinator staff position, and funding for case 
management services.  The Senior Center program remained as a part of the Community 
Services Department until 2009.  In 2009, partially in response to budgetary constraints due to 
the recession, the Town partnered with Los Gatos-Saratoga Community Education and 
Recreation (LGS Rec) for the provision of senior services (Attachment 1).  The partnership 
became fully operational in FY 2010/11, resulting in increased revenue and decreased staffing 
and operating costs.   

As part of lease agreement (Attachment 2) with LGS Rec, the Town required that LGS Rec 
maintain and expand senior services at the Neighborhood Center.  The lease stipulates that LGS 
Rec provision services/programs to include services/programs similar in scope to the following: 

• Wednesday afternoon movies (once per month)

• Wednesday games program (weekly)

• Senior center dances (once per quarter)

• Bus trips (once per quarter)

• Senior Thanksgiving dinner (one per year)

ATTACHMENT 1
Page 160



PAGE 2 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 

• Senior picnic (one per year) 

• Senior show (one per year) 

• Senior Center newsletter (bi- monthly) 

• Information and referral to other agencies (ongoing) 

• Recreation classes will be expanded significantly as demand warrants. Examples include: 
language, arts and crafts, computer, and other special interest classes. 

 
In addition to the arrangement with LGS Rec, the Town has traditionally funded other senior 
service provision through the annual community grant program.  Of note, the Town provides 
grants for senior nutrition, senior day care services, and rent assistance. 
 
On March 2, 2021, the Town Council held a joint session with the Community Health and Senior 
Service Commission (CHSSC) to hear the Commission’s goals for the coming year.  The Council 
indicated its strong interest in the work of the Commission in light of the inclusion of senior 
services as a new Council Strategic Priority for FY 2021-2023.   
 
Councilmembers requested that the Commission review the current senior service provision in 
Town and help identify any gaps that exist in senior services.  Councilmembers and 
Commissioners identified the following areas of service provision interest/concern for 
Commission review. 
 
Communication and Information: 

• Better identification/communication with seniors using media that seniors use (e.g., 
print) 

• Increased centralized coordination among service providers (local, regional) 
 
Housing: 

• Move down housing options for seniors 
 
Community Support and Health Services: 

• Increased senior isolation due to COVID 

• Need for a plan to assist seniors with the vaccination process 
 
Social Participation: 

• Low senior engagement/programming relative to other Santa Clara County cities 

• Development of a state-of-the-art activity/community center 
 
Civic Participation and Employment: 

• Increase/leverage senior volunteer engagement in Town 

• Dedicated staffing resources to supplement volunteers 

Page 161



PAGE 3 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 

Senior Plan Development: 

• Develop roadmap for implementation of senior services as a strategic priority 

• Consideration of service provision business models in other communities 
 
At the conclusion of the meeting, Mayor Sayoc appointed Vice Mayor Rennie to be a Council 
Liaison to the Commission and requested that the Commission report back to the Town Council 
on June 15, 2021.  
 
DISCUSSION: 

Since that time the Commission accelerated their meeting schedule to accommodate the 
Mayor’s request to report back at the June 15, 2021, Town Council meeting.  The Commission’s 
work has focused on meeting with service providers to address the issues raised by the Town 
Council and Commission, understand existing service provision, review alternative business 
models, identify service gaps, and discuss potential recommendations to fill any gaps.   
 
To date the Commission received presentations from  the following service providers: 
 
March 23, 2021 – Los Gatos Saratoga Recreation 55+, Live Oak Senior Nutrition 
April 13, 2021 – West Valley Community Services,  Saratoga Area Senior Coordinating Council 
April 27, 2021 – Santa Clara County Department of Aging and Adult Services, Los Gatos Library 
May 11, 2021 – City of Cupertino Senior Center 
 
The table below summarizes the multitude of services provided by Commission presenters and 
other regional providers: 
 

Service Provider 
Food 

Assistance 
Rent/Fin 

Assistance 
Socialization 
And Events 

Recreation 
and 

Education 

Case 
Mgt 

Other 
Assistance 
(tax,legal)  

LGS Rec 55+ Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Live Oak Senior 
Nutrition 

Yes No Yes No No No 

West Valley Yes Yes  No No Yes Yes 

Saratoga Area 
Senior 
Coordinating 
Council (SASCC) 

Yes Yes 
(directory) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Page 162



PAGE 4 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 

Santa Clara 
County Dept 
Aging 

Yes Yes 
(directory) 

No No Yes Yes 

Los Gatos 
Library 

No No Yes Yes No No 

Cupertino Senior 
Center 

Yes 
(during Covid) 

Yes 
(directory) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Live Oak Adult 
Day Care 

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

Sourcewise Yes Yes 
(directory) 

No No Yes Yes 

Bay Area Older 
Adults 

No No Yes Yes No No 

 
As the table illustrates, the Los Gatos senior community has access to a considerable regional 
ecosystem of senior and intergenerational service provision.  In addition to reviewing existing 
services, the Commission researched the business models of other service providers as 
illustrated in the table below: 
 

Business Model 
LGS Rec 

55+ 
SASCC Campbell 

50+ 
Los Altos 

50+ 
Cupertino 

50+ 

Membership  83 
(5,418 since 

2016) 

2,000 1,100 1,500 1,500 
(2,400 pre 
pandemic) 

Membership Fee $25 $25 $25 $30 $23 - $28  
(Resident/Non) 

Facility Leased 
(Town 

subsidy) 

City 
Owned/Funded 

City Owned City Owned City 
Owned 

Budget $100k $1.2M $771k FY21 
$503k FY22 

$393k $2.5M 
(includes 

$350k 
discontinued 

case mgt 
program) 

Funding Subsidies 
from For 
Profit Arm 

Grants, Fees, 
Subsidies, 
Donations 

General 
Fund (GF) & 

Fees 

GF & Fees GF & Fees 

Staffing 0.5 FTE  
(1 Consultant) 

5 FTE 2.29 FTE 
(3 FTE reduction 

FY22) 

1.0 FTE, 3 
PT 

6.0 FTE, 15 
PT 

Publication Yes/Email 
(weekly) 

Yes/Print & 
Email 

(monthly) 

Yes/Print & 
Email 

(quarterly) 

Yes/Print & 
Email 

(bi-monthly) 

Yes/Mail & 
Email 

(bi-monthly) 

Page 163



PAGE 5 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 

Transportation RYDE 
Eligible 

Yes/RYDE 
Program 

RYDE Eligible Yes/On The 
Move 

Program 

RYDE 
Eligible 

 
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 

On May 25, 2021 and June 8, 2021, the CHSSC reviewed the information received from service 
providers, discussed elements of the data presented, received feedback from Council Liaison 
Rennie, heard public testimony, and initiated discussions of potential senior service provision 
recommendations for Town Council consideration.  The Commission acknowledged that certain 
recommendations could have budgetary constraints and may require separate short and long-
term proposals.  Of note, the Commission and Council liaison recognized the significant 
difference in dedicated funding toward senior services relative to peer organizations and 
agencies.  It should also be noted that while the Commission had general consensus regarding 
the identified issues, Commissioners had a spectrum of proposals to ameliorate the issues 
identified.  The following table illustrates the areas identified by the Commission for Council 
consideration. 
 

 
Issue(s) Short Term 

Proposal(s) 
Long Term 
Proposal(s) 

Communication/
Marketing  

No dedicated budget 
or centralized senior 

communication in 
relevant mediums 

• Fund/Leverage 
distribution of 
SASCC “Outlook” 
publication  

• Develop and fund a 
unique Los Gatos 
senior publication 

• Leverage Caring 
About Resident 
Elders (C.A.R.E.) 
program 

• Increase market 
awareness through 
a variety of 
marketing 
experimentation 

• Leverage Youth 
Commission social 
media skills 

• Develop longer 
range marketing 
plan for available 
senior services 
based on 
acceptance of 
marketing 
experimentation  

Page 164



PAGE 6 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 

Facility  Existing facility 
currently supports 
limited dedicated 

senior activity and is 
not competitive with 

neighboring 
jurisdictions facilities 

• Perform cosmetic 
and functional 
updates 
(interior/exterior) 
to existing facility  

• Explore partnering 
with newer existing 
facilities in Town to 
volunteer space  

• Construction of 
new facility or 
complete 
renovation of 
existing facility 

• Establish 501c3 
Senior Council (or 
other exploratory 
body) to initiate 
fundraising and 
awareness for a 
new senior center  

Service 
Coordination 
and 
Centralization 

Currently no 
centralized oversight 

for coordinating 
existing services 

• Provide additional 
funding to LGS Rec 
toward senior 
service staffing 

• Provide funding to 
a new service 
provider  

• Create position(s) 
within the Town  

• Assess the 
strengths and 
weaknesses of 
current LGS Rec 
business model 
relative to others 

• Determine 
preferred senior 
service provision 
business model 

• Provide funding to 
whatever service 
provider solution is 
pursued 

Service 
Expansion 

Due to Covid related 
budget impacts LGS 

Rec currently has 0.5 
FTE dedicated to 
senior services 

• Provide additional 
funding to LGS Rec 
toward senior 
service staffing 

• Provide funding to 
a new service 
provider  

• Create program 
and position(s) 
within the Town 

• Provide funding to 
whatever service 
provider solution is 
pursued 

Page 165



PAGE 7 OF 7 
SUBJECT: CHSSC Report on Senior Service Provision 
DATE:  June 9, 2021 
 

Volunteer 
Opportunities 

No centralized 
platform for senior 

volunteer 
opportunities  

• Leverage CHSSC to 
identify and 
promote volunteer 
opportunities 

• Leverage 
Community Based 
Organizations, 
schools, and Youth 
Commission 
 

• Encourage LGS Rec 
or other service 
provider to recruit 
volunteers from 
their membership  

 
CONCLUSION: 

Council should review the CHSSC recommendations and provide any guidance to staff on areas 
for proposed implementation.  Based on the areas identified for implementation staff will 
return to Council with a detailed implementation plan.   
 
COORDINATION: 

This staff report was coordinated with the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Community 
Health and Senior Service Commission. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

None at this time; however, Council’s direction may have fiscal impacts. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

Attachments: 
1. 2009 Staff Report 
2. LGS Rec Lease Agreement 
3. Public Comment Received by 11:00 a.m. June 10, 2021 
 

Page 166



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



 

PREPARED BY: Jim Harbin 
 Superintendent 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, Parks and Public Works 
Director, and Finance Director 

   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 8 

 
   

 

DATE: September 2, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Creekside Sports Park - Approve Ongoing Seasonal Field Lighting and Provide 
Feedback on Capital Maintenance Funding Needs 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Creekside Sports Park - Approve ongoing seasonal field lighting and provide feedback on capital 
maintenance funding needs. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Creekside Sports Park is the Town’s premier sports facility completed and opened in 2012.  
Since the opening of the Park, utilization has been very high especially during after school hours 
and weekends when Los Gatos United Soccer League and West Valley Red Hawks Lacrosse Club 
have exclusive use of the field.  Even during school hours, the field is used by the community for 
practice exercises and pick-up games daily.  The field turf is a synthetic artificial turf and asphalt 
base infill, with a design life of approximately 10 years. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Park utilization has continued to increase as popularity of the Park and related activities grows 
in the community.  With this increased popularity comes a growing demand for programmed 
access to the field by the youth leagues in an already saturated schedule.  Earlier this year due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, Parks and Public Works staff made an administrative decision to 
allow the use of portable solar LED lighting on the field to extend the field access to 8:30 p.m. in 
an effort to spread the practices and training camps apart.  This pilot effort was extremely 
successful with no effect to the surrounding neighborhood as the 8:30 time limit is customary 
during summer season’s natural lighting.  In addition, the Soccer League was diligent in 
adhering to the agreed upon time limits. 

Page 207



PAGE 2 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Creekside Sports Park - Approve Ongoing Seasonal Field Lighting and Provide 

Feedback on Capital Maintenance Funding Needs 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 
 

   
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
With Soccer League usage increasing by 20 percent this year, Los Gatos United Soccer League is 
again seeking support from the Town in continuing the use of temporary solar LED lighting to 
extend field use time this year.  Los Gatos United will fully fund the temporary lighting.  If this 
practice continues to be requested and accepted by the community, Parks and Public Works 
staff will consider bringing a more permanent lighting solution for Council consideration in the 
future. 
 
With the current popularity of the field and the expected future increases in utilization, the 
synthetic turf is quickly reaching the end of its useful life.  Parks and Public Works staff manage 
contracted routine maintenance of the turf for cleaning, combing of the infill, and striping, 
maintenance activities that ensure maximum life of the asset.  However, the field is uneven in 
high use areas and there are issues with ponding due to compacted areas of the sub-base 
material.  In addition, rubber asphalt-based infill is no longer desirable as it is very hot in the 
summer and produces a strong asphalt odor.  This type of infill also tracks and splashes around 
the players and becomes difficult to contain in the synthetic turf.  New materials would provide 
a much improved environment for play. 
 
Perimeter netting at the field is in place to contain the soccer and lacrosse balls within the field 
of play, protecting spectators and the parking lot from injury and damage outside of the field 
area.  The netting has been patched many times, but the existing netting is old and frayed and 
can no longer support the patches.   
 
The cost of replacing the field is expected to range from $500,000 to $900,000, with the higher 
end representing the existing high-quality field.  Staff has discussed cost sharing options for 
funding replacement work with the league partners Los Gatos United Soccer League and West 
Valley Red Hawks Lacrosse Club.  Both are amenable to capital contributions.  Where 
appropriate, staff will use the budget process to administer replacement work. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Lighting of sports fields can become a controversial subject in some neighborhoods.  Los Gatos 
United Soccer has administered their program responsibly and staff recommends ongoing 
continuation. 
 
Capital maintenance needs will be significant over the next several years.  The Town Council 
may want to provide guidance to the partners on funding of expected costs to allow time for 
fund raising. 
 
 

Page 208



PAGE 3 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Creekside Sports Park - Approve Ongoing Seasonal Field Lighting and Provide 

Feedback on Capital Maintenance Funding Needs 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 
 

   
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None associated with this agenda item. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project as defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

 

 

Page 209



 

PREPARED BY: Matt Morley  
 Parks and Public Works Director 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, Police Chief, and Finance 
Director 

   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 9   

 
   

 

DATE:   September 2, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Create a New Project in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Capital Improvement 
Program Budget for Civic Center Security Improvements and Authorize an 
Expenditure Budget Adjustment in the Amount of $110,000 from Available 
General Fund Appropriated Reserve (GFAR) and Authorize the Town Manager 
to Enter into an Agreement not to Exceed the Budgeted Amount.   
 

  

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Create a new project in the FY 2021/22 Capital Improvement Program budget for Civic Center 
Security Improvements and authorize an expenditure budget adjustment in the in the amount 
of $110,000 from available General Fund Appropriated Reserve (GFAR) and authorize the Town 
Manager to enter into an agreement not to exceed the budgeted amount.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On August 17, 2021, staff provided an update on the Town’s Capital Improvement Program, 
including unfunded needs with recommendations for allocating additional funding to three 
projects.  The Town Council provided feedback that the projected cost of one of those options, 
security improvements at the back of the Civic Center, was too high.  Staff had preliminarily 
estimated $275,000 to fully secure the area. 
 
This project developed from staff concerns due to public access in the space between the Civic 
Center and Pageant Grounds.  This area is currently programmed for staff parking and 
maintenance operations and posted for no public access.  The area has been the location of a 
number of troubling incidents, including a vehicle pursuit, suicide by firearm, and attempted 
vehicle break-ins.  These have led to serious concern for the safety of staff who use the area,  
 

Page 210



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Create a New Project in the 2021/22 Capital Improvement Program Budget for Civic 

Center Security Improvements in the Budgeted Amount of $110,000 and Authorize 
the Town Manager to Enter an Agreement not to Exceed the Budgeted Amount.   

DATE:  September 2, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
especially late at night.  Additionally, the location is frequented by bicyclists, skateboarders, and 
pedestrians, who use the space with impudence, racing down the hill without heed to vehicles 
that may be entering or exiting.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Following the August 17, 2021 meeting, staff revisited the scope of the project, focusing on 
incrementally addressing immediate security concerns.  The project scope originally included a 
fully fenced area that would completely eliminate public use.  As a reduced scope, staff feels 
that adding a fence and pedestrian gate along the library end of the location and an automated 
vehicle gate along the Pageant Way side of the area would significantly improve the safety of 
the area.  Pedestrian access would continue to be available; however, vehicles would not have 
access and the gate at Pageant Way would discourage speeding bicyclists and skateboarders.   
 
This work could be done in such a way to allow for later implementation of the full plan should 
the Council wish to fund it at a future point.  The estimated budget for this more limited project 
is $110,000. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Approval of the recommendation will allow for staff to proceed with addressing immediate 
security concerns and incremental phasing of this project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

At the August 17, 2021 Council meeting, the Town Council discussed a General Fund Allocated 
Reserve fund balance of approximately $1,675,000 and allocated $742,000 to new and existing 
projects.  The remaining balance of approximately $933,000 remains available to fund the 
recommendation in this report and for future capital projects.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is a project defined under CEQA as being Categorically Exempt [Section 15301(f) Existing 
Facilities - Addition of safety or health protection devices].   
 
Attachment: 
1. Conceptual Project Diagram 

Page 211



CLELAND AV

PA
G

EA
N

T 
W

Y

CURRENT RECOMMENDATION
POTENTIAL FUTURE PROJECT Not to Scale

ATTACHMENT 1Page 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



 

PREPARED BY: Matt Morley 
 Parks and Public Works Director  
   
 

Reviewed by:  Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, and Town Attorney  
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 10 

 
   

 

DATE:   September 2, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Consideration and Adoption of an Interim Urgency Ordinance of the Town 
Council of the Town of Los Gatos Extending the Water Conservation Urgency 
Ordinance for Ten Months and Fifteen Days 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Staff recommends that the Town Council extend the Water Conservation Urgency Ordinance 
(Attachment 1) for ten months, fifteen days. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 9, 2021, Valley Water's Board of Directors adopted Resolution 21-86 declaring an 
emergency water shortage and calling for water savings of 15 percent compared to 2019 usage.  
Valley Water is a governmental agency that serves as the primary water “wholesaler” covering 
most of Santa Clara County and all of the Town of Los Gatos.    
 
The San Jose Water Company (SJWC) is a private utility company that serves as the primary 
water “retailer” serving residents and businesses in the Town of Los Gatos.  SJWC has 
implemented its Water Contingency Plan.   
 
Both the SCVWD and SJWC are subject to regulatory and drought requirements of the California 
State Water Resources Control Board (CSWRCB) and the California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC).  Neither Valley Water nor SJWC have authority to enforce regulations at the local level.  
It is through partnerships with local regulatory agencies like the Town that water conservation 
enforcement can occur.  
 
The Town Council passed a 45 Day Urgency Ordinance on August 3, 2021 to facilitate support of 
drought restrictions.  An “Urgency Ordinance” allows for the adoption of the ordinance and  
 

Page 213



PAGE 2 OF 3 
SUBJECT:  Extend the Water Conservation Urgency Ordinance  
DATE:   September 2, 2021 
 

   
 

BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
immediate enforcement, without typical noticing prior to the ordinance being heard by the 
Town Council.  An Urgency Ordinance requires a four-fifths majority for adoption.  The Town 
Council may extend the ordinance for a period of ten months and fifteen days, subject to 
noticing and public hearing requirements.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

Both Valley Water and San Jose Water have established guidelines for conservation during the 
drought.  The proposed Urgency Ordinance provides for a number of conservation measures, 
pulling from each of the documents of these partner agencies.  A comparative list of 
conservation measures is provided as Attachment 2.  The Urgency Ordinance (Attachment 1) 
before the Council in September is identical to the one considered in August.  Some elements of 
the Town’s Urgency Ordinance include: 

 Limited watering of ornamental landscapes or lawns to a maximum of three days a week 
and before 9 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. 

 Prohibition of potable water use that results in flooding or runoff in gutters or streets. 

 Allows individual private washing of cars only with a hose that includes a shut off nozzle. 

 Prohibits the use of potable water for washing of buildings, driveways, sidewalks, etc. 

 Prohibits the use of potable water for filling or refilling swimming pools. 

 Requires restaurants to serve water to patrons only upon request. 

 Other elements as included in the proposed ordinance. 
 
As in the past, Town staff will work with partners at SJWC and Valley Water to educate 
residents of the need to conserve.  Enforcement actions will remain an option only where 
flagrant non-compliance exists. 
 
Town Leading by Example 
 
As documented in the report for the August 3, 2021 Council meeting, the Town has led the way 
in conservation efforts.  Many previous efforts, including low flow toilets and aerators on 
faucets, remain in place.  Over the summer staff implemented a number of additional 
conservation effort, including a dedicated web page and marketing campaign - 
#DroughtReadyLG at www.losgatosca.gov/DroughtReadyLG.com; reduced fountain hours at 
Plaza Park and Town Hall; and reduced irrigation of turf at Town facilities, including Parks.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 214

http://www.losgatosca.gov/DroughtReadyLG.com


PAGE 3 OF 3 
SUBJECT:  Extend the Water Conservation Urgency Ordinance  
DATE:   September 2, 2021 
 

   
 

CONCLUSION: 
 
Extension of the Urgency Ordinance and implementing Town conservation efforts will allow for 
immediate action towards community wide water savings to achieve the 15 percent targeted 
reduction. 
 
COORDINATION: 
 
This project has been coordinated with Code Enforcement in the Community Development 
Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

Minimal costs for outreach will be absorbed by the Parks and Public Works Department 
Operating Budget. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
This is not a project as defined under CEQA and is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline 15307 (Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of Natural Resources). 
 
Attachments:  

1. Draft Urgency Ordinance 2321 
2. Comparative List of Conservation Measures 
3. Public Comment 

Page 215



DRAFT  
ORDINANCE 2321 

 
EXTENSION OF AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS FOR A PERIOD OF 

TEN MONTHS AND FIFTEEN DAYS 
DECLARING THE EXISTENCE OF A CONDITION OF WATER SHORTAGE 

AND PROVIDING FOR MANDATORY REDUCTIONS IN AND SPECIFIED PROHIBITIONS OF 
WATER USE 

 
WHEREAS, on August 3, 2021, in accordance with Government Code section 36900, the Town 

Council at a duly noticed public meeting took testimony and adopted Interim Ordinance No. 2319, (a 
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A” and incorporated herein) an urgency interim ordinance 
that regulated water use, for a period of 45 days. 
  

WHEREAS, on September 7, 2021, in accordance with Government Code section 36900, the 
Town Council held a duly noticed public hearing and took testimony regarding this urgency ordinance 
to extend Interim Ordinance No. 2319 ("Extension Ordinance"); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered, and by adopting this Extension Ordinance ratifies 
and adopts, the report, which is incorporated in the Staff Report dated September 7, 2021, describing 
the continued drought conditions which led to the adoption of Ordinance No. 2319; and  
 

WHEREAS, because the conditions justifying the adoption of Interim Ordinance 2319 have not 
been alleviated, the Town Council now desires to extend the restrictions on the use of water 
established by Interim Ordinance No. 2319 for an additional ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days, as 
permitted by Government Code Section 36900.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS FINDS AND ORDAINS: 
 

SECTION I 

The Council finds and declares that the State of California and the Town of Los Gatos 
are  continuing to experience severe drought conditions that require immediate and decisive 
action for the  preservation of public peace, health and safety. The Council further finds that delay 
in adopting an ordinance to further reduce water waste will further exacerbate the drought 
conditions. The Council further finds that urgent action is needed to comply with the requirements 
that Valley Water and the State of California recommend. Accordingly, the Council finds that an 
urgency ordinance is warranted to address these conditions. 

 
SECTION II 

The Council finds and determines that a state of drought and water shortage exists 
throughout the Santa Clara Valley. Water conservation measures are necessary and water 
consumption must be reduced by fifteen percent. Failure to reduce water consumption would 
contribute to the existing water shortage. The following measure is  necessary to preserve the 
health and safety of the people of Los Gatos. 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
Page 216



 
SECTION III 

A. The following uses of water are classified as "nonessential or unauthorized" and 
are prohibited: 
(1) Watering of ornamental landscapes or lawns with potable water beyond maximum level of 

three days a week and watering before 9:00 A.M. or after 5:00 p.m. 
(2) Excessive use of water: when a utility has notified the customer in writing to repair a broken 

or defective plumbing, sprinkler, watering or irrigation system and the customer has failed 
to affect such repairs within five business days, the utility may install a flow restriction 
device.  

(3) Use of potable water that results in flooding or runoff in gutters or streets. 
(4) Individual private washing of cars with a hose except with the use of a positive action shut-

off nozzle. Use of potable water for washing commercial aircraft, cars, buses, boats, trailers, 
or other commercial vehicles at any time, except at commercial or fleet vehicle or boat 
washing facilities operated at a fixed location where equipment using water is properly 
maintained to avoid wasteful use. 

(5) Use of potable water for washing buildings, structures, driveways, patios, parking lots, 
tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced areas, except in the cases where health and safety are 
at risk. 

(6) Use of potable water for construction purposes unless no other source of water or other 
method can be used. 

(7) Use of potable water for decorative fountains or the filling or topping off of decorative lakes 
or ponds. Exceptions are made for those decorative fountains, lakes, or ponds which utilize 
recycled water. 

(8) Use of potable water for the filling or refilling of swimming pools. 
(9) Service of water by any restaurant except upon the request of a patron. 

 
B. The taking of any action in violation of this ordinance shall be subject to an administrative 

penalty of up to $500 for each day in which the violation occurs. Citations for violations 
may be issued by any member of the Police Department, the Town's Code Enforcement 
Officer, and any other personnel designated by the City Manager, based on observation of 
the violation or resulting conditions, such as wet areas outside the allowable irrigation areas. 
Citations shall be issued to the person or persons named on the Water Department account 
for that property. If the resident is not present to receive it, a citation may be served by 
mail or posted on a prominent location on the property. The administrative penalty shall 
be payable within 10 days to the Town Water Department and, if not paid within 10 days, 
shall be added to the water user's bill. 

 
C. Any person desiring to contest a citation may file an appeal. As a condition to the filing of 

the appeal, all outstanding penalties must be paid in full. If the appeal is upheld, the 
penalty will be refunded. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 217



SECTION IV 
 

The Council finds and declares that the adoption of the water waste reduction measures 
herein is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15307 (Actions By 
Regulatory Agencies For Protection of Natural Resources). 

 
SECTION V 

 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 
The City Council of the Town of Los Gatos hereby declares that it would have adopted the remainder 
of this ordinance, including each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion irrespective 

of the invalidity of any other article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion. 
 

SECTION VI 
 

The Council hereby declares that the foregoing is an urgency ordinance necessary for the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the Town of Los Gatos and its 
residents and shall take effect immediately upon passage by a four-fifths majority of the City 
Council 

SECTION VII 
 

This ordinance shall be printed and posted upon the three (3) official bulletin boards of the 
Town of Los Gatos. 

 
This Ordinance was passed an adopted at a regular meeting of the Town Council of the 

Town of Los Gatos on September 7, 2021. 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:  
SIGNED: 

 
 
 

MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS  
LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 

       

ATTEST: 
 
 

TOWN CLERK OF THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS  
LOS GATOS, CALIFORNIA 

Page 218



Comparative List of Drought Guidance and Rulings by Agency

Measure SJ Water Valley Water Town
Conservation Target n/a 15% below 2019 level 15% below 2019 level
Watering Days 2 Days per week by house number 3 days per week 3 days per week
Landscape Watering 15 minutes per day per station n/a n/a

No watering 10 am to 8 pm No watering 9 am to 5 pm No watering 9 am to 5 pm
No Runoff No runoff No runoff
No watering 48 hours after rain n/a n/a

Fountains Only with recirculating system. n/a Only with recirculating system.
No refilling decorative fountains No refilling decorative fountains. No refilling decorative fountains

Washing Vehicles
Washing only at commercial facilities 
that recycle water Only with positive shutoff nozzle. Only with positive shutoff nozzle.

Washing Buildings, 
Sidewalks, etc Only with non‐potable water Only with non‐potable water. Only with non‐potable water.

Construction

Only water use where no other option 
is available, including use of recycled 
water.

Only water use where no other option is 
available, including use of recycled water.

Only water use where no other option is available, 
including use of recycled water.

Street Cleaning n/a No use of potable water. n/a
Leaks Repairs within 72 hours. Repairs within 5 business days Repairs within 5 business days
Restaurants Water served only upon request. Water served only upon request. Water served only upon request.
Hotels Optional towel and linen service. n/a n/a
Swimming Pools n/a No filling or refilling. No filling or refilling.

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 219



ATTACHMENT 3 

From: Sara Walker  
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:40 PM 
To: PublicComment <PublicComment@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Water equity Bachman park water off compare to civic center and other parks 
 
According to Matt Morley 1/3 if Bachman park has been given no water since June 9,2021. 1/3 
gets50% reduction, 1/3 gets 15% reduction. 1/3 of this park is nearly or already unretrievably 
dead and will require new sub soil and reseeding if not watered immediately to a reasonable 
reduction like 15% or 85% of 2019 level. 2/3 of the park is getting 50-100% reduction far 
beyond the mandated 15 % reduction. Even Mr Morley admits that all of city hall lawn is getting 
only a 15percent reduction. No change has taken place since the council requested equitable 
distribution of water to our parks 
Photos below prove my point MORLEY needs GUIDANCE.  We citizens live here and pay for 
parks and revisions with our taxes. If the council requires him to exceed SJ Water mandate  15% 
put it in writing and make it across the board 30 percent all sections equally. No parts at zero 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

From: Sara Walker  
Date: August 3, 2021 at 5:44:03 PM PDT 
To: publiccomment@losgatosca.gov 
Subject: Bachman park water off compare to civic center and other parks 

Today Bachman park below your killing it! Just seeded. Not equitable to this group of citizen 
and park users compared with city hall and other parks.  
 

 
 
 

Page 220

mailto:PublicComment@losgatosca.gov
mailto:publiccomment@losgatosca.gov


ATTACHMENT 3 

 
Bachman upper 1/3 dead above no water! 
 

 
Civic center yesterday 
 

Page 221



ATTACHMENT 3 

 
Civic center yesterday 
 

 
Town plaza 
 

Page 222



ATTACHMENT 3 

 
Riconda neighbor park yesterday  
 

 
Blossom hill yesterday 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

Page 223



ATTACHMENT 3 

From: Donald Rocha <DRocha@valleywater.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 11:28 AM 
 
Subject: Water Conservation (Item 13), in response to Santa Clara County’s drought conditions 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council: 

On behalf of Valley Water, I would like to express my appreciation to the Town of Los Gatos for 
including on today’s Town Council agenda the subject, “Water Conservation” (Item 13), in 
response to Santa Clara County’s drought conditions.  

On June 23, 2021, you received electronic communication from the Santa Clara Valley Water 
District (Valley Water) that included a signed letter from our Chair of the Board of Directors, as 
well as an expanded list of recommended water use prohibitions that were outlined in the 
previously adopted Valley Water resolution. Valley Water’s goal is a uniform, comprehensive 
approach to water conservation across the County, and to also help promote actions residents 
can take to be proactive in saving water and money. 

Increased conservation is necessary to protect local water supplies and guard against 
groundwater overdraft, subsidence, and dry domestic wells—especially if the drought extends 
into next year—and we are grateful for the Town Council’s leadership and decisive action in 
underscoring the seriousness of our region’s water supply condition. Today’s Council actions 
and ongoing work by Town staff will help ensure we can all timely respond to the extreme 
drought conditions to meet local needs and address the current and anticipated water 
shortages. 

While we do not know how long this drought will last, we do know that the time for action is 
now, and we are prepared to assist you with community engagement on this important topic. 
Valley Water stands ready to support continued efforts to work with you and other cities to 
achieve reduction in water use across the County. Please know our Board of Directors very 
much appreciates your leadership and quick action, and we thank you for your consideration of 
these matters of critical importance. 

Sincerely, 
 
Don 
 
Donald Rocha 
Deputy Administrative Officer 
Office of Government Relations 
Valley Water 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 224

mailto:DRocha@valleywater.org
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmeetings.municode.com%2Fd%2Ff%3Fu%3Dhttps%3A%2F%2Fmccmeetings.blob.core.usgovcloudapi.net%2Flosgatos-pubu%2FMEET-Packet-adeb742eb6a24becb31f1d6565ffbcc0.pdf%26n%3DAgendaPacket-Council%2520Meeting-August%25203%2C%25202021%25207.00%2520PM.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Cmanager%40losgatosca.gov%7C327e8a92043e445eebf908d956ac616e%7C6d38cb6747eb4d139e7c523cd7ccecd5%7C1%7C0%7C637636123244120919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=saUy4ZnPOiYgWkUHZtKx0B%2FxMVh%2FM4Ho%2BRpVrN58Kcw%3D&reserved=0


ATTACHMENT 3 

From: SaraW  
Sent: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 3:58 PM 
Subject: Fwd: Urgent ActIon Required to Save Bachman Park 
 
Once again the Town of Los Gatos Parks Management has turned off the water completely to 
1/3 Bachman park @ Ellenwood end. This area now looks like straw and mud. This green space 
has become more heavily used during Covid.   The town is  providing 1/2 water to the mid 
section of the park   and more to the playground end which is green. Over 100  residents of the 
area fought to restore water equitably to this park in 2015 drought and petitioned council. We 
got the water turned on enough to prevent death of the lawn.   We need to do it 
again.  According to Jim Harbin Parks director all parks are now cut 15% which seems 
reasonable on the surface.  However, this week Civic Center is an even lush green  as is Town 
Plaza.   Blossom Hill and La Rinconda are primarily green overall.  Our view is we need to keep 
equal watering throughout the neighborhood parks in a manner to keep it all alive, so the 
public can use them now and when rains return to lawns will come back.  Perhaps they could 
cut cut time of water  equally 15% over each section (1,2,3) or rotate weeks of 
water.  Perhaps  the City Hall  lawn  water  should be cut 100% and  move toward drought 
tolerant plants before sacrificing our neighborhood parks which citizens use and are key to the 
town reputation.     In 2018, we the town spent over $1 Million dollars on Bachman for new 
cement paths/light. and reseeding .  The lawn was the highest priority of the citizens as 
expressed by petition.  The Park department wanted and  planted 4 oaks in the lawn currently 
receiving no water(Mr. Harbin says they may have to bring in water and water manually.) The 
city council is meeting at 7 p.m. including a Drought ordinance agenda Item 13 which is  posted 
on website: losgatosca.gov . Send your comments immediately 
to  publiccomment@losgatos.gov  and they will be distributed to the mayor and city council 
today and included in the record.  Citizens can participate and comment  by zoom  click on 
the agenda on  losgatosca.gov for specific directions to use zoom or phone (blue).  You may also 
wish to comment  directly  to the town council members or  town manager and Park director 
Jim Harbin and Matt Morely Park and Public works director 

 
From: Lee Fagot   
Sent: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 10:53 PM 
Subject: Conflict with Town and San Jose Water Co. 
  
Madam Mayor and Council members, 

Very positive and productive Council meeting tonight.  Lots of good discussion and council 
approvals of well balanced proposals on the town’s agenda.  

There was one item that I tried to speak to, but had some computer link problems so missed 
the time line. Specifically, item 13, Water Conservation.  
The Council approved tonight to target 15% reduction in water usage thru Town, which is good 
move: 
+ including a 15 minute limit  per station per day of watering, but no more than 3 days per 
week between 5pm and 9am.   
+ It did allow home car washing provided a shut off nozzle was attached to the hose to reduce 
water run off while the spigot was open.  
  

Page 225

mailto:publiccomment@losgatos.gov


ATTACHMENT 3 

I believe these two provisions, noted above, are in conflict with the directive we received 
directly from San Jose Water, the Town’s supplier with effect from July 9, 2021.  
  
See the copy of their provisions, below, which indicated no home car washing and only two 
days per week of home lawn/garden watering, also with 15 minute max timing. 
  

"This past week, the Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors declared a local emergency due 
to extreme drought conditions and is calling on all residents and businesses in the county’s 
unincorporated areas to immediately begin conserving water. 

San Jose Water has now taken similar actions that echo the seriousness of the threats posed 
by the extreme drought. 

“"During every drought, our customers have done extraordinarily well saving water to meet 
our local emergency conditions. We ask them again to put conservation at the forefront so 
we can meet the 15% goal,”" said Andy Gere, SJW’s President and Chief Operating Officer. 

Beginning Friday, July 9, San Jose Water, which covers 230,000 customers, is implementing 
the following restrictions: 

 Limits Watering to Two Days per Week: Watering or irrigating of lawns, landscape or 
other vegetated areas with potable water is limited to two days per week. Irrigation 
will be allowed Mondays and Thursdays for odd numbered and numberless addresses, 
and will be allowed on Tuesdays and Fridays for even numbered addresses. 

 Limits Timing and Length of Watering: Watering or irrigating of outside plants, lawn, 
landscape, and turf areas with potable water using a landscape irrigation system or a 
watering device that is not continuously attended, is limited to no more than 15 
minutes of watering per day per station, with no watering between 10:00 a.m. and 
8:00 p.m. 

 Limits Filling Decorative Fountains or Ornamental Lakes or Ponds: Prohibition of the 
use of potable water for filling or re-filling decorative fountains, ornamental lakes or 
ponds more than one foot, except when fountains or ponds/lakes are drained for 
repairs, and except to the extent needed to sustain aquatic life in ponds/lakes, 
provided that such animals are of significant value and have been actively managed 
within the water feature prior to declaration of a supply shortage level. 

 Limits Washing Vehicles: Washing of vehicles, except at a commercial car washing 
facility that utilizes recycled water or re-circulating water system to capture or reuse 
water. 

 Limit Use of Potable Water for Washing Buildings: Also structures, sidewalks, 
walkways, driveways, patios, tennis courts, or other hard-surfaced, non-porous areas, 
except to protect the health and safety of the public.” 

Please advise which guidance is in effect for Los Gatos now??? 
Thanks, and again, really appreciate the work you all are doing to keep our Town moving 
forward in such a positive way. 
Lee Fagot 
 
 
 

Page 226



 

   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager and Assistant Town Manager  
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

ITEM NO: 11    

 
   

 

DATE:   September 1, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

SUBJECT: Provide Direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for 
Candidates for Town Council.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Provide direction to Town staff to do one of the following: 
 

1. Do nothing and default to contribution limits for candidates for Town office established by 
State law; or 

2. Prepare an ordinance or resolution for the Council’s consideration establishing contribution 
limits for candidates for Town office.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Effective on January 1, 2021, Assembly Bill (“AB”) 571 established contribution limits for 
candidates for Town office.  Under AB 571, candidates for Town office will be subject to a four 
thousand seven hundred-dollar ($4,700) contribution limit from a single source per election.  
AB 571 does not limit contributions from committees, to oppose a recall against a local official, 
or to contributions of a candidate's personal funds to his or her own campaign.  The Fair 
Political Practices Commission (the “FPPC”) will periodically adjust this limit to account for 
inflation. 
 
AB 571 establishes default contribution limits.  The Town can establish contribution limits by 
ordinance or resolution that differ from the contribution limits established by AB 571.  If the 
Town establishes its own contribution limits, candidates for Town office will not be subject to 
the contribution limits established by AB 571.  The Town may also take no action and allow the 
State's limits to apply by operation of law.  If no action is taken at this time, AB 571 does not 
preclude the Town from setting its own contribution limits (higher or lower) in the future. 
 
 

Page 227



PAGE 2 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Provide Direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for 

Candidates for Town Council. 
DATE:  September 1, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
Additionally, violations of AB 571 are punishable as a misdemeanor and subject to specified 
penalties, enforced by the FPPC.  Cities and towns adopting their own contribution limit must 
also set, administer, and enforce penalties themselves.  Choosing the State's campaign 
contribution limits would relieve the Town of the possible burden of additional administrative 
work as the Town would defer all enforcement and administration to the FPPC. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
AB 571 was adopted based on several findings, including (1) most cities and counties in 
California do not have independently imposed limitations on contributions to candidates for 
elective office in those jurisdictions; (2) in cities and counties without campaign contribution 
limitations, candidates for elective office receive 40 percent or more of their total campaign 
funds from a single contributor; (3) where people can make unlimited contributions to a 
candidate for elective city or county office, there is a "risk and the perception that elected 
officials in those jurisdictions are beholden to their contributors and will act in the best interest 
of those contributors at the expense of the people"; and finally, the State has a Statewide 
interest in "preventing actual corruption and the appearance of corruption at all levels of 
government." 
 
Given the effects of AB 571, Town staff seeks direction from the Town Council regarding 
whether the Town should establish its own contribution limits.  The Town Council has two (2) 
options: 
 

1. Do Nothing. If the Town Council takes no action, pursuant to AB 571 candidates for 
Town office will be subject to a four thousand seven hundred-dollar ($4,700) 
contribution limit.  
 

a) By defaulting to AB 571, candidates for Town office will also face (2) additional 
limitations on contributions: (1) AB 571 limits transfers of campaign funds from 
one controlled committee to another controlled committee of the same 
candidate; and (2) AB 571 limits loans to a candidate’s campaign. 

b) AB 571, however, provides three (3) exemptions from contribution limits: (1) 
candidates facing a recall can establish a committee to oppose the recall and can 
accept contributions in excess of the contribution limits established by AB 571; 
(2) candidates may accept contributions after an election to pay off debts from 
the election; and (3) candidates can carry over contributions from one election 
to pay for expenses for a subsequent election for the same office. 

c) If the Town defaults to the contribution limits established by AB 571, the FPPC 
will enforce the contribution limits.  Violation of these contribution limits will be  

Page 228



PAGE 3 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Provide Direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for 

Candidates for Town Council. 
DATE:  September 1, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
subject to the penalty provisions of the Political Reform Act. Violations of the 
contribution limits will be punishable as misdemeanors. 

 
2. Set Own Contribution Limits. If the Town Council does not wish the Town to be subject 

to AB 571 contribution limits, the Town council can adopt its own contribution limits 
and can establish limits higher or lower than the FPPC limits.  If the Town Council 
decides to go down that route, Town staff will prepare an ordinance and resolution for 
the Town Council consideration. 

 
a) By establishing contribution limits, candidates for Town office will not be subject 

to state limitations on contributions.  However, the exemptions from the 
contribution limits described above will not apply.  In addition, the Town Council 
must establish penalties for violations of the contribution limits and bear the 
cost of the enforcement.  The FPPC will not enforce the Town’s contribution 
limits.  Penalties for violating the Town’s contribution limits can include civil 
penalties, fines, or criminal charges.  In establishing contribution limits, the Town 
must ensure that it complies with the First Amendment.  Accordingly, the Town 
must ensure that contribution limits are not too low as to prevent candidates for 
Town office from conducting an effective campaign. 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Town Council’s options are: 
 

1. Do nothing and accept the contribution limits established by AB 571, or 
2. Direct Town Staff to prepare an ordinance and resolution establishing contribution 

limits for candidates for Town office. 
 
COORDINATION: 

This report was coordinated with the Town Manager’s Office.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There will be no fiscal impact to the Town if the Town elects to default to the state’s 
contribution limits. The Town will bear enforcement costs if it establishes different contribution 
limits. 

 

Page 229



PAGE 4 OF 4 
SUBJECT: Provide Direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for 

Candidates for Town Council. 
DATE:  September 1, 2021 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

Page 230


	Top
	1.	Approve Minutes of the August 17, 2021 Regular Town Council Meeting
	081721

	2.	Annexation of Winterbrook No. 6
	Staff Report Winterbrook No. 6 Annexation
	Attachment 1 - Resolution [Adopt]
	Exhibits A and B
	Attachment 2 - Location Map

	3.	Agreement with ARC Document Solutions, LLC. for the Forbes Mill Footbridge Mural Project
	Staff Report.Footbridge Art
	Attachment 1 - Draft ARC Agreement
	Exhibit C - ARC Proposal
	Attachment 2 - Prior Agreement & Amendments

	4.	Accela Budget Adjustment
	Staff Report.Accela Services
	Attachment 1 - Statement of Work
	Attachment 2 - Agreement for Consultant Services FY21-26

	5.	Adopt Gender Neutralization of the Town Code
	Staff Report.Gender Neutral Code
	Attachment 1 - Draft Ordinance

	6.	Approve an Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan
	Staff Report.Approve Amendments to the Temporary Classification Plan
	Attachment 1-Temporary Classifications Salary Schedule
	Desk Item.Approve Amendment to the Temporary Classification Plan
	Attachment 2-Public Comments

	7.	CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendations
	Staff Report.CHSSC ARPA Allocation Recommendation
	Attachment 1 - CHSSC Senior Needs Assessment
	Attachment 2 - Service Provider Proposals

	8.	Creekside Sports Park Field Conditions
	Staff Report.Creekside Sports Park Field Conditions

	9.	Civic Center Safety Improvements
	Staff Report.Civic Center Safety Improvements
	Attachment 1 - Pageant

	10.	Extend Drought Urgency Ordinance
	Staff Report.Drought Urgency Ordinance Extension 2021.RWS
	Attachment 1 - Draft Extension Ordinance Drought 2021
	Attachment 2 - Comparative Requirements
	Attachment 3 - Public Comment

	11.	Provide direction to Town Staff Regarding Establishing Contribution Limits for Candidates for Town Council.
	Staff Report.Campaign Contributions

	Bottom

